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FIELD HEARING ON REHABILITATION SERV-
ICES AND EDUCATION Oi THE DEAF PRO-
GRAMS

MONDAY, MAY 11, 1992

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Phoenix, AZ.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 a.m., in the Audi-
torium, Phoenix Public Library, 12 E. McDowell Street, Phoenix,
Arizona, Hon. Major R. Owens, Chairman, presiding.

Members present: Representatives Owens and Pastor.

Staff present: Wanser Green, Patricia Laird, and Terri Schroe-
der.

Chairman OweNs. The hearing of the Subcommittee on Select
Education is now in session. I yield to Mr. Pastor for an opening
statement.

Mr. Pastor. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, I want to welcome you to our beautiful city of
Phoenix, Arizona. I appreciate your taking the time to come here
to conduct this oversight hearing on important issues relating to
programs for individuals with disabilities.

As you know, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 expires this year.
Earlier this year, the subcommittee began the reauthorization proc-
ess. Today’s hearing will continue that process by exploring a vari-
ety ot important issues which will enable millions of persons with
disabilities to move from dependency towards economic self-suffi-
ciency.

Today’s hearing will examinie rehabilitation services for tradi-
tionally underserved groups, particularly persons from the Native
American population and Hispanic communities. We need to find
responsive solutions which address the legitimate concerns and ob-
stacles facing these particular individuals.

We will hear from program administrators and consumers of re-
habilitation services. They will share with us their experiences
with vocational rehabilitation services, transition from school to
work, community job development, and personal assistance services
for individuals with disabilities.

The Americans with Disabilities Act, ADA, becam.. law about 2
years ago. The ADA will vastly expand equality of opportunity, full
participation, independent living, and economic self-sufficiency for
all Americans with disabilities.

(88}
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The reauthorization of the Rehabilitation Act will provide us a
unique opportunity to strengthen the policies and programs for
persons with disabilities. The views and recommendations of our
witnesses today, and by others during this reauthorization process,
is absolutely crucial to the success of the Americans with Disabil.
ities Act.

During today’s hearing, we will also explore issues relating to
the education of the deaf. We will learn about the deaf culture and
how our educational system addresses the needs of this particular
segment of our society. Finally, we will discuss current programs
which “.repare teachers of deaf and hard-of-hearing students.

We have a commitment to provide equal educational opportuni-
ties to all individuals in this country, including persons with dis-
abilities.

I welcome all of our panelists and look forward to their testimo-
ny. Their comments and recommendations will be greatly appreci-
ated as we continue the dialogue on improving our Nation’s educa-
tional and rehabilitation services.

Again, I want to thank the distinguished Chairman of the House
Select Education Subcommittee, Congressman Major Owens, for
coming to Phoenix to conduct this important hearing. Both of us
will be anxious to hear the views of individuals from outside the
Washington, DC beltway.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Owens. I want to thank you for inviting us.

The Rehabilitation Act has provided many individuals with the
opportunity to become gainfully employed, independent, and self-
sufficient. However, there are still problems with the delivery
system that must be addressed so that those who need training or
services can receive them quickly and efficiently.

A recent General Accounting Office study commissioned by my
subcommittee presented data which indicated a dangerous trend in
vocational rehabilitation towards serving less people, with less
challenging disabilities, with less success. Another GAO study indi-
cates that less money is spent on services to African-Americans,
American Indians, and other minorities than on their white coun-
terparts. These and other patterns of inequity must be changed to
bring about a world class system of rehabilitation.

Today’s hearing will examine barriers within the current system
that continue to limit services to minorities and other underserved
populations, and today’s hearing wiil address issues concerning
transition from school to work, community job development, and
the impact of the Americans with Disabilities on the rehabilitation
service delivery system within each State.

In its 1988 report entitled Toward Equality, the Commission on
Education of the Deaf—established by Congress under the Educa-
tion of the Deaf Act in 1986—this Commission concluded that
“Education for persons who are deaf is unacceptably unsatisfac-
tory.” The Commission identified a critical need for research devel-
opment, training, and technical assistance for four special groups
of deaf students—those who have limited English proficiency, those
who are members of minority groups, those who are lower-achiev-
ing academically, and those who have secondary disabilities. Addi-
tionally, the Commission on Education of the Deaf emphasized the
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need to recruit and train personnel in the field of deaf education
and to establish personnel and program standards to ensure the
provision of quality services.

I want to thank Mr. Pastor for inviting the subcommittee to Ari-
zona to hold this hearing on these issues. We look forward to hear-
ing testimony from those most affected at the local and State
levels. The subcommittee is committed to strengthening these pro-
grams and services so that all s2gments of our population, in all
parts of the country, can live independent and productive lives.

StATEMENT OF HON. MAJOR R. OWENS, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE
STATE OF NEW YORK

The Rehabilitation Act has provided many individuals with the opportunity to
become gainfully employed, independent, snd self-sufficient. However, there are still
problems with the delivery system that must be addressed so that those who need
training or services can receive them quickly and efficiently. A recent General Ac-
counting Office (GAO) study commissioned by my subcommittee presented data
which indicated a dangerous trend in vocational rehabilitation towards serving less
people, with less challenging disabilities, with less success. Ancther GAO study indi-
cates that less money is spent on services to African-Americans, American Indians,
and other minorities than on their white counterparts. These and other patterns of
inequity must be changed to bring about a world class system of rehabilitation.

Today’s hearing will examine barriers within the current system that continue to
limit services to minorities and other underserved populations, and address issues
concerning transition from school or work, community job development, and the
impact of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) on the rehabilitation service
delivery system.

In its 1988 report, Toward £quality, the Commission on Education of the Deaf—
established by Congress under the Education of the Deaf Act in 1986—concluded
that “Education for persons who are desaf ... is unacceptably unsatisfactory.” The
Commission identified a critical need for research development, training, and tech-
nical assistance for four special groups of deaf students: Those who have limited
English proficiency, those who are mem? .:rs of minority groups, those who are lower
achieving academically, and those who have secondary disabilities. Additionally, the
Commission emphasized the need to recruit and train personnel in the field of deaf
education and to establish personnel and program standards to ensure the provision
of quality services.

I want to thank Mr. Pastor for inviting the subcommittee to Arizona to hold this
hearing on these issues. We look forward to hearing testimony from those most af-
fected at the local and State levels. The subcommittee is committed to strengthen-
ing programs and services so that all segments of our population can live independ-
ent and productive lives.

We will begin our hearing with a panel consisting of Mr. John
Gutierrez, who is a legal assistant from the Arizona Center for Law
in the Public Interest here in Phoenix. We also have Miss Betty
Bennalley, vocational rehabilitation counselor from the Office of
Special Education and Rehabilitation Services of the Navajo
Nation, Window Rock, Arizona.

Welcome, both of you. We will begin with Mr. Gutierrez.

STATEMENTS OF JOHN GUTIERREZ, LEGAL ASSISTANT, ARIZONA
CENTER FOR LAW IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST; AND BETTY BEN-
NALLEY, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION SUPERVISOR, THE
NAVAJC NATION, NAVAJO OFFICE OF SPECIAL EDUCATION
AND REHABILITATION SERVICES

Mr. GuTiERREZ. My name is John Gutierrez. I will be discussing
my experience as a ilispanic client with vocational rehabilitation,
and also some of the predicaments of other Hispanic clients that I,
as a advocate of the Client Assistance Program, have encountered.

?
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My involvement with vocational rehabilitation began 10 years
ago this summer. In all honesty, I will not portray it as a rose-col-
ored affair. I vremember my early experiences with VR as intimi-
dating; the nicest thing I can say was that I was assigned a coun-
selor who took insensitivity to new heights.

In attaining the severity of the disability that I have, a quadri-
plegic with complete paralysis from the neck down, my thoughts
and emotions bounce back to if only I hadn’t been at that place, at
that time, to trying to fathom how I will survive in this world now
with these limiiations that have been put upon me.

My vocational rehabilitation counselor was not supportive nor,
for that matter, kind or assistive. I was on a ventilator at the time,
so I truly did not have a voice to speak up with.

What were the reasons for this person’s behavior? I'm sure I will
never know. Somehow, though, I had an almost undeniable feeling
that there raay have been more than a slight correlation between
this person’s attitude and my ethnicity.

Throughout the time I was a client with this counselor, services
through vocational rehabilitation were an uphill battle. Fortunate-
ly, I outlasted this counselor. From then on, vocational rehabilita-
tion proved to be my saving grace. I was able to continue my stud-
ies and I earned a master’s of social work degree from Arizona
State University in 1988.

I believe there is a higher power who guides our lives, for what
occurred after I graduated was granted to me by more than sheer
luck. I was hired by the Arizona Center for Law in the Public In-
terest. One of the programs at the Center, and the one of which I
am currently an employee, is the Client Assistance Program which
deals specifically with assisting people who are clients or appli-
cants with vocational rehabilitation and are encountering problems
with receiving appropriate services.

As the Client Assistance Program advocate, I have been able to
help many VR clients in obtaining appropriate services to achieve
gainful employment and have aided clients in opening avenues
that they were not aware were available to them in the rehabilita-
tion area. .

One major problem being encountered with this program or, for
that matter, any of the programs at the Center, is the lack of re-
quests for assistance from the Hispanic community. Out of 100 cli-
ents that were pirovided services through the Client Assistance Pro-
gram in fiscal year 1990-31, only eight were Hispanic. Why do His-
panics continually fail to seek assistance? There are many theories,
such as Hispaniss, contending with a history as an oppressed
people, have faller victims to a state of hopelessness and that they
truly believe their cries for heln will fall on deaf ears as they have
in many other areas of our y.

One of the main dilemm.s racing my Hispanic clients in voca-
tional rehabilitation is their lack of success within the educational
system. Many of my minority clients never completed high school,
so their frustrations at recently becoming disabled, in addition to
trying to go back and relearn some of the most basic principles of
education, can be a most disconcerting experience not only for the
client but for the counselor. Many of my minority clients feel there
are too many barriers preventing their success to their goal of em-
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ployment, and counselors become distressed also with the extended
amount of time and additional services these clients will require.

From my experience in working with Hispanic clients in CAP, it
appears that they may have a more difficult time at achieving suc-
cess in vocational rehabilitation because so many of them require
extra educational assistance. Some clients feel it’s just another bu-
reaucratic program similar to others they have tried and failed.
Yet others view VR with suspicion as to whether this program can
really produce success.

As a former VR client myself, I can impress upon my Hispanic
clients that this program most assuredly works. Given motivation,
a reasonable employment goal, and an understanding and support-
ive counselor, I feel any person who receives vocational rehabilita-
tion services can succeed in becoming a productive member of our
society.

Thank you.

Chairman OwgeNs. Thank you.

Miss Bennalley, you may proceed.

Ms. BENNALLEY. | am representing the Navajo Nation, with the

fice of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services. As you
know, Navajo vocational rehabilitation has been in existence since
1975, when the amendment to the Rehabilitation Services Act was
enacted. At that time, special section 130 funds were made avail-
able to all Indian tribes; at the time, it was made available to the
Navajo Nation. The Navajo Nation has been the forerunner in pro-
viding a whole scale of vocational rehabilitation to the Navajo
people.

Currently there are about 14 other Indian tribes that are provid-
ing vocational rehabilitation services. Most of those other Indian
tribes have more or less geared their services towards substance
abuse and not specifically to VR. Therefore, as the forerunner for
American Indians, there are a lot of needs that must be addressed.

One in particular is the deaf. We provide services to the deaf
population of Native Americans. A lot of times the young individ-
ual will go off the reservation and attend BIA’s either here or in
Tucson. They go through the school system and upon graduation
return to the reservation. At that time services are not available.
Specifically, interpreters, TT), are not available within the reser-
vation, with the exception of our office. We have one available.

Things that relate to the ways they can best communicate with
the public are inaccessible at this time. Again, they lose the cultur-
al values when they leave the reservations, not only within the
Navajo Nation, but in the other Indian tribes. As far as I know,
Arizona is the third largest Indian population throughout the
United States. Therefore, Arizona serves all other Indian tribes. In
that respect, I know that the State DVR provides vocational reha-
bilitation services. Initially, when Navajo Voc Rehab got started,
there were some cultural differences and different needs that the
State VR couldn’t provide. We are able to provide that now.

In addition, the ADA is being addressed to a certain extent on
the reservation with the other Indian tribes. Again, I'm more or
less speaking for the Navajc Nation, but we can provide technical
assistance—to the other Indian tribes if they request—on how we
implement VR.
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Again, addressing the needs of the deaf, we need deaf profession-
als, Native American professionals, who will address these needs,
such as providing grants or continuing education to Native Ameri-
cans so that they can interpret and relate the information. There is
not a whole lot of interpretation, so our cultural differences are
lost.

At this point I believe that Navajo voc rehab, or our new name,
OSERS, has the background and expertise to provide other techni-
cal assistance. We have worked very closely with the State of Ari-
zona DES VR, and they’'ve been really supportive. We have even
implemented some of their guidelines in providing VR. In a sense,
coming from a vocational rehabilitation counselor standpoint, I be-
lieve that the needs are there. A lot of it has to do with the individ-
ual who is disabled taking the initiative to request services and
then following through with a lot of the services that they can take
advantage of. I work not only with Navajo, but I've worked with
the Sioux that are married into the Navajo families, and the South-
ern Ute tribe in Colorado that has provided services to Navajo VR.

Again, a lot of the funding that we get comes from section 130
projects. As of 1992, we only get a little over a million dollars relat-
ed to the Navajo Nation; the other two million or more is divided
among the other 13 Indian tribes across the nation. I guess more
funding is what we're requesting to provide additional services. A
lot of services have to be supplemented from other organizations
that exist on the reservation. That'’s the only way we can get by,
with additional funding for staff development, continuing educa-
tion, and addressing the other needs. With the section 130 funds,
Indian tribes are not able to request supported employment funds
or independent living funds, or any other staff development that’s
really important. We nave to tap into other resources that are
available from each of the States that we work with, particularly
Arizona, since a large portion of the Navajo Nation is in Arizona.

We utilize the CAP that John mentioned a while ago. A ot has
to be coordinated to provide these services, but we make do with
what we have. As representing Native Americans, we tap into a lot
of resources. Vocational rehabilitation is a goal-oriented program.
Therefore, the individual, as I mentioned before, has to make that
determination to be successful at whatever it may be, whether it be
self-employment or just independent living skills so that the indi-
vidual will be self-supporting and self-sufficient and live independ-
ently. I believe that the rights of Native Americans is as such, too.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Betty Bennalley follows:]
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THE NAVAJO NATION
Navajo Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services

SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION
PHOENIX FIELD HEARING

The Navajo Nation, Navajo Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services
(OSERS), apprediates this opportunity to bring to you the concerns with regards to
American Indian rehabilitation services. The Navajc OSERS is primarily funded by
the Rehabiliation Act of 1973, as amended, so the following concerns are spedific to
the Rehabilitation Act. It is our hope and desire that the reauthorization of the
Rehabilitation Act will strengthen vocational :ehabilitation (VR) services to
American Indians with disabilities by providing American Indian VR Projects with
stable and adequate funding. The current statutory framework for the establishment
and operation of American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Projects lacks adequate
provisions for permanency of services and does not recognize the specialized
cultural, economic and vocational drcumstances of American Indian tribes.

According to the 1990 census, there is a total of 1,948,37 American Indians and
Alaska Natives in the United States. The 1930 Census also found thirty five percent
(35%) of the nation’s two million American Indians, Eskimos and Aleuts lived in
areas govarmned by tribes. That's down from 37% in 1980. The Navajo Nation
reservation is the most populous in the nation with 143,405 American Indians
living there. The state of Arizcna ranks third with the largest American Indian,
Eskimo, or Aleut population of zpproximately 204,600. In spite of these statistics,
only fourteen (14) American Indian Tribes have Vocational Rehabilitation Projects
funded by Rehabilitation Services Administration under Section 130 of the
Rehabilitation Act, 29 USC 750. This leaves a large population of American Indians
with disabilities unserved.

American Indians, as a group, have disabling conditions at a disproportionately
high rate. The 1980 census data indicated a rate of work related disability for
American Indians at about 1 1/2 times that of the general population and at a higher
rate than other minority group. Native American Research and Training Center,
Northern Arizona University researchers, Martin and Tanner, estimate that
12.7% of American Indians of working age, (16-65) were work disabled and 6.4%
were preveated from working due to disabilities. This is higher than data reported
for the general population, which is 8.5% and 4.4%, respectively.
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American Indians with disabilities often reside on federal Indian reservations and
trust lands located in remote and rural areas. Like the general population, there are
individuals with disabilities across many of these reservations who are without
accessible public transportation, accessible housing and community resources. To
make matters worse, many American Indians, including those with disabilities, are
living without the basic necessities of indoor plumbing, paved roads and are
geographically isolated. These factors limit access to rehabilitation services.

Each of the 14 Vocational Rehabilitation Projects offer varied services to meet the
unique needs of each reservation according to the conditions present in each of the
geographic locations and individual client needs. Each American Indian tribe has a
different culture and the conditions present in "each of the geographic
locations determine the quality and quantity of vocational rehabilitation services to
clients. One barrier that is common on reservation communities or Trust Land is
the lack of job opportunities on or near reservations. The lack of transportation also
limits the ciient in his ability to keep appointments with the VR Counselor. This
results in a lack of participation by people with disabilities in training programs off
the reservation.

The following issues are concerns relative to the American Indian Vocational
Rehabilitation Projects funded by Section 130 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 USC 750:

1. COMCERN:

There are fourteen (14) American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Projects across
the United States which have varying characteristics according to the tribe, culture,
language and other economic and vocational conditions present in the geographic
location. However, they seem to be viewed by federal administrators as being all the
same. They are placed into one category; when in fact, the scope and complexity of
the projects range from start up projects to developing projects, to established
operations which have been successful in terms of meeting their own tribal
objectives for providing vocational rehabilitation services over a fifteen (15) years
span. Additional differences between projects include types of administrative and
governmental structures, population and geography served, the level of trained
personnel, grant management skills and economic conditions.
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" All new, as well as established, American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Projects

must compete for periodic fiscal support from Section 130 of the Rehabilitation Act.

- During the 1992 funding year for Section 130 projects, only $3,000,910 was available

for funding American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Projects. The
Rehabilitation Act, as it currently exists does not provide any assurances for
continuity of viable, proven services from grant period to grant period. Due to the
financial insecurity, the Indian Nations are faced with difficulties in meeting the
provisions of P.L. 93-638, the Indian Self-determination Act. Furthermore, the
competition between new and established projects is detrimental to both new and
continuing applicants. The Act provides for greater consideration to enhance
vocational rehabilitation services to the Trust Territories outside the United States
than to the Native people, the American Indians and Alaska Natives. The end
result is a client with a disability in active status who may end up with a program
that is no longer funded.

A mechanism of determining funding for formula grants for Americar. Indian
tribes needs to be established to insure that that have continuity and permanence in
providing vocational rehabilitation services to American Indians with disabilities.
There needs to be a mechanism established in the legislation in this
Reauthorization to allow for American Indian tribes to apply for formula grants if
they meet established citeria, and if they choose to do so. The change in status could
be conditioned upon compliance with established criteria in order to allow these
programs to achieve the same status as a "State”, for receipt of formula grant
funding. This would allow larger American Indian tribes, such as the Navajo
Nation, to receive appropriate funding. Other American Indian tribes who are
beginning and are only in the first two years of their project, should be allowed to
continue with discretionary grant funding until they meet State Plan criteria or
formula grant funding. By allowing some American Indian tribes who meet State
Plan criteria to receive the formula grants, this will free up funds from the
discretionary grants which will result in an increase in the availability of funds for
American Indian Projects.

1. RECOMMENDATION

(A).  Amend the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 to provide strong assurances for
the continuation of projects providing established and proven vocational
rehabilitation services through formula grant, in the same manner as a state, or a
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U.S. territory for receipt of tunds under the four formula vocational rehabilitation
programs. Following is our recomumended language:

Definitions, 29 USC 706 (16)

The term "State" includes the District of Columbia, the Virgin Islands, Puerto
Rico, Guam, American Samoa, the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands, the Navajo
Nation, other federally recognized Indian Tribes which comply with Section 721 of
this Act, and for the purpose of American Samoa and the Trust Territory of the
Pacific Island ...

ALLOTMENT PERCENTAGE, 29 USC 707 (A)(1)(B)

The allotment percentage for the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam,
the Virgin Islands, American Samoa, the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands, the
Navajo Nation and other federally recognized Indian Tribes which comply with
Section 721 of this Act shall be 75 per centum.

SUGGESTED CRITERIA
The criteria that may be applied to determine if an Indian Tribe is eligible for "State”
status is as follows:

- The Indian Tribe will provide a fiscal match of 10%, as currently required
under 29 USC 750.

. A state plan will be required and approved by the appropriate office of the

Rehabilitation Services Administration under 29 USC 721.

. The Indian Tribe will demonstrate its administrative and managerial
abilities.

. The American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Project will demonstrate
its successful performance of rehabilitating people with disabilities at a
reasonable cost.

B. Increase the discretionary grant funds under Section 130, 29 USC 730 (d) to the full
1% from the current 1/4 of 1%. Congress has been appropriating funds to allow
an increase up to 1% for Section 130 each year, (American Indian discretionary
grants).
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Categorize competitive applications for Section 130 grants to reflect separate
consideration of established programs and new or developing prejects. There
should be provisions to allow a one year planning grant for new projects.

D. Clarify the language under Section 130 regarding “comparability of services”.

2. CONCERN

The Request for Proposals (RFP) inviting applications for new awards for Vocational
Rehabilitation Service Projects for American Indians with Handicaps establishes
priorities for funding. The RFP for Fiscal Year 1992, established two (2) priorities.
One for "projects addressing disabilities of high prevalence on the reservation or in
the tribal village” and the second priority identified are for "projects addressing the
needs of American Indians with specific learning disabilities”. These priorities limit
American Indian tribes from serving people with disabilities who meet the
eligibility criteria for services. For example, if diabetes is a disabling condition that
has been documented as tho disability of high prevalence on a particular
reservation, the American Indian project should show how they plan to serve
individuals with diabetes. Yet, many individuals with diabetes may have their
diabetes “controlled” through medications and may not have a vocatonal handicap.
In addition, continuing programs applying for grants under these established
priorities may have a number of people with disabilities in active status who should
continue to receive rehabilitation services if eligibility for services has been
determined.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Allow American Indian tribes to develop vocational rehabilitation programs that
address their .\eeds ir. their specific reservation or village. Services to people with
disabilities should be based on the eligible criteria set in the Rehabilitation Act.

3. CONCERN
There is a national shortage of American Indian professionals in the field of
vocational rehabilitation. Occupations in the field of vocational rehabilitation

services are relatively new to American Indian Nations. The training of more
American Indian professionals in the field of rehabilitation will not only benefit
tribal entities, but state, federal and private entities, a= well.
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3. RECOMMENDATION

" A. The Rehabilitation Act must be amended to address specific mechanisms to

encourage the training of indigenous people in this specialized field by
establishing a priority for short and long term grants to train American Indians.

B. Participation of American Indian "State" agencies and Section 130 grantees must
be established and required of each Regional Continuing Education Programs.
This will ensure that the American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Agencies
and Section 130 projects will participate in the planning for training and

ensuring that they receive equitable and meaningful training within their
Regions.

4. CONCERN

Technical assistance for the development and improvement of economic and
culturally relevant vocational rehabilitation projects is critically lacking in current
legislation. As such, American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Projects are left to
their innovation to seek limited technical assistance.

4. RECOMMENDATION

The Rehabilitation Act must be amended to spedifically address the issue of lack of
technical assistance to American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Projects by
requiring that a specific entity be designated to provide technical assistance.

5. CONCERN

Periodically, request for proposals are announced to solicit applications for Projects

With Industries (PWI. The guidelines for applicant eligibility discriminate against
American Indian applications because of the lack of sufficient consideration of local
American Indian economic conditions and circumstances. In most cases, the
economy of American Indian entities are not as developed as the predominantly
metropolitan areas for which the regulations are designed. Major employers such as
large manufacturers, retail and service industry businesses are lacking on Indian
reservations. Instead of these types of businesses, it is much more common for
employers to be cottage industries and small retail and service business.

16
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5. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that regulations for Project With Industries grants be amended to
allow for these economic conditions so that American Indian entities may pursue
such grants to assist in the employment of American Indians with disabilities.

6. CONCERN

Section 130 Projects have the legal responsibility to provide "comparable”
vocational rehabilitation services to those provided by State Vocational
Rehabilitation Agencies, including construction of rehabilitation facilities. Section
130 grants need construction funds to be made available for the establishment and
construction of rehabilitation facilities ie... workshops, independent living centers,
training centers, etc. These funds should be separate and apart from Section 130
operation funds.

6. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that rehabilitation construction funds and establishment grants
be made available in the form of a special set-aside for Section 130 grantees and
established American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Programs.

7. CONCERN

According to the Navajo Area Indian Health Service, Navajo Health Status
Summary, the leading cause of outpatient visits for fiscal year 1991 was Otitis Media
or middle ear infection. Otitis media can lead to hearing loss. Like the general
population, the Navajo Nation lacks individuals skilled in interpreting for the deaf
and hearing impaired. More specifically, the Navajo Nation lacks individuals who
are skilled in sign language and speak Navajo and English. This poses problems
since many Navajo families speak only Navajo. Interpreters for the deaf/hearing
impaired who are contracted from off the Navajo Nation do not speal. Navajo.

7. RECOMMENDATION

A priority needs to be established for Interpreter Training Programs funded by
Rehabilitation Services Administration for tri-lingual interpreters (American
Indian language, English and Sign Language).

7
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8. CONCERN

The state schools for the deaf are located in Tucson, Arizona (Arizona School for the
Deaf and Blind) and Santa Fe, New Mexico (New Mexico School for the Deaf).
There are no schools on the Navajo Nation specifically for deaf Navajo children
and young adults. As a result, these children attend schools off the reservation. The
Navajo Nation realizes the presence and importance of deaf culture, but also hold
Navajo culture in high regard. Many of the Navajo children attending these off-
reservation state schools are not been given the opportunity to participate in and
experience Navajo traditions and culture.

8, RECOMMENDATION

The schools for the deaf need to work closely with the Navajo Nation in assuring
that Mavajo children who are deaf or hearing impaired are given every opportunity
to understand and participate in their Navajo heritage. The schools for the deaf
need to assure that Navajo translators/interpreters are provided, if needed when an
individualized education program is developed for Navajo children.

CLOSING REMARKS

The Navajo Nation, Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services staff are
willing to asisst with the drafting of the statutory language which will be necessary
to accomplish these much needed changes to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended.

I would like to thank the Sub Committee on Select Education members for

conducting this very important hearing and inviting participation of the Navajo
Nation. The Navajo Nation is committed to the provision of quality rehabilitation
services to individuals with disabilites residing on or near the reservation.
Legislation impacting the lives of Navajo people with disabilities and other under
served populations needs to be amended so that better services can be provided.
Therefore, your positive responses to the recommendations offered here will be
certainly felt by Navajo people with disabilities.
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Chairman OwEgNs. Thank you.

I neglected to point out at the beginning of the hearing that your
entire written statements will be entered into the record as submit-
ted.

Let me begin, Miss Bennalley, by asking what kind of linkages
your program has with the State program. As you pointed out,
most of your popuiation resides in Arizona. What kind of linkages
does your special program for the Navajo Nation under section 130
have with the State rehabilitation programs?

Ms. BENNALLEY. In the past we have inplemented some VR
forms that the State of Arizona is using; the CSR system, the case
service reporting system that we have in place; we've requested
technical assistance; and we've requested staff development
through two Indian R&T centers, one out of the University of Ari-
zona and one at Northern Arizona University, where we get a lot
of our information relating to VR as a whole.

Like I said, our program——

Chairman OweNs. Are there any individuals or set of liaisons
who work back and forth on a regular basis between the two, the
State and——

Ms. BENNALLEY. The one person that I met again here this morn-
ing is Mr. Jim Griffith, who has been a State Director of DES and
VR. My administrators are the ones that have been in contact. I
more or less nrovide the vocational rehabilitation counseling serv-
ices at the level where people——

Chairman OweNs. You mentioned there are a number of other
rehabilitation services that weren’t available to the people served
by your program. Did I hear you correctly? Supported employment,
you said, was not available?

Ms. BENNALLEY. We don’t have access to supported employment,
independent living—In a way, out of our section 130 funds, we set
aside some to provide independent living services. But it’s not like
additional funding that we get through section 130. There are sec-
tion 130 meoneys that we obtain and we just set aside that to pro-
vide independent living services. Again, it’s section 130 funds for
VR.

Chairman OweNs. What concrete recommendations do you have
for us to correct that?

Ms. BENNALLEY. I believe one way is to put us at the State status
like the other trust territories, such as Guam, American Samoa,
DC, and the other——

Chairman Owens. So you don’t want more linkage with the
State program; you want more separation?

Ms. BENNALLEY. Not actual separation. We want to continue to
work with the State, with additional funds. Our tribe is growing,
and most of the Indian tribes are growing. I think more funds to
provide adequate services are necessary.

Chairman OweNs. You said most of the other tribes, the other
13, are using their money for substance abuse only. On what basis
do you make that statement?

Ms. BENNALLEY. ! have been to a number of conferences and
workshops in reference to—Like in Montana, where they provide
training. When they explain their programs—I guess there's a high

\
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prevalence of disability that they’re addressing within the different
reservations.

Chairman OwEeNs. You mean alcoholism and drug abuse—

Ms. BENNALLEY. Yes.

Chairman OWENS. [continuing] are the kinds of things that keep
people from getting jobs?

Ms. BENNALLEY. Yes, in a sense. I think with their lack of back-
ground or technical assistance information, they’'re unable to pro-
vide VR services to the other disabilities that exist within their res-
ervations. Indians are not the same. They have difficulties and dif-
ferent needs and a different set of rules within their own communi-
ty. Some of them are large Indian tribes and some of them are just
bands. Mainly, most of those are in the western section of the coun-
try.

Chairman OwENs. Mr. Gutierrez, you said that very few Hispan-
ics seek services, and you cited in your testimony that, out of 1,200
served, only eight were Hispanic——

Mr. Gutierrez. Correct.

Chairman OWwWENS. [continuing] served by your program.

What kind of population are we talking about? The catchment
area served by your program includes what percentage of Hispan-
ics?

Mr. Gumierrez. It’s the State of Arizona.

Chairman OwEeNs. It’s the whole State of Arizona?

Mr. GuTierrez. Yes. What is supposed to happen in vocational
rehabilitation is that whenever a person becomes a client, they are
supposed to receive information of the client assistance program;
whenever a case is closed, a letter should be added to the informa-
tion letting them know that the client assistance program exists
and for them to contact them if they have a problem, or if they feel
their case is closed, and then for the reasons.

Chairman OwzNs. Is there any kind of outreach or public infor-
mation geared specifically to the Hispanic population?

Mr. Gurierrez. Yes, we have the client assistance program and
advocacy brochures that are in Spanish, also in braille. We pass
these out to vocational rehabilitation offices informing them that
they should pass these out to the appropriate clients.

Chairman Owens. Is there anything on television or radio to
help people know that the program exists?

Mr. Gutierrez. The lack of funding so far has kept us from doing
it, but we have thought of things like that. But it hasn’t been done
yet.

Chairman OweNs. Miss Bennalley, you said that clients must ini-
tiate the effort to get help, but they don’t know about the program.
What do you do to let them know about the program?

Ms. BENNALLEY. We provide PR information through the radio
station that is on the reservation, which the signal reaches as far
as outlying areas of the reservation. Counselors go out at the very
local level, which we call chapters, on a monthly basis. We go to
the schools to provide information in reference to vocational reha-
bilitation. The various organizations that exist within communities
make periodical rounds to provide that information. We have fliers
that we can send out. It has been established.

.'Q"
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Rehabilitation centers off the reservation will make referrals to
the six offices that we have on the reservations to seek services.
And a lot of it is done bilingual, so that if disabled individuals have
no formal education, they are able to get the information from a
Navajo counselor.

The Hispanic community has its language written with ours, and
tChey’re initiating that pretty soon through the Navajo Community

ollege.

Chairman OwegNs. Mr. Gutierrez, you said you had a very nega-
tive and discouraging experience when you needed help with your
disability. That was 8 years ago, you said?

Mr. GuTierrez. Ten years ago.

Chairman Owens. Would you say the conditions have changed so
that that kind of situation is unlikely to happen now?

Mr. GuTierrez. Yeah. For one thing, the injury was in 1982, and
there was no client assistance program until 1984, so I think
that——

Chairman OweNs. The client assistance program has changed it,
you say?

Mr. GuTiERREZ. It started, it began.

Chairman OweNs. You felt that the problem with your situation
was that the person was hostile toward you because you were a
particular ethnic group. Is there a greater sensitivity and any
change in personnel that would lessen the likelihood that that kind
of treatment would be experienced by anybody who had the same
problems?

Mr. Gurtierrez. I know that nowadays, when I get some calls
from some clients, it is still happening, but not necessarily because
they are members of a certain race or ethnicity. There are good
counselors and not so good counselors.

Chairman Owens. What are we doing to make sure we have
more good counselors and fewer bad counselors? Is there something
in the system that you would recommend should be changed? Is it
the way we train people, or do we have a mixture in terms of the
ethnicity of the personnel? Is there any \"ederal legislation that
could help to correct the situation?

Mr. GuTierrez. I think a lot of times, once the client is informed
of his or her rights, they're aware they have more equality in the
process as far as vocational rehabilitation goes. I think that assists
clients and gives them empowerment.

Chairman Owens. I thark both of you for your testimony.

1 yield to Mr. Pastor for questions.

Mr. Pastor. Just a couple of questions for Miss Bennalley. You
talk about the lack of interpreters. I'm assuming the problem is
signage from English to Navajo, that you're talking about Indian
language interpretation?

Ms. BENNALLEY. No, what I meant by interpretation, was ad-
dressing the needs of the hearing-impaired and the deaf. Our as-
sistant director is a sign language interpreter throughout the
whole reservation. There were some people that were trained but
they’re not consistently utilizing those skills to improve further. As
I said, it was American sign language or deaf interpreter to whom
I was addressing.
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Mr. Pastor. My question relates to the sign language. Is it trans-
lation from English to Navajo, or Navajo to English? Is that where
the problem is, that we don’t have enough Navajos that can sign
from English to Navajo?

Ms. BENNALLEY. I believe the deaf population that I've worked
with in the vast, most of them, when they go to ASTB, they just
pick up the English language and, therefore, they don’t necessarily
have a Navajo language to sign. It’s mainly English to English
when we're interpreting.

Mr. Pastor. You told us that Navajo is not written but there is
an attempt nowv to write Navajo. I'm assuming that there are a
number of elementary schools on the Navajo Nation that any hear-
ing-impaired child or deaf child, if they had a teacher that could
sign in Navajo, that they would stay home and continue to learn
about their culture and be with the family.

Ms. BENNALLEY. That is true.

Mr. Pastor. So I'm assuming you're telling us that if there was a
program that would train a teacher to learn signage in Navajo, this
1s so;nething the Navajo Nation would be very appreciative of as a

oal?
g Ms. BENNALLEY. Exactly. I believe that those are some of the
goals that we're looking for. In order to do that, I believe the
Navajo people have to initiate that, with support from the State, or
even the Federal Government, to make that possible.

Mr. Pastor. Both of you have talked about the problem that
many view VR with suspicion. You talked about the cultural differ-
ence between the Arizona VR and the Navajo VR. Could you give
me some examples or some recommendations of what could be
done to make the Arizona VR more sensitive or more caring?
Maybe that’s not your evaluation of them.

Ms. BENNALLEY. I always say, when I'm talking about the Nava-
jos—and I'm sure it’s the same with other Indian tribes—that
there are three groups within an Indian group, or maybe the same
with other ethnic groups. One, there’s a traditional that has never
gotten a formal education, someone who speaks their native lan-
guage as their tirst. There is another end of the spectrum where
children speak only English and really don’t have any knowledge
of what the Navajo language is. But if you look at them, they look
Indian. They look Navajo. There’s a middle group who have gone
to college and have some traditional values that they were raised
with, so they more or less go back and forth between the two cul-
tures.

It all depends on which one you’re dealing with. So, as VR coun-
selors, we have to have an idea of where to star.. If we look at
somebody that’s English-speaking and has no—maybe very limited
in Navajo tradition—it would be easier for them to work with. The
traditional Navajo have their own set of work ethics. If you want to
achieve something bad enough, you're going to go out and do that.
And that’s the same with everybody.

From my counseling perspective, you have to address it like that.
If you're going to be in poverty, if you don’t want to get out, you
might as well just be there. Or if you want to get out of it, what
can you do? You have resources; you have a mind, you have eyes,
you have ears, or if they're in a chair, I'm sure they’ll be able to
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get out of that predicament or whatever. There are a lot of issues
you have to address and a lot of steps that go along the way. Just
be more sensitive to the various needs and the barriers, just lock at
the individual as another human being and see what types of serv-
ices are needed so that they can go from step one to step two.

M- Pastor. Mr. Gutierrez, the same question. You said that
people view VR with suspicion.

Mr. Gutierrez. Yeah. I think some of my minority clients view it
as a dominant culture program. They have tried other programs
and have failed, so they're not sure exactly how this program will
serve them. They have concerns going into the program. And when
things start going wrong, of course, it’s like a continuation of other
things that have happened to them before that were not successful.

Mr. Pastor. You both talk about staff development. Ms. Bennal-
ley, are you talking about staff development within the Arizona
VR or the Navajo VR? With respect to staff development in your
contexi, Mr. Gutierrez, are you saying ihat we need more commu-
nity-based organizations to have peopl- on staff that can be advo-
cates?

Mr. Gutierrez. That, and also—I'm not sure of the numbers, but
possibly the hiring of more minorities into the vocational rehabili-
tation field might be an answer.

Mr. PasTtor. Do you feel right now that probably you don’t have
enough representation of the various——

Mr. GuTierrez. Right.

Ms. BENNALLEY. What | meant by staff development is training
deaf interpreters on the reservation so that they can provide inter-
preter services; more or less upgrading the skills of workers.
Within the Navajo VR, we have noticed staff worked an average of
5 years or even more. A lot of them continue to receive their educa-
tion and do cutreach training from the various universities, along
the lines of rehabilitation, counseling and those kinds of areas.
This means that the counselors can continue to work and at the
same time attain their bachelor’s or master’s degree.

Mr. Pastor. What intrigued me was the recommendation that
the Navajo Nation and other tribes receive the status of a “State.”
I guess that's something that I can pursue with you, Mr. Chairman,
because I don't quite understand the recommendation.

Chairman OweNs. That’s not the first time we've heard that re-
que-=t.

Mr. Pastor. Obviously, because of the Navajo Nation and other
Indian tribes in Arizona, it's something that I would like to pursue
with you and then maybe you can give me some recommendations.

That closes my questioning of this panel, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman OweNs. We want to thank both of you for being here
today. We will make use of your comments and testimony. Thank
you.

Ms. BENNALLEY. Thank you.

Chairman OweNs. Our next panel consists of Mr. James Griffith,
the Administrator of the Rehabilitation Services Administration,
Phoenix, Arizona,, Miss Jill Crawford from Phoenix; and Miss
Peniel Cronin, also from Phoenix. Please be seated.

Miss Crawford is not here yet, so we will proceed with Mr. Grif-
fith’s testimony. As I said before, your written statement will be
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entered into the record in its entirety. You may use your oral testi-
mony to either highlight it or make other comments.
Mr. Griffith.

STATEMENTS OF JAMES B. GRIFFITH, ADMINISTRATOR, REHA-
BILITATION SERVICES ADMINISTRATION, ARIZONA DEPART-
MENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY; AND PENIEL CRONIN, DIREC-
TOR OF MARKETING AND PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT, ARIZONA
BRIDGE TO INDEPENDENT LIVING (ABIL)

Mr. GriFFITH. Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Pastor, my name is Jim Griffith
and I am the Administrator of Arizona’s Rehabilitation Services
Administration. We are located within the Department of Econom-
ic Security.

I have worked in the Public Vocational Rehabilitatic n Program
for over 22 years, starting as a counselor and serving in a variety
of roles during that period. I have been the State Administrator
since October of 1985. I am also an active member of the Council of
State Administrators of Vocational Rehabilitation, CSAVR, and
have served as a committee chairman, as treasurer of that organi-
zation, and most recently, as its president for 16 months, ending in
November of 1991.

The Public Vocational Rehabilitation Program, enacted into Fed-
eral law in 1920, provides a wide range of services which are specif-
ically directed to creating employment opportunities for eligible in-
dividuals with mental and/or physical disabilities who are unable
to secure or maintain employment.

The State Rehabilitation Agency provides for and coordinates its
services in cooperation with public and private community-based
providers and facilities. States have also developed extensive
formal relationships in both the public and private sectors to ad-
dress consumer and service needs.

Examples of linkages developed by the Arizona Rehabilitation
Services Administration are as follows.

We have a cooperative agreement with the State’s Agency for
the Developmentally Disabled which transfers funds for services
and staffing and also provides funding for long-term supported em-
ployment for individuals with developmental disabilities.

We have an intergovernmental agreement with the Staie’s
Agency for Behavioral Health Services which transfers funds for
services and staffing and also provides funding for long-term sup-
ported employment for individuals who are seriously mentally ill.

We have a joint agreement with Goodwill Industries of Central
Arizona and the IBM Corporation to provide for computer pro-
gkr)almmer and data entry training programs for persons with dis-
abilities.

We have contracts with the McDonald's Corporation and with
Pizza Hut to provide training and supported employment.

We have a number of intergovernmental agreements with major
school systems throughout the State which transfer funding for
services and staffing, which are the core of our school-to-work tran-
sition program.
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We have an intergovernmental agreement with the University of
Arizona's Rehabilitation Counselor Educatior Program to facilitate
and assure training programs to prepare competent professionals

Y

to provide services in all facets of the public rehabilitation pro-

am.

Lastly, we are currently in the process of finalizing an intergov-
ernmental agreement with the Arizona State School for the Deaf
and Blind to transfer funds which will also increase rehabilitation
services for individuals whe are deaf, blind, or deaf/blind in our
school-to-work transition program.

This is not an inclusive list but serves to illustrate the extensive
linkages with both the public and private sector developed by State
vocational rehabilitation programs throughout this country to
carry out their basic mission. It also serves to highlight the level of
creativity and energy which exists in the public rehabilitation pro-
gram.

The Arizona Rehabilitation Services Administration is also
aware of its responsibility to address the needs of the State’s cul-
turally-diverse population. We have longstanding ties, as was men-
tioned, with the Navajo Nation and with other American Indian
tribes in the State, whom we have assisted in the development of
vocational rehabilitation service programs and to whom we have
provided outreach.

I might add also that we have staff who are designated at our
midmanagement level to serve as ongoing liaison for the Intertrib-
a] Council and the State, as well as the Navajo rehabilitation pro-
gram.

We continue to provide special training on the unique vocational
rehabilitation needs of minorities. In June of this year, our annual
conference, which is in Tucson, will have as its theme ‘‘Rehabilita-
tion in a Culturally Rich Environment.” The agenda for th’s con-
ference provides for a series of workshops which focus on cultural
and minority issues in rehabilitation.

These examples are reflective of the Rehabilitation Act, which is
one of the most comprehensive and well-balanced pieces of legisla-
tion in the field of human services. The Act embodies the necessary
elements for successful rehabilitation services through a nation-
wide network of public and private community-based service pro-
viders. It is this balanced approach which has enabled millions of
persons with disabilities to move from dependency and income
maintenance programs into employment and productivity. The
public rehabilitation program has created the opportunity for mil-
lions of our Nation’s citizens with disabilities to be invested and in-
volved in their local communities throughout this country.

The Vocational Rehabilitation Program has proven to be a cost-
effective program by assisting persons with disabilities to increase
their earning capacity and to F2come taxpaying citizens. It has also
freed family members to work and has reduced or eliminated de-
pendency on welfare payments, public health services, and other
social services.

The public rehabilitation program has been in existence for over
70 years and, throughout its history, it has been flexible and re-
sponsive to change. The Rehabilitation Act is a vital and living
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piece of legislation which has been amended, when required, to re-
spond to changes through the years.

It is my hope that this reauthorization will be one in which the
many views on the Rehabilitation Act can be balanced by a truly
objective analysis of the success of the public rehabilitation pro-
gram. Through a balanced dialogue, reasonable, responsible and
progressive changes can occur which address the legitimate con-
cerns of all persons with disabilities.

We in the public program recognize that the program can be im-
proved to better serve the needs of our country’s citizens with dis-
abilities, and we are committed to that end.

nderscore that commitment, I would like to state the four
rinciples endorsed by the Council of State Administrators in
support of the reauthorization of the Act.

One, we support statutory provisions which provide for effective
and meaningful involvement of consumers with disabilities in all of
the critical areas that impact rehabilitation service delivery and
the rehabilitation process.

Two, we support provisions which mandate and assure effective-

ained and highly competent persons to provide services in all
facets of the public rehabilitation program.

Thirdly, we support provisions which ensure that employment is
the major goal of the public rehabilitation program, while also rec-
ognizing that independent living services and supported employ-
ment are essential and lead to independence for many people with
disabilities.

Finally, we support provisions which ensure that State rehabili-
tation agencies are the viable, accountable, and effectively man-
aged center of a service delivery system of public rehabilitation
services.

Mr. Chairman, I believe the reauthorization of the Rehabilitation

ct is crucial i i I

, you and other members of the subcommittee
played such a key role in formulating, is a federally-mandated act
that guarantees employment opportunities to those persons with
disabilities who are otherwise qualified.

The Vocational Rehabilita
the achievement o i

e provision of technical assistance
on program access, physical access to jobs, technology, and rehabili-
tation engineering services which facilitate job placement.

The ADA will vastly expand opportunities for all Americans
with disabilities. It is vital that the Rehabilitation Act be reauthor-
ized so that the Vocational Rehabilitation Program can assist
people with disabilities to fully realize the promise of this land-
mark legislation.

I would also add that Arizona, I believe, is one of the few States
that has established an office at the Governor’s level for the Amer-
icans with Disabilities Act.

In closing, Mr. Chairman, it is estimated that the State rehabili-
tation agencies are only able to serve one out of every 20 people

[}
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who are eligible for such services. The General Accounting Office
gives figures of one in 13.

Recognizing these are difficult fiscal times, I am still deeply con-
cerned. Can we, as a Nation, afford tc exclude millions of people
with disabilities from receiving services? The cost of exclusion is
far too great, in my judgment, in both human and economic terms.

Funding for State rehabilitation programs is not only inadequate
to meet the need, but is further impacted by the increasing costs of
services and increased overall costs for serving individuals wich the
more severe disabilities.

Therefore, I urge the maximum possible level of resources be
committed to providc rehalilitation services through the State-Fed-
eral partnership in this reauthorization process. The rehabilitation
program, with adequate funding, is the most effective and cost-effi-
cient approach to meeting the needs of the Nation’s citizens with
disabilities.

I would like to thank you very much for the opportunity to
appear before the subcommittee today to speak in support of the
reauthorization of the Rehabilitation Act.

[The prepared statement of James Griffith follows:]

STATEMENT OF JAMES B. GRIFFITH, ADMINISTRATOR, REHABILITATION SERVICES
ADMINISTRATION, ARiZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY

Mr. Chairman and Members of the subcommittee, I would like to thank you for
the opportunity to appear before the subcommittee today to speak in support of the
Reauthorization of the Rehabilitation Act.

My name is James Griffith and I am the Administrator of Arizona's Rehabilita-
tion Services Administration. We are located within the Department of Economic
Security (DES). I have worked in the Public Vocational Rehabilitation Program for
over 22 years, starting as a counselor and serving in a variety of roles during that
period. I am also an active member of The Council of State Administrators of Voca-
tional Rehabilitation (CSAVR) and have served as a committee chairman, as tress-
urer and, most recently, as president of that organization for a period of 16 months
ending in November of 1991.

The Public Vocational Rehabilitation Program, enacted into Federal law in 1920,
provides a wide range of services which are specifically directed to creating employ-
ment opportunities for eligible individuals with mental and/or physical disabilities
who are unable to secure or maintain employment.

The State Rehabilitation Agency provides for and coordinates its services in coop-
eration with public and private community-based providers and facilities. States
have als developed extensive formal relationships i both the public and private
sentars to address consumer and service needs.

Examples of linkages developed by the Arizona Rehabilitation Services Adminis-
tration are as follows:

Cooperative agreement with the State’s Agency for the Developmentally Disabled
which transfers funds for services and staffing, and provides funding for long-term
supported employment for individuals with developmental disabilities.

Intergovernmental agreement with the State’s Agency for Behavioral Heaith
Services which transfers funds for services and staffing, and provides funding for
long-term supported employment for individuals who are seriously mentally ill.

Joint agreement with Goodwill Industries of Central Arizona and the IBM Corpo-
ration to provide for computer pro&l;ammer and data entry training programs.

Contracts with the McDonald's Corporation and Pizza Hut to provide training and
supported employment.

Intergovernmental agreements with major school systems in the State which
transfer funding for services and staffing for school-to-work transition program.

Intergovernmental agreement with the University of Arizona’s Rehabilitation
Counselor Education Program to facilitate and assure training programs to prepare
(F:;)mpetent professionals to provide services in all facets of the Public Rehabilitation

rogram.

27

"l
it




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

24

Intergovernmental agreement with the Arizona State School for the Deaf and
Blind (ASDB) to transfer funds which will provide for increased vocational rehabili-
tation services for individuals who are deaf, blind, or deaf/blind in our school-to-
work transition program.

This is not an inclusive list but serves to illustrate the extensive linkages with
both the public and private sector developed by State Vocational Rehabilitation Pro-
grams to carry out their basic mission. It also serves to highlight the level of crea-
tivity and energy which exists in the Public Rehabilitation Program throughout this
Nation.

The Arizona Rehabilitation Services Administration is also aware of its responsi-
bility to address the needs of the State’s culturally-diverse population. We have
longstanding ties with the Navajo Nation and other American Indian tribes in the
State, ~vhom we have assisted in the developmen* of vocational rehabilitation serv-
ices and to whom we have provided outreach.

We continue to provide special training on the unique vocational rehabilitation
needs of minorities. In June of this year, our annual conference will have as itg
theme ‘‘Rehabilitation in a Culturally Rich Environment.” The agenda for this con-
ference provides for a series of workshops which focus on cultural and minority
issues.

These examples are reflective of the Rehabilitation Act which is one of the most
comprehensive and well-balanced pieces of legislation in the field of human services.
The Act embodies the necessary elements for successful rehabilitation services
through a nationwide network of public and private community-based service pro-
viders. It is this balanced approach which has enabled millions of persons with dis-
abilities to move from dependency and income maintenance programs inte employ-
ment and productivity. The Public Rehabilitation Program has created the opportu-
nity for millions of our Nation’s citizens with disabilities to be invested and involved
in their local communities throughout this country.

The Vocational Rehabilitation Program has proven to be a cost-effective program
by assisting persons with disabilities to increase their earning capacity and to
become taxpaying citizens. It has also freed family members to work and has re-
duced or eliminated dependency on welfare payments, public health services, and
other social services.

The Public Rehabilitation Program has been in existence for over 70 years and,
throughout its history, it has been flexible and responsive to change. The Rehabili-
tation Act is a vital and living piece of legislation which has been amended when
required, to respond to changes through the years.

It is my hope that this reauthorization will be one in which the many views on
the Rehabilitation Act can be balanced by a truly objective analysis of the tremen-
dous success of the Public Rehabilitation Program. Through a balanced dialogue;
reasonable, responsible, and progressive changes can occur which address the legiti-
mate concerns of all persons with disabilities.

We in the Public Rehabilitation Program recognize ihat the program can be im-
proved to better serve the needs of our country’s citizens with disabilities and are
committed to that end.

To underscore that commitment, I would like to state the four basic principles en-
; rsed by the CSAVR in support of the reauthorization of the Act. They are as fol-
ows:

1. Statutory provisions which provide for effective and meaningful involvement of
consumers with disabilities in all critical areas of rehabilitation service delivery and
the rehabilitation process;

2. Provisions which mandate and assure effectively-trained and highly competent
persons to provide services in all facets of the Public Rehabilitation Program. (The
extent to which the mission of successfully rehabilitating eligible persons with dis-
abilities is met relies on a corps of caring and able service providers throughout the
United States.);

3. Provisions which ensure that “employment” is the major goal of the Public Re-
habilitation Program, while recognizing that independent living services lead to
and/or support employment and/or independence for many people with disabilities

use many clients need these independent living services before they can engage
in gainful employment; and

4. Provisions which ensure that State rehabilitation agencies are the viable, a~-
countable, and effectively-managed center of a delivery system of public rehabilita-
tion services. (It is imperative tnat we have a streamlined, responsive, client-cen-
tered system in order to meet the needs of the community.)

1
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Mr. Chairman, I believe the Reauthorization of the Rehabilitation Act is crucial
to the success of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

The Americans with Disabilities Act which you and other members of the subcom-
mittee played such a key role in formulating, is a federally-mandated act that guar-
antees ilql loyment opportunities to those persons with isabilities who are other-
wise qualified.

The " Tocational Rehabilitation Program is absolutely essential to the achievement
of the vision and the goals of the A. It is the only nationwide program with the
singular goal of assisting persons with disabilities to become qualified for employ-
ment. The Vocational Rehabilitation Program is also key to the education of em-
ployers about the ADA and to the provision of technical assistance on program
access, physical access to jobs, technology, and rehabilitation engineering services
which facilitate job placement.

The ADA will vastly expand opggrtunitiee for all Americans with disabilities. It is
vital that the Rehabilitation Act be reauthorized so that the Vocational Rehabilita-
tion Proiram can assist people with disabilities to fully realize the promise of this
landmark legislation.

In closing, Mr. Chairman, it is estimated that State rehabilitation agencies are
able to serve only one out of every 20 people who are eligible for such services (the
General Accounting Office’s figures are one in 13).

Recognizing these are difficult fiscal times I am still dee ly concerned. Can we, as
a Nation, afford to exclude millions of people with disabilities from receiving serv-
ices? The cost of exclusion is far tvo great in both economi and human terms.

Funding for State vocational rehabilitation programs is not only inadequate to
meet the need but is further impacted by the increasing costs of services and in-
creased overall costs for serving individuals with the more severe disabilities.

Therefore 1 urge the maximum l}zossible level of resources be committed to provid-
ing rehabilitation services chrough the State-Federal partnership in this reauthor-
ization process. The rehabilitation program, with adequate funding, is the most ef-
fective and cost-efficient approach to meeting the needs of the Nation’s citizens with
disabilities.

Thank you again for the opportunity to testify before your subcommittee.

Chairman OweNs. Thank you.

Miss Cronin. )

Ms. CRONIN. My name is Peniel Cronin, and I'm the Director of
Marketing and Program Development for Arizona Bridge to Inde-
pendent Living, ABIL. ABIL is the independent living center that
has served the Phoenix and Central Arizona area since 1981.

Very clearly, we have seen the need for employability programs.
One of the uppermost goals of the Americans with Disabilities Act
is to end the phenomenal 73 percent unemployment or underem-
ployment rate among persons with disabilities. This is expect=d to
be ‘accomplished by ending the discriminatory employment prac-
tices and breaking down architectural, transportation, communica-
tion barrier that have historically been the reasons why people
with disabilities have not worked. But yet, if you look back, these
were the same goals of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The unem-
ployment rate then was approximately the same as it is now.

Why, after 19 years, have we continued to have such a high un-
employment rate among working age adults with disabilities? Our
experience as an independent living center very clearly shows that
there are three core parts in answering that question of why the
persistence in the high unemployment rate.

There still are environmental, attitudinal, and communication
barriers that exist. These are very clear. There is also a major gap,
we believe, in the delivery system which is aimed at assisting indi-
viduals with disabilities in their transitioning and resocialization
process. Very clearly and simply stated, we believe that programs,

for instance, such as vocational rehabilitation, simply do not have

the resources, and often the staff training and development, that is
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necessary to provide such things as peer counseling, peer advocacy,
spouze and family support, independent living skills instruction,
home modification, if that is necessary, so a person can get out
their own front door, socialization and recreation, resocialization
programs, and self-advocacy awareness and empowerment of the
individual.

We also believe there is a third part, in that the life outlook of
individuals with disabilities themselves can be one of the greatest
barriers of all. We have seen this time and again in our experience
«$ an independent living center. If a person has spent a lengthy
<mount of time in the medical rehabilitation process following a
+raumatic accident or following the onset of a disabling condition,
11any times that individual loses contact with the social main-
siream. They lose the skills that are necessary to reintegrate into
that mainstream. This is one of the most overlooked parts in the
current process of readying a person for employability.

In the process of losing socialization skills and not being part of
the mainstream, many times the caregivers that are part of the
medical rehabilitation process simply have not had a background
in independent living philosophy. They are not available in the
transitioning process. They simply do not have the skills and the
ability to be a healthy role model, a peer model, to the individuals
in transition, in answering questions during the transitioning proc-
ess, such as: “What am I going to do for a living, should I consider
myself retired, will my family and friends still accept me, how am I
viewed, will I be able to drive my own car, are there accessible
buses?” There are a whole group of questions that must be an-
swereflffor the individual who is trying to redesign and redefine,
their life.

With this diminished sense of self-sufficiency and reduced social-
ization skills, the new set of challenges presented by the disability
can literally seem like a maze that would be impossible to navigate
through without help. It is unrealistic to expect the individual who
has gone through that to immediately be vocationally ready and be
ready to be reintegrated into the job market.

We believe that any program, therefore, that undertakes the em-
ployment readiness of persons with disabilities must have a holistic
approach. That is something that simply is not part of the picture
right now. Programs must view the whole life picture, the chal-
lenges of the person with the disability, the family concerns, the
employment-related issues, and the community integration goals.

In our program for employment readiness, we deal with the real
life issues of having a disability. We provide peer counseling and
peer advocacy along with and tandem with the full range of com-
munity integration services. We promote self-advocacy and commu-
nity advocacy, the individual empowerment aspect, through ADA
training and legislative training. A part of our program at this
point is really to strike out and to develop as many employment-
related resources as possible.

One of the things that we continually have problems with is
having the funding that is necessary to carry out this program on
an ongoing basis. What we have found over and again is that if an
individual has not gone through the resocialization and life redirec-
tion process, they simply are not ready to go through any kind of




vocational rehabilitation. They first have to get their own life
straightened out and learn how to deal with the disability before
they can go into the employment arena. We feel that's definitely-
been a missing link at this point in time.

Very clearly, our recommendation in the reauthorization of the
Rehabilitation Act would be that independent living centers and
others dealing directly with the whole life issues of individuals
with disabilities need to have the funds to carry out readiness-for-
employment programs, such as peer advocacy and peer mentoring,
community integration, programs establishing a working relation-
ship with employment sources and resources, and doing outreach
with vocational rehabilitation and other agencies that would go on
in the entire chain of events to have vocational readiness for the
individual.

The independent living philosophy and input simply cannot con-
tinue to be left out of the vocational rehabilitation equation. It's
not working.

Thank you for the opportunity to present my testimony.

{The prepared statement of Peniel Cronin follows:]
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Readiness for EmpioyAbility Program (REAF)

PROBLEMS BEING ADDRESSED

One of the uppermost goals of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is toend the
phenamenal 73 percent unemployment funderemployment rate among persans with disabili-
ties. This is expected to be accamplished by ending discriminatory employment pradices and

breaking down the architectural, transportation and communication barriers that ave histari-
cally been critical reasans why pecple with disabilities have not worked.

These have been the same goels of the Rehab. Act of 19731 Why then, after nineteen
yoars, has the unemployment rate among pecple with cisabilities remained so high? Gur
experience suggests that the answer is multifaceted but has three core parts:

1} There are still environmental, attitudinal, policy /program and communication barriers
which inhibit competitive employment and community integration.

2) Thereisa major gap in theservice ddivery systems which are aimed at assisting individu-
a's with disabilities in their transitioning/ re-socialization process. Simply stated, these pro-
grams, e.g Voc Rehab, donat have rescurces to address needs related to peer counseling,
peer advocacy, spouse & family suppart, independent living skills instruction, a hame moxdifi-
cation, socialization & recreation, or self-advocacy awareness.

3) Thelife cutlock of people with disabilities can be oneof the greatest barriers of all. When
an individual has spent up toa year, ar moxe, ina medical rehabilitation process or has suf-
fered the onset of a disabiing condition, he/she frequently loses contact with the social main-
stream. Further, thosewhoarenat part of @ camprehensive re-sodalization program can be
directed onto a path of dependence on entitlement programs and became very “systematized”.

The process of becoming “systenatized” is - _astandable Many of the caregivers
who are part of the medical rehabilitation process donot have a background in independent
living. Mareover, these individuals are not reily available during the transition into seif-
sufficendy, nor do they provide the healthy peer-modeling and advacacy which can help the
persan in transition answer such questions as:

What will 1 dofar aliving ar should [ consider myself retired? Will my family and
friends still accept me? WAll [be able todrivemy ear.... are there accessible buses? |
wrnder if 1 will be able tolive on my own? How do 1 assert myself when | encoun
texr disqrimination or other barriers? How will 1 gotomavies or ballgames or..?
Am [ still attractive?

With a diminished sense of self-suffidency and sodalization skills, this new set of life
challenges can seem like a maze which would be impossible tonavigate. Given these circum-
stances, it is unrealistic to expect the individual to immediately be assirmilated intothe job
market This is the critical point at wi . sh peer advocacy and a full-range of community inte-
gration services must be available ta the person with a disability and his/her family. The

1
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family cannct be overlocked because it 1s the farruly as a whole which must deal with the
changes in lifestyle, the new interpersonal dynamics, the * grieving” process, the life redirec-
tion goals, the re-sodalization process, etc

Therefore, any program which undertakes the employment readiness of people with
disabilities must have a whdlisticapproach. It must view the whde-life picture challenges of
the individual with the disability, family concerns, employment-related issues and the com-
munity integration gaals. In the absence of this approach true employment-readiness is not
achieved and the unemployment rate amang adults with disabilities will remain at an unac
ceptably high level.

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:

Introdudiorr The Readiness for EmployAbility Program (REAP) deals with the every
day, real-life issues of having a disability. It was designed to be the missing link between
medical rehabilitation and competitive employment. REAP is an innovative empioyment-
readiness and job generation program for persons with severe disabilities. It is based an the
fundamentals of 1) providing peer advocacy/ mentaring in tandem with a full range of com-
munity integration services, 2) promoting self and community advocacy through ADA and
legislative trainings, and 3) developing numerous employment options as a means of ad-
dressing the high unemployment amaong adults with disahilities.

: In broad terms, Arizona's temperate dimate attracts a
higher proportion of individuals with disabilities: while our State ranks 29th in overall popula
tion, werank 17th in population of persons with disabilities. Further, 8,000 Arizonans become
disabled every year (Source 1980 U'S. Census). Regarding our specific service area, there are
188,800 adults with disabilities in Maricopa County, induding an estimated 12,000 whecichair
users (Source: Maricopa County Needs Assessment of 1989).

. Toveer persons with disabilities away fram the entitlement systems

Program Geoals:
and towards personal empowerment, competitive employment and full community participa-
tion; To guide an individual through the maze of re-sodialization challenges encountered after
the onset of a disability.

Progra ves *¢ Provide full commumty ntegration services toworking age
adults with disabilities (induding spouse and family support) which will fadilitate employ-
ment-readiness.

** Train Peer Advecate Volunteers to assist and mentar REAP partiapants and family mem-
bers along their journey toindependence and econormc sdf-suffiaency.

**Pramate self-advocacy and greater community involvernent/leadership through A) legisla-
tive trainings and B) skills training related tothe ADA.

** Develop a network of business partners to open up employment options.
History:  ABIL began researching peer support programs around the country in the

-,
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mid-1980s. [n 1987-88, we developed a 32-hour curriculum for training Peer Advocate Yolun-
teers {PAVs). PAVs are individuals whohave successfully navigated through their own dis-
ability-related , life-readjustment 1ssues and are mainstreamed intotheir own communities.
During 1989 we conducted cur first training class. Six PAVs were graduated and have beaome
thecare group for testing, evaluating end modifying our program. The core group, plus an
additional 10 PAV graduates, aliow us to render services beyond staff capabilities, ensure an
individualized, quality-intensive re-sodalization program for each consumer, and keep pro-
gram costs more manageable in the long run.

Our PAVs are now a comerstone to our community integration and re-sodalization
services, Each one is “buddied” with about 4-6 consumers-in-transition. They provide peer
ccunselingf advocacy in areas such as self-esteem, adjustment to disability, transportation,
housing, cammunity resources, interpersonal relationships and sexuality. The training has
evdved into a 45-hour currisulum and we have monthly PAV suppart groups, facilitated by
our Program Coordinater, which invdve aconsumer staffings, problem salving, ideainter-
change and continuing education.

Since the passage of the ADA, ABIL has been “re-visiomng” it's community integration
program base and peer advocacy efforts totie intothe employment arena. The ADA presents
unprecedented opportunities to address the barriers to employment and community integra-
tion. For the first time, our program indudes definitelinkages to employment options. We
have witnessed the power of peer advocacy and we have developed a solid base of commmunity
integration programs. REAP is the culmination of our efforts and through this innovative,
hybrid program maodel, we propose to tackle the phenomenal unemplioyment among adults
with disabrlities.

ACTIVITY PLAN NARRATIVE

REAP is multi-facted in its approach because our experience has shown that there1s no
successful assembly line approach to the life redirection process. As such, the primary prin-
ciplesin cur program planring have centered around service flexibility and creative options
for employment, skills training, continuing education and community valunteerism/advo-
cacy. An Dllustration of the REAP program s Attached.

Program ¢ 2 Means for accomplishing
thisindude 1) dang program announcements and ps in ABIL's monthly newsletter
which goes out to around 3800 individuals with disabilities, cther community service agendes,
private businesses and governmental service providers, 2) sending out Information Releases
3) Conducting in-service meetings with referral sources, eg., Voc Rehab counselors 4) Net-
warking with other service agendes to ensure greater coordination in service delivery and
uninterupted referrals inio REAP, and 5) Development of linkages to hospital rehabilitation
units and rehab spedalists for early intervention through matching a PAV with a newly dis-

abled person.

Provision of Community Integration Services: Since we providea full range of commu-
nity integration services, as outlined in the Nustration of REAP companents, these tasks will
require a coordinated effort of many staff members within our Community Integration Unit.
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Therange of services provided through REAP include: A) peer advocacy / mentaring via
trained Peer Advocate Valunteers (PAVs), B) spouse and family support counseling ©)
Independent Living Kkills Instruction, D) need-specific and cross disahitity support groups,
eg., wamen's, spinal cord injuries, young adults in the school-to-cammunity / wark transition,
post-palioand PAV meetings, E) home modifications to increase accessibility and self-suffi-
dency - we have completed over 300 hame madifications since 1987, F) sodalization & recre-
ation programs, G) emplayer/co-worker sensitivity trainings, and H) self-advocacy instruc-
tion. The Peer Advocacy Valunteer activities which are an integral part of REAPwere dis-
cussed on page 2.

Development o i xhe LI ptoomes It is antidpated
that REAP partidpants will flow into cne or mare of six major categaries of program out-
comes. 1) 30-35% into the JTPA program, 2) 10% referred back to Voc Rehaly 3} 15-20% into
community valunteerism, perhaps for wark experience in preparation of competitive employ-
ment, 4) 15-25% intothe netwark of corporate employers or other employment options, 5) 5-
10% into continuing education at a post-secondary institution, and 6) 15-20% will be given
assistance to enable a significant transition toward independent living,

* JTPA Prograrn - ABIL has formed a collaborative partnership with a vocational
placement agency Cccupational and Career Services, Inc. (OCS) is a private vocational
counseling and placernent company which has assisted over 2000 adults with disahilities to
regain occupational productivity since 1975. OCS will benefit our dients through providing
recruttment, eligibility screening, intake interviews, job seeking skills training, labor market
research, individual career coaching, placement services, work-site accommaodations and
placement fdllow-up. In conjundion with our partner, we have responded to a Department of
Education RFP for Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) menies. This would provide opportu-
nities for REAP partidpants to receive basic skills training, remedial and advanced education,
On-the-Job traming, support servicss { items which wouid fadlitate job readiness, ie, a hair cut,
an adaptive aid, glasses, etc) and other services. According tothe RFP, we wauld also be
able towark with the displaced hoamemaker spouse. This 1s of tremendous benefit when
viewing the finandal stahility of the family as a whdlel

* Network of Corporate Employers & Other Employment Options - Innovatively,
ABIL is building a network of corparate partners with which we will exchange Technical
Assistance Services ( relating to accessibility considerations under the ADA) for i) employee
vaunteerism - as peer advocates/ mentars, it} work place re-adjustment tramning and/or On-
the-Job traiming, and i) on-gaing finandal support for the REAP program. We are aware that
the current recession complicates the placement of persons with severe disabihties However,
since the employment provisions of the ADA will take affect starting July 1992, larger employ-
ers will be compelled to extend equal opportunities to persons with disabilities. The REAP
program will benefit potential employers in that each program partidpant will have received
comprehensive assistance in his/her re-sodalization process, the necessary community inte-
gration services, family suppart and vocational guidance and services tofadlitate re-entrance
intothewcrkplace. Further, through our Technical Assistance Services, we will be able to
provide the input on warksite re-design and job accommedations necessary to enable a paten-
tial employer to offer employment to persons with disabilities  Our goal is to build a netwark
of 12-15 corporate partners, in a variety of industries and to direct appraximately 15-25% of the
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REAP partidipants through this employment-related channel. Other employment cptions
‘which will be explared in this project include entrepreneurial ventures, cottage industry pur-
suits and remate location emplayment via modem.

Further, in conjunction with Gateway Community College and the Arizona Governcr’s
Office on the ADA, ABIL has developed a curriculum far Architectural Compliance Survey&
Design. Our gaal is to channel a subset of REAP's participants through the accredited 3 haur
dass. The dass has profidency exams, field visits to various fadilities and requires students to
conduct actual compliance surveys and provide a recommendations repart. Further, Gateway
Crlege has agreed to cover the efforts and major costs related to developing other dasses
w 1ich would eventually be part of a two year Accessitility Specialist Program  These dasses
are beneficial to the individual with a disahility because they open up employment options,
such as private consulting  The comimunity-at-large benefits because these individuals can be
a valuable resource for accurate accessibility information. This is espedally impartant tathe
rural flesser-served comumunities, that will be covered under the REAP program

* Continuing Education, Community Vdunteerism and Significant Transitioning -
In line with our mission as an Independent Living Center, we provide services to individuals
who, generally, have severe disahilities. As such, we will not do "creaming" in order tomake
the overall employment numbers look good. The Readiness for Employ Ability Program is
designed to fadilitate the re-sodalization process which leads to personal empowerment,
community partidpation and advoeacy, and competivive employment. In over a decade of
service provision, we haveleamed that there can be many steps to achieve full self-suffi-
ciency. Therefore, wehaveincluded some steps, such as continuing educaticn, viable
vdunteerism and significant transitions toward independent living as positive program out-
comes.

INFORMATION ON ABIL:

Arizona Bridge ta Independent Living (ABIL) is one of two Independent Living Centers
{ILCs) serving Arizona’s population of 3.8 million people  There are over 400 ILCs nationwide
and weare one of the 10 largest. ABIL provided dired services to 1,670 consumers with dlis-

abilities in 1991 (up 42% from 1990) and responded to 3,000 infarmation & referral requests.
We started as a grass-rocts organization in 1978 and incorporated as a 501(e)(3) non-profit
agency in 1984. Our mission is to provide services that enatie persons with disabilities to
achieve the greatest level of independence possitie within thar own communities given thew
incdividual arcumstances .
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Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Mr. Griffith, would you like to comment on the last remarks of
Miss Cronin?

Mr. Grirria. Well, I would agree. I think that the programs,
particularly in Title VII of the Act, are woefully underfunded, and
have been since its inception. As a State director and as a member
of CSAVR, we strongly support increasing funding in Title VII to a
level that would address the needs that are being discussed here.

There’s no question that it’s essential that persons, especially
with severe disabilities, receive a holistic approach and that we be
able to link our services to provider networks in the community,
independent living centers and others, to get some of the peer
counseling and other services that are essential.

Added to that, we need to strengthen the ability of our own coun-
selor to recognize and to work in the holistic area, to look at the
impact of disabilities and recognize the need to plug into these
otker resources as well.

Chairman Owens. Would you care to address the ccmments of
Mr. Gutierrez and Miss Bennalley in terms of insensitivity, or even
prejudice, towards certain ethnic groups? Do you agree that this is
a problem? What kinds of things, in a State with such a diverse
population, has your agency undertaken to take that into consider-
ation?

Mr. GrirriTH. Well, obviously that would be unacceptable to me
if, in fact, that happened, and I suspect there are times when we're
not sensitive to cultural and ethnic issues. That’s something you
can always improve on and work on.

I think some of the things we’re doing—as I said, our State staff
conference this year is a 3-day conference to address specifically
the cultural diversity of the State and the rehabilitation issues that
affect minority groups. Two years ago we had our conference in
Flagstaff and we addressed the American Indian rehabilitation
issues. We have a person who is designated to work with the 20 or
21 tribes in the State. We have agreements with the Navajo
Nation, with the White River Apache Tribe, and with the Tohono
O’dham Tribe in the southern part of the State. We have worked in
the past with the Japapia Apache Tribe and also with the Gila
River Indian Tribe. So we’ve had an ongoing and extensive effort to
try to address the needs of the American Indian population in the
State, and we currently sit on the Intertribal Council to try to fa-
cilitate their access to the section 130 programs and to develop in-
terests in accessing those programs as well as the State rehabilita-
tion agency.

We have also just recently entered into an agreement, as I men-
tioned, with the University of Arizona for increasing counselor edu-
cation and training. We're trying to bring the university out into
the community to begin to work with our staff, and we are very
conscious of the need to bring in minority staff to be trained in the
professional aspects of delivering rehabilitation services. That was
a factor in the overall selection of individuals to participate in the
program.

I think the States could do a lot more. I think the State person-
nel division, which in this State is the focal point for all of our re-
cruitment cnd retention, could do a much better job of getting out

40




36

into the community and letting it be known with the various
groups, such as the Urban League and other organizations that
represent minority groups, about vocational rehabilitation as a pro-
fession and about other professions that are available in State gov-
ernment.

I know we have gone on campus at the University of Arizona
and at ASU on career days specifically for the purpose of recruit-
ing and letting people know about the availability of rehabilitation
as a profession. There's lots more we can do and we will continue
to try to provide ongoing training that sensitizes people. we will
continue to do recruitment of bilingual staff and minority staff to
serve our special populations.

Chairman OwEens. How big is your staff now?

Mr. GriFrFITH. It’s so hard to keep track any more, but I think
we're right at about 140 counselors total.

Chairman OwEens. About how many are bilingual?

Mr. GriFriTH. I honestly don't know, but I would certainly be
happy to provide that information to the subcommittee.

Chairman OwEeNs. About how many Native Americans?

Mr. GRIFFITH. Again, I didn't bring the figures specifically on the
number or percesage, but I know we employ a number of bilin-
gual staff thrsug - ut the State, and I certainly would be happy to
provide that {igv-e to the subcommittee in writing.

Chairr.in OweNns. Are you familiar with a program in your
neighbo; i..g State of New Mexico which provides for the training of
int<:ns and technicians who are not professionals but can go on to
become professionals”

Mr. GriFriTH. I'r- ;¢ . otally familiar with that. I think that’s
part < an overal' sest > 180 activity going on with the vari-
ous——

“hairman OWENS. Ivo, this is not part of the section 130 pro-
gram. It’s the State agency.

Mr. GriFs1 Yo, I'm not.

Chairman Gwens. You're not familiar with that?

Mr. GriFFitH. No, I'm not familiar with that.

Chairms - < weNs. What kind of outreach to the Nuavajos do you
have? Ycu rueationed you do have an outreach program.

Mr. GriFriTH. Actually, we've been involved with the Navajo
tribe for probably 16, 17 years. We started with them in terms of
establishing grants to assist them in starting up vocational reha-
bilitation services, and then, when section 130 dollars became avail-
able, they spun off and established their own separate rehabilita-
tion program.

The tribe is very large. I think it's 175,000-plus individuals. So
it's a large enough tribe to warrant its own vocational rehabilita-
tion program. For many years we continued to provide them man-
agement information systems. They linked to the State agency and
we did all of the processing of the case service reports and all of
their management information. They continue to be part of our
management team and are invited to participate in our regular
management team meetings and so on.

We have a liaison, as I said, out of Flagstaff, our manager in that
area, who works extensively with the tribe and is available for
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technical assistance, and has also been used by the regional office
to go in and assist in providing technical assistance.

When we had the supported employment grant, we also worked
extensively with the tribe to bring the concepts of supported em-
ployment and the changes that they entailed to the Navajo Tribe
as well. But essentially, they operate as a separate rehabilitation
program. We have a reciprocal agreement that anyone in the State
who is Navajo and wishes to be served in one or the other can
make that choice. We don’t restrict their access to either program.
They’re allowed to choose which of the programs they wish to par-
ticipate in.

Chairman Owens. In Miss Cronin’s written testimony she has
the following statement concerning the consumer population
served in Arizona: “In broad terms, Arizona’s temperate climate at-
tracts a higher proportion of individuals with disabilities; while our
State ranks 29th in overall population, we rank 17th in population
of persons with disabilities. Further, 8,000 Arizonans become dis-
abled every year. Regarding our specific service area, there are
188,000 adults with disabilities in Maricopa County, including an
estimated 12,000 wheelchair users.”

These are 1980 U.S. Census figures for the overall State, and
1989 figures from Maricopa County. Is this a trend, or do you feel
Arizona has some special problem in terms of an expanding popula-
tion of people with disabilities?

Mr. GrIFFITH. I'm not up on those specific figures, but I think
that is an accurate depiction of the general trend. I believe we see
many more students, for example, that come out here because of
the climate to attend the universities, and I think the climate is a
major factor for people with disabilities to gravitate to the State. In
addition, it’s a State that attracts elderly individuals because of its
climate and retirement communities and so on, and you see a
greater degree of disabilities among those individuals and popula-
tions as well. So I would say that that’s an accurate depiction of
the trend in the State; that we are seeing an influx disproportion-
ate to our population.

Chairman OWENS. Has your budget grown at the State level over
the last few years?

Mr. GriFriTH. No, it has not. In fact, I believe we've lost a little
ground in terms of the direct State-appropriated dollars. However,
we have gone out—as I indicated in my formal report—and entered
into agreements with a variety of agencies throughout the State to
transfer funds that we are using to pick up the difference between
what we can get through the State appropriation process and what
we need to fully match our available Federal dollars. But we're
looking this upcoming year at better than five million Federal dol-
lars that are yet unmatched in the State of Arizona.

Chairman OweNs. So you're not matching all the Federal funds
that you have?

Mr. CrirFiTH. This is the first year that we're lcoking at a poten-
tially serious problem. We're doing everything we can do from the
grassroots level to generate revenue from—We've got funds coming
from schools, from the State Industrial Commission, from the De-
velopmentally Disabled Program, from the State Behavioral Health
System. We are transferring moneys from our State-operated work-
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shop using production income there to legally match Federal dol-
lars. We're doing a variety of things to make sure that we don’t
ever revert the Federal dollars allocated to the State. But it is cre-
ating a very complex situation and putting us further and further
out on what we would term to be soft money as opposed to those
dollars which are directly appropriated through the State legisla-
ture.

Chairman Owens. Ms. Cronin, do you feel Arizona is a consumer-
friendly Sta ¢ with respect to services to people with disabilities?

Ms. CroN1w. I feel that certain segments of the State are more
committed to individuals with disabilities than others. Even within
Maricopa County, there are certain cities within the county that
are more committed to everything from architectural compliance
to providing interpreters at meetings like this.

I think, In general, Arizona has got a long way to go, but with
the Americans with Disabilities Act that just passed, we are taking
really progressive steps in the State. We are one of the only States
that has a Governor’s office on Americans with Disabilities. We
also have a House bill and Senate bill that have gone through now
that will ensure that the ADA will be enforced at the local level.

It's got a long way to go. I mean, I think every State has a long
way to go. But in general, I think we are making very progressive
steps in Arizona.

Chairman OweNs. You opened your statement by saying that
since the establishment of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act, the
percentage of people with disabilities being employed has not in-
creased. What would you recommend we do that we're not doing to
make certain it is increased?

Ms. CroNIN. I think one of the most critical parts is that there
were moneys granted under the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of
1973 to establish independent living centers. ILC's basically deal
with people at the grassroots level. Many times we see individuals
long before they are really at the point of being vocationally read-
ied. We deal with the person through those stages.

One of the things that we see over and over again is that we
have to deliver our programs on a very piecemeal basis. We simply
do not have the amount of funding that flows through to us to pro-
vide programs, like training peer advocate volunteers. That's really
cost effective when you get down to it. It helps us to provide really
high quality, individualized services to individuals with disabilities,
and it’s on a volunteer basis. Who better to have as a peer advocate
than a person who has already gone through the maze; who has
already gone through all of the problems of redirecting their own
life and can therefore ease and speed your own journey. It's a real
cost-effective system.

This year, I've got to tell you—and you're going to laugh, but it’s
true—I've been through “grant season from hell” in the last couple
of months. I've gone through the process of getting the moneys that
are necessary from private foundations and from block grants and
a number of other sources just to be able to support this very basic
program, because enough moneys are not flowing to us to be able
to support this program on an ongoing basis.

Things like the peer advocacy, things like a full range of commu-
nity integration programs—On the back of my testimony there is
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an illustration—it’s the very last page of this. I go through some of
the community integration programs that we feel are necessary
and that we provide. But again, we provide them as we have fund-
ing to provide them. They are things like the peer advocate volun-
teer training, counseling—whether that be peer counseling or pro-
fessional counseling—this can be on a one-to-one basis or with the
family. The family unit cannot be left out of this, because it is the
family unit that, as a ‘whole, deals with this entire life redirection
process. So we have spouse and family support in there as part of
the community integration program as well.

Socialization programs and recreation programs, being able to re-
direct the person’s life in this way, whether it be the provision of a
home maodification program. We’ve held a contract with the City of
Phoenix since 1987 in doing home modifications. We've completed
over 300 in that city and we’ve found that about 84 percent of all
modifications to increase accessibility are less than $750. This basi-
cally is getting a person in and out their front door, and they're
not going to be employment-ready until those kind of real basic
things happen.

But again, having the moneys to be able to provide this—We've
been able to hold this contract with the city of Phoenix. At times
we're funded for 2 years and not funded for a year, and it kind of
goes in cycles. In those years when we're not funded, people who
need accessibility in their homes are just left in the breach.

There are other parts of the community integration programs
that we simply just don’t have the money to provide on a continual
basis, so it’s been piecemeal. This is the first year that we’ve been
able to bring together, through private moneys, all of the funding
that is necessary to provide a holistic program, and that includes
the peer advocates and community integration programs.

It includes training in the Americans with Disabilities Act and
other legisiative training so that a person knows their rights, so
that they can get out and advocate for themselves and in the com-
munity at large. It-also means being able to develop employment
options which we just have not ever had as a piece of this entire
program.

The employment options call, for instance, for developing a net-
work of large corporate employers, where we go in and exchange
our accessibility expertise insofar as workplace redesign and job ac-
commodations, in exchange for ongoing funding for the program, in
exchange for some worksite and workplace readjustment training,
and employment for individuals in the program. But it's going to
take this kind of approach before we can bring this unemployment
rate down. It simply can no longer be delivered in a piecemeal
fashion.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Mr. Pastor.

Mr. Pastor. Just a question for each one.

Going to page 5, Mr. Griffith, you talk about one of the principles
is “‘statutory provisions which provide for effective and meaningful
involvement of consumers with disabilities in all critical areas of
rehabilitation service delivery and in the rehabilitation process.”

How do we accomplish that principle in Arizona?
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Mr. GriFrITH. Well, there’s one provision in Title VII of the Act
which does require an advisory council for independent living serv-
ices. I think that th directors feel that it

d for all programs
through the State and Federal partnership. That’s one way.

e are now beginning a system in Arizona where we're doing
face-to-face interviews. Instead of doing the typical followup with
individuals in writing, which has a very poor rate of return, we're
beginning to contact individuals and sit down face to face and find
out what their concerns and issues are with the Public Rehabilita-
tion Program: were you served well, were you not; if you were not,
what were the issues, what are your recommendations, and so on.
We want to expand that greatly and get away from the routine
mail follow-ups and get into an ongoing dialogue with the individ-
uals who are served in the program.

So I think we need it at both levels. We need it in dialogue with
the individuals we serve, and we need some type of requirement or
provision that a State maintain some type of advisory body that
will advise on the program in its entirety.

Mr. PasTtor. Miss Cronin, do you think you have, in that advisory
panel, enough representation in terms of people that have disabii-
ities or people who are advocates of such programs? Do you think
they are well represented in that, and if they're not, what would
you recommend?

Ms. CroniN. I would recommend that we have greater represen-
tation. I would recommend that with the representation that is
given, the advice be listened to seriously and implemented. I find
that too many times we have advisory boards where the messages
are passed over too lightly. I would like to be real clear that we do
not want to indicate that we’re going to beat vocational rehabilita-
tion over the head and say that it's a terrible program. We encoun-
ter issues and problems all the time with individuals that we deal
with. who are having specitic problems with vocational rehabilita-
tion counselors or whatever, We generally try 10 advocate for the
individual and get around sotne of those problems,

I think what does need to happen is that there be a greater
amount of training and awareness—as the two prior speakers.
John and Betty, talked about—sor . ~taff development, some train-
ing needs to be done. I would very much advocate for that. But in-
sofar as being well represented. 1 think we need to have greater
representation for people with disabilities on these different panels
and that the advice does need to be followed. That's where 1 see the
main problem.

Mr. Pasror. 1 will make a request of you, Mr. Gritfith. If you
could make available to my office and to the subcommittee, the

se people who are on that advisory group, and possiblv
what group they represent or who they are advocates for, I would
appreciate it, jurt to get a feeling of what's—

Mr. GrirritH. Certainly.

Mr. Pastor. The other question is for Miss Cronin. Funding is
always a problem, which CBO'’s well understand. I think it’s Title
VII that allows the independent living centers to get funded. How
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are you being funded now and what recommendations would you
give us? If you wanted to make some changes, what changes would
you recommend?

Ms. Cronin. In terms of funding of our center, yes, we do have
some moneys coming through Title VII, and those are establish-
ment moneys. Many of the dollars are spent on simply being able
to keep the staff in place. That allow us to provide some real core
services and keep our facilities up-to-date and do the renovations
necessary to be completely accessible and those kinds of things.

The problems we have constantly is going out and getting the
funding that is necessary to keep core pieces of services in place.
We have Title XX moneys for RIS, Rehabilitation Instruction Serv-
ices and for counseling. We always run short. Every year it’s the
same thing; we run short of these moneys.

Our consumer base has grown so rapidly that—in this past year
it’s grown by 42 percent, and the year before that it grew by 51
percent. Our staff is certainly not increasing at that rate, and our
funding base increased by 8 percent. So what we find over and
again is that we'’re constantly having to go and look for different
sources, and in the meantime there are gaps in services. We have
Title XX, we have Title VII, Part B. We go after block grants, as
necessary, and as we're able to procure them. There are problems
in some of the different cities with the block grants and not being
clear in their own terminology. For instance, in one of the cities
here, in going after a home modifications project for CDBG
moneys, they simply are not clear in their own terminology.
They've had some moneys available but have not used those
moneys for the last several years.

Now, in the meantime, our consumers and other consumers with
disabilities in that community simply are not being served. So we
run into this a lot, and there still is a lot of enlightenment that
needs to happen insofar as what the real issues for individuals with
disabilities really are.

Mr. Pastor. Thank you.

I want to thank both panel members for coming this morning.

Chairman OwEeNs. Thank you very much.

Our next two panelists are Mr. Ray Parks, Phoenix, and Dr.
Shirin Antia, Director, Special Education Programs, University of
Arizona, Tuscon, Arizona. Please be seated.

As I stated to the previous panelists, your written testimony will
be entered in its entirety in the record.

We will begin with Mr. Ray Parks.

STATEMENTS OF RAY S. PARKS, JR. CHAIRMAN OF D.E.AF, DEAF
NETWORK; AND SHIRIN D. ANTIA, ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR, UNI-
VERSITY OF ARIZONA, DIRECTOR, TEACHER EDUCATION PRO-
GRAM IN DEAFNESS, UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA

[The following statement was intepreted by sign language:]

Mr. Parks. I'm going to talk in sign language to you, and this
interpreter is going to speak for me. If you have any questions
afterwards, you may ask me and the interpreter will interpret
them and I will sign her and she will voice me, okay?
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Thank you very much for giving me this opportunity to speak
about this very important subject: Deaf Culture in the School Cur-
riculum. I am Ray S. Parks, Jr. I have 30 years’ experience as a

an administrator, and a consultant fo i
now the Chairperson of D.E.AF, Deaf Network, which fo-
cuses on training the deaf community on political procedures.

For many years deaf culture has been such an issue that we in
the deaf community have been trying to pursue not. only for the
inclusion in school curriculum but also for the total education of
deaf students from day one through the end of their high school
years. Unfortunately, we have not succeeded in achieving such
goals and objectives.

What we are seeing now is the sporadic offering of deaf culture
as a course and, even worse, much less incidence of deaf culture
and bicultural/bilingual patterns in deaf education as a part of
deaf students’ formal learning and continued awareness. The full
spectrum of education supposedly taught at schools for the deaf,
and even more true at many mainstreaming programs in the
United States, is highly lacking and it is what we have been striv-
ing to achieve.

The field of education of the deaf has undergone significant
changes over the years. However, those changes have never con-
tributed to significant improvement in education of the deaf for
several reasons. First, the true language of the deaf, called Ameri-
can Sign Language, ASL, has been long suppressed, for it has
always been ‘consideded inferior to English by school administra-
tors, regularly comprised of hearing educators who, more often
than not, are insensitive to the needs of the inclusion of deaf cul-
ture in the school cutriculum.

Second, deaf culture, until as recently as 1982, has been thought
to be insignificant and noncentributory to the growth of deaf stu.
dents’ education. Even then it was only offered as an elective
course, mostly as a token course.

Third, even though it has been agreed that ASL is a true lan-
guage of its own, people other than deaf people themselves contin-
ue to pursue other sign systems, such as cued speech, signed exact
English, signed English, and other sign systems. These systems
have been thought to be a vehicle of teaching and improving deaf
children’s English. Actually, they do not contribute in any way to
the improvement of writing and reading abilities of deaf children,
for they are only the graphical representation of English and,
therefore, not a true language. English, as we know, was devzioped
based solely on appropriate aural reception and expression, where-
as ASL is a visual and culturally-appropriate language for the deaf.

School administrators must now understand that deaf students’

i results of learning deficits inherent.-

» but of problems in the communication

practices of the students’ teachers, not of their own faults but
faults of their schools’ communication policies.

It might be interesting to you that school policies developed at
different schools for the deaf have actually been interfering with
deaf children’s language development because of their require-
ments, one of which stipulates that ASL not be allowed to be uti-
lized in classrooms and that teachers use simultaneous methods—
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that is, signing and speaking at the same time. School policies are
highly discriminatory against deaf children and their own deaf cul-
ture; also, current communication practices in the education of
deaf children deny these children access to content.

For many years, it has been apparent that physicians, research-
ers and school bureaucrats see deaf people differently than the deaf
see themselves. The following model will help to illustrate these op-
posing views.

The pathological view is: number one, we have an inability to
hear and that is tragic; two, deafness is a disability; three, lan-
guage is delayed; four, deafness is a communication handicap. The
end product is “needs treatment.”

The cultural view is: number one, fulfillment is possible through
the eyes; two, deaf is normal, it’s all right; number three, language
development can be normal through ASL: and number four, deaf
can communicate. The end product is “deafness is a way of life.”

The traditional approach tends to fix the deaf child through am-
plification, speech training, and artificial methods of language
learning.

The bilingual/bicultural approach allows us to look at the deaf
child from a cultural point of view. Deaf culture recognizes Ameri-
can Sign Language, ASL, as the natural way of language acquisi-
tion, and that strength in this first language helps deaf children to
learn English as a second language and written language. Studies
have pointed out that deaf children with early exposure to ASL
tend to fare better in mastering English skills. Another merit for
the bilingual/bicultural approach is that the child understands the
world and himself better and feels good about himself. In other
words, the child can live life to the fullest in both his deaf world
and his hearing world.

Even with results from various reliable research pointing to-
wards the success of the teaching of deaf students through deaf cul-
ture, bilingualism and biculturalism, we continue to see high levels
of resistance to the acceptance of those new approaches. School ad-
ministrotors, again largely comprised of hearing educators, have
been hesitant in moving toward the full spectrum of deaf culture in
the school curriculum. Instead, they seem to cherish the myths
which have been undermining deaf culture. Here are a few exam-
ples of debilitating myths:

First, English is not important; second, speech and listening
skills have no place in the bicultural/bilingual approach; third, the
deaf community will take deaf children away from their parents;
four, hearing people no longer have a role in the education of deaf
children; and ASL will hinder and delay the development of Eng-
lish competency.

T want to say again that all of these myths have been the oppo-
site of wha. deaf people feel and what we believe. English is very
important as a part of our education.

The circumstances of deaf people are similar to other minority
groups such as women, African-American people, Indian people,
and Hispanic people. All of these minority groups have been op-
pressed by the dominant majority and continue to struggle in domi-
nant-subordinate relationships. Many parallels can be seen be-
tween these groups and deaf people, who have been and continue




44

to be oppressed by a hearing-dominant majority. School bureau-
crats are mostly of a hearing-dominant majority.

It is imperative that reevaluation of every aspect of the educa-
tional system for deaf children occur. This reevaluation must be
based on a clear respect for deaf culture and ASL, as well as realis-
tic expectations of skills necessary to live the best possible life as a
deaf person within a hearing-dominant society.

I will personally send you a copy of a newly released book by Dr.
Harlan Lane called “The Mask of Benevolence—Disabling the Deaf
Community.”

I do appreciate your time that you've given me to listen to this
testimony. I hope it will provide you with a better understanding of
why we are pleading for the mandatory inclusion of deaf culture
and ASL in the school curriculum and that all communication poli-
cies currently implemented by schools for the deaf be mandated for
complete revisions to satisfy the U.S. Constitution as well as the
civil rights of deaf people.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Ray S. Parks, Jr. follows:]




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

45

Hon. Major R. Owens, Chairperson
Hon. Ed Pastor
Members of Committee on Education and Labor

Ray S§. Parks, Jr.
Focus on Issues Regarding
Rehabilitation and Education:
Dea+ Culture in School Curriculum

I wish to thank you very much for this
opportunity to communicate with you on this very subject:
D=af Culture in School Curriculum. For many years it has
been such an issue that we in the Deaf Community have been
trying to pursue not only for the inclusion in school
curriculum but also for the total education of Deaf
students from Day One through the end of their high school
years. Unfortunately, we have not succeeded in achieving
such goals/objectives.

What we are seeing now is the sporadic offering
of Deaf Culture as a course and, even worse, much less
incidence of Deaf Culture and Bi-cultural/Bi-lingual
Education as part of Deaf students’ formal learning
patterns and continual awareness of their own deafness.
The full spectrum of education supposedly taught at
schools for the deaf and even more true at many
mainstreaming programs in the United States is highly
lacking and it is what we have been striving to achieve.

The field of education of the deaf has undergone
significant changes over the years; however, those changes
have never contributed to significant improvement in
education of the deaf for several reasons. First, the
true language of the Deaf, called American Sign Language
(ASL) , has been long suppressed, for it has always been
considered inferior to English by school administrators,
reqgularly comprised of hearing educators often than not
insensitive to the need of the inclusion of Deaf Culture
in the school curriculum. Second, Deaf Culture, until as
recently as 1982, has been thought to be insignificant and
non—-contributory to the growth of Deaf students’
education. Even then it was only offered as an elective
course, mostly as a token course. Third, even though it
has been agreed that ASL is a true language of its own,
people, that is other than deaf people themselves,
continue to pursue other sign systems such as Cued Speech,
Signed Exact English, Signed English and other sign
systems. These systems have been thought to be a vehicle
of teaching and improving Deaf Children’s English.
Actually, they do not contribute in any way to the
improvement of writing and reading abilities of Deaf
children, for they are only the graphical representation
of English and, therefore, not a true language. English,
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as we know, was developed based solely on appropriate
aural reception and expression, whereas ASL is a visual
and culturally- appropriate language for the deaf. I
rightfully state this here: ASL and English language
enjoy their own linguistic sophistication: each has its
own ability to adapt to different situations without
undergoing any depreciation in their beauty, flexibility
and complexity.

School administrators must now understand that
deaf students’ low achievement levels are not results of
learning deficits inherently associated with deafness but
of problems in the communication practices of the
students’ teachers, though not of their own faults, but
faults of their schools’ communication policies. It might
be interesting to you that school policies developed at
different schools for the deaf have actually been
interferring with Deaf children’s language development
because of their requirements, one of which stipulate that
ASL not be allowed to be utilized in classrooms and that
teachers use simul taneous method, that is, signing and
speaking at the same time. School policies are highly
discriminatory against Deaf children and their own Deaf
Culture and also current communication practices in the
education of deaf children deny these children access to
content.

For many years, it has been apparent that
Physicians, researchers and school bureaucrats see deaf
people differently than the deaf see themselves! The
following model helps illustrate these opposite views.

Patholoqical View: Cultural View:
1. Inability to hear 1. Fulfillment is
is tragic. possible thru eyes.
2. Deafness is a 2. Deaf is normal.
disability. 3. Language Development
3. Language is delayed. can be normal thru
4. Deafness is a com- ASL..
muication handicap. 4. Deaf can communicate.

End Product: End Product:
NEEDS TREATMENT A WAY OF LIFE

The concept of Bi-cul tural/Bi-lingual approach to
education of the Deaf challenges the way deaf children
have been traditionally (or pathologically) viewed. The
old view uses hearing children as the norm. The new
thinking is that deaf children are normal children who are
different. This idea plus bilirgualism and biculturalism
are part of Deaf Culture that is increasingly but
painfully slowly, prevalent. The traiditonal approach
attempts to "fix" the deaf child through amplification,
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speech training, and artifical methods of language
learning.

The bilingual/bicultural approach allows us to
lock at the deaf child from a cultural point of view.
This approach recognizes American Sign lLanguage (ASL) as
the natural way of language acquisition, and that strength
in this first language helps deaf children learn English
as a second langauge. Studies have pointed out that deaf
children with early exposure to ASL tend to fare better in
mastering English skills. Another merit for the
bilingual/bicultural approach is that the child
understands the world and himself better, and feels good
about himself. In other words, the child can live life to
the fullest in both his deaf world and the hearing world.

Even with results from various reliable research
pointing towards the success of the teaching of Deaf
students through Deaf Culture, bilingualism and

. biculturalism, we continue to see high levels of

resistance to the acceptance of those new approaches.
There are only three schools for the deaf in the United
States, namely, the Learning Center in Framington, MA, the
Indiana School for the Deaf in Indianapolis, IN and the
California School for the Deaf in Fremort, CA, that are
pursuing the full program in bilingual/bicultural
educzational approach. School administrators, again,
largely comprised of hearing educators, have been
hesistant in moving toward the full spectrum of Deaf
Culture in the school curriculm. Instead, they seem to
cherish myths which have been undermining Deaf Culture.
Here are a few examples of delibitating myths:

a. English is not important.

b. Speech and listening skills have no
place in the bicultural/bilingual
approach.

Deaf Community will take Deaf children
from their parents.

Hearing people no longer have a role in
the education of Deaf Children.

ASL will hinder and delay the development
of English Competency.

Deaf children as well as deaf and hearing
professionals have been victimized by teacher training
programs and government practice which have perpetuated a
pathological view of deaf people. However, recent focus
on sign language research has raised a greater
consciousness about the language and cultural of deaf
people as well as the role of American Sign lLanguage in a
bilingual approach to educating deaf children. This, in
turn, has influenced the traditional view of the education
of deaf children. A growing perspective is emerging which
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signifies a need to shift educational practices to a
culturally-appropriate model which is Deaf-centered. 1
would like to see an increase of momentum in shifting the
attention toward the bicultural/bilingual approach.

The circumstances of Deaf people are similar to
other minority groups such as women, African—American
people, Indian people, and Hispanic people. All of these
minority groups have been oppressed by the dominant
"majority" and continue to struggle in
dominant—-subordinate relatioships. Many parallels can be
seen between these groups and Deaf people, who have been
and continue to be oppressed by a hearing dominant
majority. School bureaucrats are mostly of a hearing
dominant majority.

School administrators must also understand that
the following premises are evident through years of
ot:servations and scrutiny:

a. ASL provides for normal language
development and is the most effective
language for making information and
ideas fully accessible to deaf children.

b. Deaf children should be competent in both
ASL and English (reading and writing).

c. Education of Deaf children has never
really had a clearly defined mission or
set of goals.

d. The present systams found at schools for
the deaf are not preparing deaf children
to live in the best possible way as a

deaf person.

Education of Deaf children needs to let
go of the patholcgical perspective of
deaf children and adopt a cultural
perspective. Discriminatory practices as
exemplified in school communication
policies must be done away with.

Schools have yet to provide an
environment that is not "disabling" to
deaf children.

Deaf children are entitled to access to
information, knowledge, ideas... to
promote the development of LITERACY in
its broadest context.
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It is imperative that re—evaluation of every
aspect of the educational system for deaf children occur.
This re—evaluation must be based on a clear respect for
Deaf Culture and ASL as well as realistic expectations of
skills necessary to live the best possible life as a Deaf
person within a hearing-dominant society.

I do appreciate your time given to listening to
this testimony. I hope it will provide you with a better
understanding of why we are pleading for the mandatory
inclusion of Deaf Culture and ASL in the school curriculum
and that all communication policies currently implemented
by schoals for the deaf be mandated for complete revisions
to satiufy the U.S. Constitution as well as Civil Rights
of Deaf p=orle.

Thank you.
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Chairman OwENs. That was “The Mask of Benevolence?”

Mr. Parks. Yes, sir, meaning that a hearing person has a
“mask” to be nice to deaf people. It’s a »athological and paternalis-
tic approach.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Dr. Antia.

Dr. ANTiA. My name is Shirin Antia. I am an associate professor
at the University of Arizona and I'm the Director of the Teacher
Education Program in Deafness at the University of Arizona. I am
also a member of several organizations interested in teacher educa-
tion in the area of deafness, including the Council of Education of
the Deaf, of which I am a board member, a group that consists of
representatives of four organizations in deafness looking at teacher
education.

I just wanted to give you some idea of our programs in deafness
at the University of Arizona before I go into depth about the teach-
er education program, and then the issues that I think most teach-
er educators face across the country.

We have three graduate programs in deafness in our Department
of Special Education and Rehabilitation: the teacher education pro-
gram, the rehabilitation counseling program, and a sign language
studies program. We also have undergraduate programs in deaf
studies and we offer ASL as a foreign language to all students at
the university.

Our students in all three graduate programs take a common core
of courses, which includes ASL and courses in education and reha-
bilitation of the deaf, introductory grounding courses. Then, in ad-
dition, the students in the teacher preparation area will take
courses in elementary education, in language development and
intervention, speech, audiology and other courses that are required
for certification in the State of Arizona, and ales certification by
the Council on Education of the Deaf.

Ours is a 2-year graduate program. We have approximately 20
students just in the area of teacher preparation. But to give you
some idea of the scope of our programs in deafness, we have an ad-
ditional 20 students in the rehabilitation counseling for the deaf
program, approximately 15 students specializing in sign language
studies, and about 400 students taking ASL as a foreign language
or for their own professional development.

In the area of deafness, all together we have three full-time ten-
ured track faculty. We have three faculty that are not tenured
track but are also full time. They are funded by the University out
of various and different funds. They are year-to-year employees,
which means that they do not g0 up for tenure. Then we have two
part-time faculty who are funded from Federal grant moneys. So
we have approximately eight faculty in the area of deafness, three
of whom specifically have a major area of teaching in the teacher
preparation course.

We are probably one of the largest faculties in the area of deaf-
ness outside of Gallaudet University and probably at Cal State Uni-
versity of Northridge. This has just come about in the last 5 years,
where we’ve been able to convince our administration, both college
and university, that we can expand our programs and offer a large
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variety of programs at the University of Arizona within the field of
deafness.

The major strengths of our program as I see it is, of course, that
we have so many faculty who are interested in deafness and who
have different strengths, so our students have access to a number
of different faculty with different knowledge bases. They can take
ASL courses; they can take courses in sign language studies and
deaf culture; they can take courses in speech and hearing, and we
have a number of people, of course, who specialize in various as-
pects of education of the deaf.

What are some of the issues that face us and other programs
around the country? I think the biggest issue for all of us that we
keep facing and keep discussing is how do we train individuals to
be good teachers within the length of time that we have. Our pro-
gram is one of the most intensive and one of the longest in the
country. We usually require our students to come for 2 years and
two summers, so four semesters and actually four summer sessions.
We feel that at the end of that they are simply scratching the sur-
face of the competencies that they need.

One suggestion that has been made, and that we are working on
right now to solve, is to say that teachers should specialize in dif-
ferent areas. We have a specialty in the area of multiply-handi-
capped deaf, a specialty in the area of ASL/ESL, American Sign
Language and English as a Second Language teaching, a specialty
in the area of dealing with infants and young children and so on.
That appeals to us. But one of .“e problems that we find is when
our students go out in the field, :hey don’t have to face only the
one issue. They deal with a numer of different children, all of
whom have different needs. Then they sometimes are at a loss be-
cause they may be so narrowly specialized. So we do feel like we
have to provide them with some br 1 base.

The other thing that we've been trying to pursue, though not
very successfully—and to be frank, our plates are full and very
hard—is to try and find some way of providing in-service training
which says to schools, “When you get our teachers they are nov-
ices; we've done what we can in the beginning, but we have to be
able to provide some in-depth, in-service training.” This should not
consist of a single course. You don’t just come to the university and
take a reading course or an additional course in ASL to be able to
apply that to your classroom. You have to have some form of in-
depth, ongoing, in-service education when the teachers are out in
the field.

Some schools are very good about doing this. Other schools do
not have the capability of doing this. Somehow the schools and the
universities need to get together and work out something like that.

Another one of our major issues is how to attract and maintain
well-qualified students. The list of qualifications that we want from
our students keeps getting longer and longer. Our ability to get
these students sometimes is not so good. We've been doing reason-
ably well because we have worked very hard to get the money to
fund students through their entire 2 years in the program. But I
must admit that we spend 30 to 40 percent of our time writing Fed-
eral grants, lobbying the university and other places to get funds
for our students, because this is a very expensive program. You
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need a number of faculty to run the program. But we’re not a large
program at the university—I mean in terms of what the university
looks at. We're a highly specialized program. We offer highly spe-
cialized courses to a few students. The university looks at our
courses and says you have only 10 or 12 students per course; how
can we continue to provide you with the level of support that we
are providing? Our answer to that, of course, is to run out and get
Federal money, and we write a lot of Federal grants. They've been
very helpful. We could never have developed our program to the
point that it is without that Federal money.

We need incentives for deaf, minority and nontraditional stu-
dents who are going to go back and teach in rural areas. One of the
things that has worked very well is in the last 2 years the State of
Arizona has provided a loan forgiveness program. They provide
$5,000 a year for five students in the area of deafness, five students
in the area of blindness, if they will take our program and then
work in the State of Arizona in places where there is the most
need.

Well, we get students from around the country—about 50 per-
cent come from Arizona and 50 percent come from other States.
This year is the first year in which students in the program are
graduating, I have them saying to me, “Well, I'm not going to go to
Texas. I probably will accept the offer in Tubac because I have this
loan that will be forgiven if I work in Arizona.” Tubac, therefore, is
getting a teacher which they would not have gotten before because
our students get many attractive offers from all over the country.
So that program seems to be working really well, both in allowing
us to provide funds for students whom we want to attract, and also
in getting these students then to stay in Arizona and work in areas
where they’re really needed.

Then our final concern, of course, is ongoing faculty support. I
think I've already mentioned that a lot of our support comes from
soft money. Five of our eight faculty in the area of deafness are
supported from soft money, and every year we wonder whether
they're going to be able to stay with us. The loss of these faculty
would totally devastate all our programs. Qur sign language pro-
gram would be down to one instructor, which would be barely
enough to provide instruction to the program in teacher prepara-
tion and the rehabilitation counseling program. We would have to
cut out everything else.

In our teacher preparation program, we could no longer do the
kind of supervision of practicum, or even provide the practicum
that we are providing right now. Again. I just don't think that
teacher preparation is a matter of offering courses. If students are
not workiilg with deaf students in the field every day, it doesn’t
matter what we do in the way of courses. They just cannot apply
the information. Those kinds of things would really be affected.

We fund our facuity through Federal grants and every 2 or 3
sears we worry about whether we're going to be able to continue
our program. So, some more stable tunding would really help us.
One possible way would be in knowing that the Federal grant
money is coming early in the year. It’s May and I don’t know if
“}rle’re going to be funded for next year. That would be one major
thing.

o7




53

Longer cycles for Federal grants would also help. I don’t know
how much hope we have at this point of getting the university to
fund us more because we're in the middle of a major budget-cutting
process. When they're cutting 11 percent out of our budget, it’s
hardly the time for me to go and say I need another faculty
member. I'm bound to be refused.

Anyway, those are some of our major issues. They not only affect
us, but are issues that most teacher education programs face in the
United States.

Thank you. I really appreciate being asked to talk here today.

[The prepared statement of Shirin D. Antia follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittce:

My name is Dr. Shirin Antia; I am an associate professor at the University of Arizona,
College of Education, Department of Special Education and Rehabilitation and director of the
program to prepare teachers of deaf and hard of hearing students. I 2m also a member of the
Association of College Educators-Hearing Impaired, an organization that consists of faculty in
teacher education programs in the U.S. and Canada, and 2m also on the Board of the Council on
Education of the Deaf (CED), an organization that sets professional standards for programs
preparing teachers of deaf and hard of hearing students.

I have been asked 1o provide a short description of our tcacher preparation program at the
University of Arizona and to address issues of concern 1o teacher preparation programs in general.

The University of Arizona has three graduale programs in
Programs in deafness in the Depariment of Special Education and Rehabilitation.
Dcafness at the These three programs arc 1) The Program to prepare teachers of
University of deaf/hard-of hearing students 2) The Program in Rehabilitation
Arizona Counseling of the Deaf 3) The Program in Sign Language Studies. In
addition we have an undergraduate program in Deaf studics and provide
instruction in American Sign Language to meet the forcign language
requirement of undergraduates throughout the University.

Students in the three graduate programs take college and

Teacher Preparation department core courses and also 2 core of courses in the arca of

Program deafness viz. American Sign Language, and Education and

Tequirements Rehabilitation of the Deaf. In addition to these courses, students in the
teacher preparation program take courses specific to teaching deaf and
hard of hearing children (language development and intervention,
speech development and intervention, audiology and aural habilitation).
Students who do not have an clemeniary education degree alsz: -ake
courses in elementary education. All students obtain extensive
practicum experiences with deaf/hard-of-hearing children for three
semesters.  In addition cach student chooses one of four specialization
areas: literacy; early childhood education; education of multiply
handicapped children; and bilingual education. They take two cuurses
in their specialization arca and also complete at least onc practicum in
this area. The program usually 1akes two years to complete. Upon
graduation students have a master's degree, cerufication in hearing
handicapped from the State of Arnizona, and certification from the
Councii on Education of the Deaf.
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Currently we have 20 students enrolled in the teacher pseparation
program. Eight students will graduate in 1992. Over 90% of our
graduates obtain positions teaching deaf/hard of hearing students upon
graduation. Those few who do not are usually students who cannot
move out of Tucson because of family and other commitments.

The faculty in the teacher preparation program includes one full-
time tenured faculty person (myself), and two part-time non-tenure
track faculty funded through personnel preparation grants through the
Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation, U.S. Department of
Education. We also have one full-time, tenure track faculty member
who directs the Rehabilitation Counseling program, and one full-time
tenure track faculty member who directs the Sign Language Studics
program. Additionally three non-tenure track faculty teach courses in
American Sign Language (ASL) to graduate students in the education
and rchabilitation programs and to the approximately 400 undergraduate
students a year, who take ASL to meet their forcign language
requirement.  Altogether we have eight full-time and part-time faculty
who teach courses related to deafness. We are one of the largest
concentrations of facully interested in the area of deafness in the
country.

1 have tricd to give you a gencral outline of the program but 1
would like to take some time to describe our particular strengths. Our
major strength is in the number of our faculty and the breadth and
depth of faculty interests. Few programs around the country can offer
the variety of courses in deafness that we provide. The students in the
teacher preparation program can take courses in rehabilitation and sign
language studies to enrich their knowledge of deaf/hard-of hearing
persons, their culture and their language. Another strength of our
program is the variety and quality of practicum sites available to us.
These sites include the Arizona State Schools for Deaf and Blind, and
public school programs in the Tucson and Phoenix arcas. A final arca
of strength is the close integration of course work with extensive, and
closely supervised, classroom teaching and lab practica. The practica
are taken concurrently with methods classes; our goal is to ensure that
students can transfer theory acquired in courses to classroom practice.

Issues facing teacher preparation programs
For most of us the major issuc is how to best provide a high

quality program with limited time and resources. After two years most
students are just beginning to acquire the competencies that they need
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on the job; yet our program is one of the most intensive in the country.
Qur students need competencies in the teaching of subject matter and
classroom management; they need to become fluent in sign language;
they need to master the intricacies of developing signed, aural, and oral
communication skills in their deaf and hard of hearing students; they
need to develop specific interpesonal skills to work with other
professionals and with parents.

One solution to this problem is to develop specializations within
the field of teaching deaf children. The Council on Education of the
Deaf has different competencies for teachers of preschool, elementary,
and high school students. Further specializations have been suggested,
for e.g. that teachers of hard-of-hearing children develop expertise
only in teaching aural/oral communication skills and teachers of deaf
children develop expertisc only in teaching signed communication
skills. A problem to be faced by teachers with a very narrow
specialization is that children don’t come in neat czlegories. They have
multiple needs and they may have different needs at different times in
their lives. The child who learns ASL as a first language may need to
learn English as sccond language afier entering school. A hard of
hearing child who learns oral English as a first language may need to
learn ASL or Sigred English 1o use an interpreter when s/he enters high
school. The needs of minority deaf children differ from the needs of
multiply handicapped deaf children. The needs of children in rural
areas may differ from the needs of children in urban areas. Teachers
must have a sufficiently broad background to meet the needs of these
children. A possible solution to the problem is to provide incentives 1o
schools 1o allow teachers to take a sabbatical to upgrade their skills, or
to provide Universities with funds to provide comprehensive inservice
training to teachers of deaf children. I stress the word comprehensive
because inservice training that consists of one or two lectures, or even
a single course is not likely to provide teachers with the additional
skills or to change teacher practices.

Another problem faced by teacher education programs in deafness

Alracting and is altracting and maintaining well qualified students. Most programs
maintaining well- require applicants to have good academic records, knowledge of sign
qualified students language, backgrounds in regular education and experience with

children. Qur experience tells us that these are the kind of people who
are most likely to succeed in teacher education programs and also to
stay in the field. As you can sce this is quite a long list of
requirements.  In order to attract students we need (o be able to provide
adequate financial aid. At the University of Arizona we have been
fortunate to be able to provide some financial aid (54,000 - $6.000 a
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year) from state and federal funds to most of our students. However
due to the increasing costs of tuition, books, transportation etc. most
students work between 10 and 20 hours 2 week to make ends meet.
When you consider that most graduate students in teacher preparation
programs take three or four courses a semester and spend several days
a week in the classroom for their practicum, you can see that they may
not have as much time as necessary to get the most from the program.

Three categorics of students need our special attention. These

Deaf, Minority and are deaf students, minority students and non-traditional students i.e.
non-traditional those who return to the University after raising a family or after having
students worked in para-professional positions in the field. These students need

not only nced financial aid but may also need interpreting and tutoring
services. Unfortunately budget culting measures at Universities may
affect these and other suppe.rt services that students need to succeed in
the program.

A major concern in Arizona, New Mexico and other South

Incentives to western states is serving deaf/hard of hearing children in rural arcas.
students to teach in Many school districts cannot provide programs for deaf/hard of hearing
rural areas children, not because they do not want to, or because they do not have

sufficient children to fill 2 program, but because they have difficulty
attracting qualified teachers. The state of Arizona has taken an
enlightened view and has funded a loan forgiveness program that
provides loans to students in the teacher education program in deafness.
Payment of the loan is forgiven if students work with deaf/hard of
hearing children in Arizona for one or two years. These loans have
enabled us to attract students from rural areas who are likely to go back
and teach in these areas, and will also provide incentives for students to
remain in Arizona upon graduation, rather than accept teaching
positions in other States. Several of our students have informed me
that because they accepted the loans they are actively searching for
positions within Arizona and turning down positions in Texas and other
States. This should make it easier for rural districts in Arizona to
attract the qualified teachers that they need. Such loan forgiveness
programs at the federal level may assist in allowing programs to atiract
qualified students and to provide them with incentives to take teaching
positions where they are most needed.

Another concern of teacher education programs across the
Faculty and country is faculty and program support. Preparing teachers of deaf and
program support hard of hearing children is expensive. The numbers of students in these
programs are small compared to other special education areas (for e.g.
learning disabilities), but the courses required are extensive and
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highly specialized. Programs have to constantly justify to University
administrators, courses that arc required for these students to graduate,
but that have low cnrollment. Faculty siadent ratios are low, but
faculty loads are heavy because of the number of courses 1o be taught,
and the amount of practicum supervision that must be done. Most
programs depend on federal as well as University support to offer a
quality program. Unfortunately federal grants are provided for only
three or four years at a time. This can result in considerable faculty
turnover, because faculty supported by federal grants must leave at the
end of the grant period and new grants are not always announced in a
time for them to keep their positions. Longer cycles for federal grants
and carlier grant announcements would help considerably in this regard
as would additional support for low incidence teacher preparation
programs by Federal and State Governments and Universities.

To conclude the major issues in the field are 1) providing the
high quality of pre-service training needed by teachers of the deaf
within a limited time and with limited resources 2) attracting and
maintaining well qualificd students particularly deaf, minority and non-
traditional students, 3) providing incentives for graduates 1o teach in
rural areas and 4) providing sufficient university, federal and state
support (o programs who train teachers of deaf and hard-of hearing
children.
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Chairman OwgNs. Thank you.

Is there basic agreement between you and Mr. Parks?

Dr. AnTiA. I think the issues in deaf education are very complex.
I need to take a slight tack and say I'm from India. I have lived in
the United States half my life, so I can offer a little perspective on
what I'm seeing in the field. I don’t think there’s any other country
in the world where people are seen so much as people. I know that
we have problems in this area. So whereas I may not agree with
every deaf person who comes my way and tells me what should go
on in the field of deaf education, what I really respect is their abili-
ty to do that and the sort of the support in the community that
allows them to do that. The ability of deaf people to fight for them-
selves I think is very important.

I sometimes feel a little upset at being called a hearing educator
who has no sensitivity. I'm not sure that that’s always true. I'm
sure it has been true at some point. I mean, I've had to grow up
with the entire deaf education community. We've all changed over
the 20 years that I've been in the field, and I've changed, too. I'm
not so sure I'm sympathetic towards mandating what goes into cur-
riculums. I would rather see that grow out of community consen-
sus. What I'm seeing in the field right now—and I think there is
community consensus—is that ASL needs a central place in educa-
tion of deaf children. We don’t have a consensus as to how we're
going to do that. I mean, there are practical problems in the way.
But I'm sure that over time we will solve them, just as we have
solved a lot of others. The field is very different from when I came
in 20 years ago. There are a lot of things that we have solved and a
number of problems that we haven’t solved.

So I can'’t say I agree with everything, but I agree with the gen-
eral sentiment.

Chairman OweNs. You offer ASL as a foreign language. Do for-
eign students actually take it?

Dr. ANTiA. Yes, and we could offer it to 800 students if we had
the resources to do that.

Chairman OweNs. That’s certainly supportive, I think, of Mr.
Parks’ point of view.

Dr. ANTia. Probably. And it would help us immensely if we had
more ASL speakers. Then deaf people would be less isolated, just
like any other minority language person is less isolated. So yes, we
could expand our program considerably.

Chairman OweNs. I take it your students have no trouble finding
placement?

Dr. ANTIA. No. When our teachers have finished, we've never
had a problem placing them, unless they just absolutely will not be
able to move—You know, if they want a particular position in
Tucson and will not accept anything else.

Chairman OwgNs. Mr. Parks, would you care to comment? Are
you familiar with the wonderful things that are going on at the
university?

Mr. Parks. Yes, I agree with what she stated, but I would like to
state a few additional things.

The book, ‘“Mask of Benevolence,” criticizes instructors, educa-
tors of the program. The emphasis is on teaching the pathological
viewpoint of deafness, not so much on the deaf culture, but it fo-
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cuses only on the psychological ideas of deafness. It is all the psy-
chological viewpoint of deafness and that’s basically all.

Secondly, the focus is on the aural, the ear education. Like the
idea of using hearing aids and things. I see no value in the use of
hearing aids. There are so many deaf people who have stated that
they feel the exact same way. So there are a lot of changes that
need to be made; a lot of revisions in the teaching profession, the
teaching program.

In the teacher-training programs, there are not enough deaf in-
structors. We really need to see more of an increase in the number
of deaf instructors. It’s really tough for me to get that job, not to be
discriminated against. At ASTB and in the Phoenix State School
for the Deaf, there are no deaf administrators. In many schools for
the deaf, they’re in the mainstream program but there are very,
very few deaf administrators. So although there are many qualified
deaf people out there, it is not open to us.

That’s basically all I wanted to say.

Chairman Owens. What do you do for a living, Mr. Parks?

Mr. Parks. I'm a teacher at Phoenix State School for the Deaf, in
the field of drama, theater.

Chairman OweNs. Thank you.

Congressman Pastor,

Mr. PasTor. One thing I learned at one of the recent hearings is
the teacher training of blind/deaf teachers, and because of the dif-
ficulties of the two disabilities, the signage is very different. Do you
do any signage for blind/deaf children?

Dr. AnTia. We don’t have a program specifically for deaf/blind.
We do have a program for the severely multiply-handicapped chil-
dren and children who are sensory impaired—that is, deaf and/or
blind—and who have additional handicaps. I don’t do a lot of work
in that program, but we have a number of students in that pro-
gram,

Mr. PasTor. One of the interests that I have is in-service training
for teachers. One of the barriers, at least that I've been told about,
is that you don’t have enough colleges or universities that have de-
partments that can offer in-service training for teachers already
out in the field. One of the concepts that I have, at least in my
mind, is the creation of regional training centers, so that if the
University of Arizona were to become a regional center and had
the expertise to provide teacher training, that then it would serve,
say, a region of the southwestern United States where we could
probably utilize our resources a little better.

I don’t think that’s in place now and I would like to hear your
cctl)mments, as to whether it would be worthwhile to pursue that
idea.

Dr. ANTIA. I'm not sure exactly—I know there's been a model,
for example, of regional training, of interpreter training, at one
time when the University of Arizona had a grant for interpreter
training. It was a regional grant and our people went out into the
entire western region and provided training to interpreters and
would-be interpreters, and trainers of interpreters. I think that
would be one model that would be worth looking at.

I guess my main concern about in-service training is what I see
right now in many places, not all. Schools will require teachers to
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take x-number of university courses. While I think that’s better
than nothing, I think that we need to do something more in-depth.
I know from my own experience that simply talking to students
about how to teach reading or how to teach writing, or how to
work with a particular population of children, doesn’t mean that
they're capable of doing that within their own classrooms; that
they need a lot of guidance in that. So I think the same holds for
in-service training. There needs to be some kind of cooperation, and
probably a formal cooperation, between universities and schools so
that university personnel can go into the schoois and work with
teachers and master teachers who sometimes know much more
than we do about actually working with individual kids to make
sure that teachers continue learning in their profession, that we
continue improving our skills all the time that we’re in the schools.

If a regional center would help fund that effort or provide that in
an ongoing way, I think that would be a good idea.

Mr. PasTor. I not only see the university going out into the com-
munity, but I also see some of the teachers coming back. One of the
things that has been brought to my attention is that if you have a
school that provides opportunities to blind and deaf children, and
you bring the teacher to the university and then use the popula-
tion to increase their training and make them more effective,
that’s a component that has to be in place. I thought that because
the University of Arizona is located so close to the Arizona school,
it would provide an opportunity for a teacher to come to the uni-
versity and receive training and then go back into the school dis-
trict and be able to provide equal opportunities to the children that
need the educational opportunities.

Dr. AnTIA. Yes. I think we’re very well placed to do that, and we
have close ties with all the educational programs in our area and
the Phoenix area.

Mr. Pastor. And you mentioned that there are other schools,
like the California School at Northridge. I'm assuming there are
schools throughout the United States that could serve as regional
centers——

Dr. AnTiA. Yes, there are.

Mr. PasTor. [continuing] and be able to provide in-service train-
ing for—I think Mr. Parks even agrees with me, that there's a
need for continual training. And as we expose more people to these
opportunities, then maybe the discrimination that they face will be
lessened and mitigated.

Mr. Pagrks. Yes.

Dr. AnT1A. Yeah.

Mr. Pasror. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Ov/ENs. Thank you. I want to thank both of our wit-
nesses and all of the previous witnesses today. This has been a very
enlightening hearing. As we t.avel to all paits of the country, we
find unique points of view and get a chance to meet unique and
very fascinating people who are making a great contribution in
this area. Thank you all very much.

Yes, Mr. Pastor.

60-646 O — 92 - 3
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you have something that’s written and would like to provide it to
the subcommittee, we would be happy to make it a part of the
record. So if you would like to come up, please state your name and
address in case we need to contact you later. Two to three minutes
would be very appropriate.

STATEMENT OF THOMAS JOHNSON

Mr. JouNsoN. I'm very new at this and I apologize. As a matter
of fact, I was told about this hearing last night. I have a written
statement prepared which hopefully won’t be too long. My name is
Tom Johnson.

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Pastor, and ladies and gentlemen,
I'm a member of the National Federation of the Blind of Phoenix,
representing them, and also, by definition, a member of the Nation-

It is our contention that many of this Nation’s designated State

ensure that the agencies for the blind provide needed training,
tools and equipment prior to and, if necessary, up through the time
of the individual client’s employment,
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Members of the subcommittee, ladies and gentlemen, I thank you
very much for your time.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Tom Johnson follows:]

STATEMENT OF MR. THOMAS JOHNSON, NaTIONAL FEDERATION OF THE BLIND OF
PHOENIX

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Pastor, ladies and gentlemen:

1 am Tom Johnson, here today speaking on behalf of the National Federation of
the Blind of Phoenix being a part therefore, consequently speaking as a member of
the National Federation of the Blind of Arizona.

The typical blind adult in America today receives the bulk of his or her PROPER
TRAINING from the State agency designated to provide rehabilitation services in
the State where he, or she, resides under the Federal/State rehabilitation programs
established and largely funded by the United States Congress.

Quality rehabilitation programs in the various States are vital to the lives and
success of blind adults who need and qualify for such services.

It is our contention that many of this Nation’s State agencies which administer
the Federal/State vocational rehabilitation programs for blind adults, and including
Arizona’s known known as Services for the Blind and Visually Impaired (SBVI) of
the Department of Economic Security (DES), are ineffective and are not able to pro-
vide the PROPER training which is so critical for the average blind adult to achieve
Lrue integration into society. It is all too true that the lack of PROPER TRAINING
causes irreparable harm to blind adults who are in need of, and qualify for, good
rehabilitation services.

Great numbers of blind persons are being hurt every day since current Federal
rehabilitation law prevents them from seeking out and taking advantage of good
services which may exist in States other than where a client presently resides.

In working with the National Federation of the Blind, the U.S. Congress is consid-
ering legislation to correct the shortcomings in the Federal rehabilitation law by
providing a client’s “Right of choice” section in the Vocational Rehabilitation Act.

We urge you, Mr. Chairman and Congressman Pastor, to support legislation to
this effect recently introduced by Congressman Jefferson of Louisiana, if my
memory is correct.

Any amendments or motions to the present law should ensure that State agencies
for the blind provide needed training, tools and equipment prior to #.id, where nec-
essary, up to the time of the individual client’s employment.

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Pastor, ladies and gentlemen, I thank you very
much for your time and attention.

Mr. Pastor. Thank you.

Chairman OwENs. Give us your name again.

Mr. JounsoN. Tom Johnson.

Chairman Owens. Thank you, Mr. Johnson.

Mr. Jounson. To whom would I give my address, if necessary?

Chairman OWENs. Yes, your address, please.

Mr. JounsoN. It’s 8631 East Valley Vista Drive, Scottsdale; 85259
is the ZIP.

Chairman OweNs. Thank you.

The next person is Miss Donna Nolan. The rest of you, once you

have given your name, may take a seat and we'll call you. Miss
Nolan.

STATEMENT OF DONNA NOLAN

Ms. Noran. Thank you very much.

1 did have a prepared brief statement that 1 was going to make
today, and during the proceedings here 1 changed my mind. I
wanted to just very briefly point out, because I feel it's most impor-
tant, some of the areas in relationship to deafness that have been
brought forward today. It relates to the minority issues and edw.a-
tional issues as well.

6S
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ness and learn about our uniq
Thank you very much. It was a pleasure to have th

+

you continue this process throughout our country.
Chairman Owens. Thank you.
Miss Pat Brown.

recommendati.
authorization of the Rehabilitation Act.
We support the recommendations of the Consortium for Citizens
with Disabilities and we would like to emphasize the need “or addi-
i nsumer input into planning of vocational re-
€ support the recommendation that there
oup with a majority of consumers who do
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provide input and advice into setting priorities and providing voca-
tional rehabilitation services in each State.

We also support the recommendation, that I'm sure you’ve heard
of elsewhere, regarding changing the eligibility process for voca-
tional rehabilitation. Of course, these recommendations will not be
helpful without some additional resources, as some of the other
witnesses have indicated. There is a great need for more resources
so that more people can benefit from this program. We suppurt the
recommendation that an individual be presumed eligible if they’'ve
already been determined to have a disability by another State or
Federal disability-related organization. We believe we can save re-
sources if we don’t do extended reevaluations of those individuals
but we presume them eligible.

We also urge that you help us with some transition issues and
issues of coordination by finding individuals eligible if the special
education IEP team recommends that they receive vocational reha-
bilitation services and makes a determination that they need those
services in order to obtain or maintain employment because of
their disability.

In addition, we would like to mention personal assistance serv-
ices. I imagine you have heard or will hear about these services
throughout the country. These services are important, not just to
clients of vocational rehabilitation but, as I'm sure you have heard,
they're important for all people with disabilities to have opportuni-
ties to fulfill the expectations of the Americans with Disabilities
Act. For those dreams to come true and for them to be real for
many people, they will need personal assistance services, such as
help getting up in the morning and getting to all of the public ac-
commodations, jobs, and other services that shculd be made accessi-
ble to them.

For people with mental retardation, it means that people are
going to need some assistance with decision-making, with handling
financial matters, and with some social skills that they need in
order to make it on the job site as well. So we urge that those be
included in individual written rehabilitation plans and we also
urge your support for additional availability of those kinds of serv-
ices.

Thank you very much. I will leave a copy of the comments.

[The prepared statement of Patricia Brown follows:]

Q

RIC




“arc

Assoclation for Retarcsd Citlzens of Arizona, Inc.

5610 South Central Avenue / Phoenix. Arizona 85040 .
MARGARET SAXTON.SMITH (602) 243.1787  1-800-252.9054 PATRICIA J BROWN
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AssoC@tON for Retardeo Oteers

Personal Assistance Services

Many individuals with mental retardation or other disabilities
need personal assistance services to become employed and actually enjoy
the opportunities guaranteed by the Americans with Disabilities Act.
Necessary personal assistance services should be included in Individual
Written Rehabilitation Plans.

ARC members stronaly support the personal assistance services
definition and concept paper developed and endorsed by the members of
the Consortium for Citizens with Disabilities. Many more Dersons with
mental retardation could fulfill their dreams of heving and keeping
jobs if they could obtain the services they need to handle finances,
acquire interpersonal skills necessary on the job, and make decisions.

Consumer Input

ARC members urge strong consumer involvement in developing state
pulicies, plans and priorities for vocational rehabilitation programs.
A consumer-controlled adviscry group should be required and have meaningful
oversight of the state's program.

Individuals should have real choices in deciding and using services
and supports. There should be authority to conduct demonstrations such
as the use of vouchers so that people with disabilities can assure that
they receive the individualized services they need.

We appreciate this opportunity to provide comments regqarding the
vital services that can be provided under the Rehabilitation Act. We look
forward to working with a broad coalition of people with disabilities,
advocates and other concerned persons to increase and imorove these services
and allow opportunities for more individuals to participate fully,
contribute and reach their potential.

Patricia J. Brow
Executive Director

May 11, 1992




The Arc

(forzerly the hssociation for Retarded
Citizens of the United States)

1522 K Street, NW, Suite 516

Washingten, OC 20005

(202) 785-3188

REHABILITATION ACT REAUTHORIZATION
FACT SHEET

Background

The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, contains a nuaber of
projrams and provisions which are vital to people with mental retardation.
These include the $1.8 billion Vocational Rehabilitation State Grant
progran, the Supported Exployment State Grant progranm (Title VI C) and
Supported Employment Prejects (Title III), Independent Living State Grant
and Centers (Title VII), the National Institute on Disability and
Rehabilitation Research, the National Council on Disability, training
programs, and Section 504 antidiscrizination provisions. Nearly 40,000
individuals with rental retardation are served by the Vocational
Rehabilitation State Grant prograu annually, constituting about 12 percent
of the vocational rehabilitation taselcad.

The Rehabilitation Act was last seriously scrutinized by the Congress
in 1986, when Supported Exployment was added to the Act. The Act is
currently operating under a one yYear sicple extension which expires on
September 30, 1992. The disability community in general has grown more and
wore disenchanted and frustrated with the Vocational Rehabilitation State
Grant program. Many advocates for per-ons with mental retardation share
this frustration. The most cosmon comp. *int is the woeful lack of
resources avajlable to state vocational .abilitation agencies to funé
services to eligible individuals. Less than 10 percent are now served.

Another overarching cencern shared by many groups is the antiguated
approach to eligibility and services within the Rehabilitation Act.
Outdated concepts such as feas:bility of exployability do much to sti1€le
access to vocational rehabilitation services for many individuals with
disabilities. Many persons with mental retardation sinmply opt to no:t even
2pply for vecational rehabilitation services, knowing that the state
vocational rehabilitation agency isn’t likely to find then eligikle,
despite their desire and ability, with support and training, to enter the
work force., Far too many have been denied eligibility becau ‘e, according
to rehabilitation counselors, they nmight not be erxployable after the
receipt ©f wveocaticnal rehabilisize services.
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The Arc KRecommendation

The Arc urqe Members of Congress to support legislation to reauthorize
and modernize the Rehebilitation hct. Working with a large number of
disability provider, professicnal, advocacy, and consumer groups, The Arc
js recommending numerous changes to the law, with emphasis on making its
programs more accessible to people who seek to become productive members of
our society. Key issues to be considered to improve the Act include:

o stronger consurmer input in shaping state policies, making choices
in services and prioritizing service availakility;

[} loosening eligibility requirements in general, yet tightening the
priority for services for those with the most severe disabilities
through better definition and prioritization;

o updating the Supported Erployrent progran based on the practical
experiences of thre past half decade and significantly expanding
Supported Enployment resources;

[} strengthening due process procedures;

o creating stronger linkages between special education and
vocational rehabilitation to maxirize transition from school to work;

o fostering new approaches such as the use of assistive technology,
pe.sonal assistance services and voucher systems; and

o enhancing eligaibility for independent living servicas for
persons with mental cetardation through aggressive outreach
effarts and tailoring services to address their needs;

o insreacirg authorizatien levels for all progrars.

suse Education and Labor Cernmittee
Supzerrittee orn Select Education
Senate Lanor and Hairan Pesources Cornittee
Sicoornittee on Disability Policy
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discission.and activity regarding the need 'to establish programs. to provide'’;
personal.assistance se urable to perform -

The focus'“

sure.that right
uly be exercised by people whd have limitatioas in
A A frequently noted exanple .is.the -person who now has
protection against discrimination in employment or in public
accommodations, such as restaurants or theaters, but who is unable to get
out of bed ‘or dressed to get to that job or setting without assistance.
$ sinmilar examples could be cited for people with nental retardation who need
assistance in maintaining optimal independence for such things as handling
% financial affairs,’ decision-making, participation in community activities,
or acquiring social skills or behaviors for successful employmant or social
interaction. .- R ' ’ .

: ;In early 1991, the Consortium for Citizens with Disabilities (ccD),

Fincluding The Arc, established a personal assistance task force and

".embarked on a process to thoroughly review a draft biil prepared by the

:i'World Institute on Disabiiity. Aanalysis and recommendations have focused

' on numerous areas, including services, eligibility, quality assurance,
systens design, training, and due process. A first draft of a
comprehensive personal assistance concept paper was given wide grassrccts
distribution and the resulting comments are now being compiled zand
incorporated.

The personal assjstance services concept would call for establishrent
of a program of personal assistance for people of all ages who have ona or
more functional limitations. Services would b designed to prorote the
individual’s ability to li-» independently and to assure quality of
service. The proposal wo..d nake available a2 wide range of service options
based on an individual’s needs and desires and would address the needs of
people with physical, rentai, cognitive, or sensory disabilities. For
people with mental retardation, services could meet needs for assistance in
areas such es neal planning and preparation; household maintenance; roney
managerent; planning ard decision raking; communication; and participation
in social, comrunity, or cther activities which promote independence,
preductivity, or integrat: irto the community. Services weuld be
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In addition to the efforts to develop a wglagship” bill, CCD has
worked with various Mexbers of Congress to ensure that, wherever possible
and appropriate, incremental steps toward personal assistance coverage are
taken in pending pieces of legislation. Thic has included work to include
personal assistance provisions in the reauthorization of the Higher
Ecucation Act, the tax reform package, and the reauthorization of the
Rehabilitaticn Act of 1973. A

Tne Senate Laktor and Human Rescurces Comnrittee held a hearing on
persaral assistance services in July 1991. The House Fducation and Labor

sormittee’s Sukbzomnmittee on Select Education included a panel on personal
assistance services in a nearing regarding the reauthorization of the
mehabilitation Ast in February 1992.

The Arc Recommendation

The Arc urges Merbers of Congress to support and co-sponsor
legislation, when it is introduced, to establish personal assistance
services for pecple with a proad range of disabilities as a means of
ensuring that the rights acknowledged by the passage of the Americans with
Disabilities Azt can becone reality for people who need assistance. The
rrc urges that Merbers also support any incrermental steps in pending
legislaticn thAat w11l nelp ensure the availability of personal assistance
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Chairman Owens. Thank you.
Cheri Meaders.

STATEMENT OF CHERI MEADERS

Ms. MEADERS. I am Cheri Meaders, 1011 East 11th Street, No.
236, Tempe, Arizona, 85821. -

I am 40 years’ old. I'm currently a full-time student at Arizona
State University, and I am blind. I am also a client of the Vocation-
al Rehabilitation SBVI.

Mr. Griffith, I sincerely appreciate your written statement, but |
would like to sit down and spend a few hours with you and talk o
you about the real world. Your agency, as it is organized and in
place, is good in theory, but you are falling way short of your goals
and objectives.

Margaret, when I listened to you this morning, I agree that SBV]
needs to change some of the attitudes regarding the visually-im-
paired and bli iliti iliti

impaired and
. We know what
w
decide what is best for us.

Thank you.

Mr. PasTtor. Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

r. Lawrence Huber.

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE HUBER

Mr. Hugkr. Yes, sir. Mr. Owens, Mr. Pastor, I'm Lawrence
Huber, 1011 East 11th Street, Tempe, 85281.

I am a disabled veteran. Both my arms were severely damaged in
the service. My concern in education and elsewhere has been that I
don’t look disabled.
and local lev

3

I'm an architecture student. I am taught regularly about wheel-
chair accessibility but very seldom on other things. I have to
remind my instructors that there are other disabilities.

I appreciate this opportunity to speak. Thank you.

Mr. Pastor. Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Donna Redford and Denise Thompson together.
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Ms. Reprorp. I'm going to let Denise talk first.

STATEMENT OF DENISE THOMPSON

Ms. THomMPsON. My name is Denisc Thompson. I reside at 1102
West Gregory, Phoenix, Arizona, 85041. I'm a constituent of Con-
gressman Pastor.

I would like to speak from a personal as well as a professional
point of view. I have worked at the independent living center here
in town for approximately 9% years. Of course, I have a disability
so I speak from that point of view as well.

I wanted to address the issue of funding briefly Title VI, Part A
money was mentioned briefly, and I would like to address some
concerns that I have.

Right now that money is independent living funding. It is avail-
able only to independent living programs in this State as well as
many other States only through vocational rehabilitation. It filters
down through. It is my understanding that that was not exactly
the intent of the Part A moneys to begin with, that each center in
the State is allocated a certain amount of money, and yet we re-
ceive it only as we receive referrals from the general vocational re-
habilitation program. That adds to the piecemeal fashion of provid-
ing services, which was addressed earlier.

In addition, there is a disparity in how the Part A moneys are
distributed even within the State itself. That comes down through
general vocational rehabilitation, which is available through a pro-
gram known as independent living rehabilitation services, for indi-
viduals other than those who are blind, all other disabilities are
lumped into that group. There is quite a large amount of discretion
among counselors as to how that money can be utilized according
to the goals of the individual. Equipment can be purchased, home
modifications can be provided, et cetera. However, for individuals
who are experiencing blindness or visual impairment, the inde-
pendent living moneys are available only through services for the
blind and it is available at a much lower rate. My understanding is
that counselors can spend up to $100 per individual only, and that
equipment cannot be purchased with that money. The money is
very limited.

Individuals who are not involved in a vocational program and
who are blind cannot apply for independent living money through
the general VR program. They must approach that money through
services for the blind.

So I have two recommendations along those lines. One, of course,
is that there be equal distribution among parsons with disabilities,
that we not separate out that money and provide one for all dis-
abilities and then another for blind people alone.

Secondly, my recommendation is that when we look at the reau-
thorization of the Rehabilitation Act, we take a look at how the
Part A money is distributed. I would recommend that part of that
money be available directly to independent living centers and pro-
grams, as it was intended tc be. We're involved in a time when ad-
ministrative costs, cutting costs, and making programs more effec-
tive, is the in way to go, and I certainly feel that avoiding some of
the State bu:-aucracy and administrative costs would certainly
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make that rnoney more available and effectively used by persons
with disabilities.

Just in closing, I would like to support what was indicated by
Miss Meaders and the previous speaker. It is important that an
effort be made to both seek out and train more individuals with
disabilities to work as counselors. I'm not referring here now to
Jjust services for the blind or any others but I think it’s time we
stopped trying to separate disabilities and services and also provide
more specific role models by seeking out and training persons with
disabilities to be counselors themselves.

Thank you.

Mr. Pastor. Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Miss Redford.

STATEMENT OF DONNA REDFORD

Ms. Reprorp. Thank you. I'm Donna Redford. I live at 725 West
Brown, No. 7, in Tempe, Arizcna, 85281. I'm a more recent employ-
ee at ABIL, the independent living center. I am a person who has
lived with disability since I was a teenager, one that's not often
considered that. I have chronic psoriasis and I have arthritis. I
have a disability that comes and goes. That sometimes visually is
more of a problem to me when people look at me than maybe what
I can do on the job, bat sometimes it’s not. When it's bad, it can be
debilitating.

I was grateful to learn about the independent living movement.
One of the things that is different about an independent living
center is we do work with all kinds of disabilities. We tend to work
with people who fall through the cracks in the other services.

I was appreciative of what Donna Nolan said, to remember that
there are persons who are hearing-impaired and who get that im-
pairment as an adult. They are working right now with a woman
who has not been able to get her needs met through the services
for persons with hearing impairment, because the culture that
they’re involved with, even the people themselves who are hearing-
impaired, she cannot relate to that. She has been a hearing person
and she is going through devastating grief right now. At some
point this woman could potentially work again. She's educated, she
has a master’s degree, but she is facing deafness and has not been
able, through the services that were theoretically there for her, to
get her needs met. She got more of a “buck up, I've been deaf my
whole life” kind of attitude. That attitude can be anywhere across
the disability community. It’s anywhere across any target group
that’s been hurt. We can do that to each other.

So one thing I have seen at ABIL is that I have got to meet
many different people with many different disabilities and get into
the wonder of it all really, how complicated it is. So I also recom-
mend—When I read Mr. Griffith’'s recommendations, I think they
are very good and we do work with VR counselors all the time.
When he makes the statement that people with disabilities should
be involved in all critical areas, I'm a little concerned with the
“critical areas” because I'm not sure his definition of what would
be a critical area in which to consult a disabled person would be
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the same as mine, my coworkers, who are mostly disabled, or the
consumers that I work with. So again, as someone said earlier, it
can look good on paper, but if it’s not really carried out, you cannot
be providing the services that somebody needs.

Similarly, the goal of the Rehabilitation Act was set to help
people be employed. Another thing that I see often at ABIL is
there are various disincentives that are very complicated with
moneys that come from other places besides the Rehabilitation Act
that affect a person’s ability to work. It may not be their intelli-
gence; it may be a lack of money for the adaptive equipment that’s
now technologically available but nowhere to be found for this
person, because working on a salary of anywhere from $15,000 to
$35,000 a year, it may be difficult for them to acquire that equip-
ment.

But also from the point that some people are going tc have a dis-
incentive if they need a personal care attendant. I work with
people who can't afford to go to work. They would lose in the State
of Arizona access, which is that health care system which helps
provide them attendant care. So this person—I worked with a
young woman who was 23. She had gotten help from VR to get her
college degree, could work, was capable of working, but could not
afford to get off of a minimum level of rinances, because if she did,
she would lose her attendant care. And the one thing she needed
was an attendant, to get up every morning, to go to bed every
night, and to go to the bathroom during the day. Other than that,
she was quite independent. She had a motorized chair, she was
very bright, and she’s a good teacher.

For people like this, if there isn’t a way to get them to work be-
cause of the current disincentives of the other places that aren’t
quite working right yet, then this person can be still a viable par-
ticipant in our community. She has many gifts to offer. One of the
limitations now is that—And we work very closely with the inde-
pendent living services part of VR, but it's little. It's like the
thumbnail on my hand compared to my whole hand of what VR
services gets. That's because they have to aim their money to per-
sons getting a job. But there are these people who could be contrib-
uting to the community if they also could get some of these same
resources that are much too limited right now. And they could be
giving back inta the community many hours, which our President
has said he wants to see many “points of light”, but they need a
little help with transportation, they need some equipment, they
need some peer support to show them that they don’t have to hide
in their houses.

So I again would like—that’s the emphasis that you probably
heard before, about independent living. I'm just somebody in the
trenches that meets people every day, that have many things to
give, if they could get just a little bit of assistance to get out there.

That’s all that I have to say. Thank you for listening.

Mr. Pastor. We have three people left, and we would like to
hear from them—and we will. But I will ask you to be within about
a 2-minute range because we're going to have to leave for the air-
port pretty quickly. So we will hear from the three remaining
peop'e, and if you could stay within 2 minutes, we would appreci-
ate it.

50
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Chairman Owens. Lola Satoe.

STATEMENT OF LOLA SATOE

Ms. SATOE. My name is Lola Satoe. I live at 6809 East Coronado,
Scottsdale, Arizona, 85257.

I want to address something that one of the gentlemen brought
up, and that’s the hidden disabilities. If you can’t see it, then you
don’t think we have it, and we're still discriminated against when
we go into public. I'm talking about adults with attention deficit
disorders, I'm talking about adults with seizure disorders, or adults
with closed head injuries. A lot of them need the social support and
the moral support when they go back into society, but most of all,
especially among the attention deficit disorder and the closed head
injury, they need an extended period of teaching them socialization
skills.

They could be successful, and many of us are. I can address that
because I am a head injury survivor. If you give us the training, if
you teach us again how to read the social clues, we can go back
into society and we can be successful. But many times this is a pro-
gram that vocational rehabilitation will not address. They will not
attend to the social skills training area.

If somebody doesn’t tell us that we're laughing instead of crying
when we're supposed to, or we're not reading the other social clues
that tell us it’s time to shut up, it's time to back off an issue, we
don’t know until we're taught that all over. The same is true with
attention deficit disorders. They need the same training and
they're not getting it. They’re not getting it in the public schools
and they don’t get it—and this is why so many people similar to
myself are falling through the cracks. A lot of us could be very suc-
cessful; a lot of us can return in taxes all that we might ever gain
from vocational rehabilitation programs, or pre-vocation rehabilita-
tion programs, if we're given the chance. So many times we're
denied.

That’s about all.

Mr. Pastor. Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Thank you.

Miss Laura Love.

STATEMENT OF LAURA LOVE

Ms. Love. Good afternoon. My name is Laura Love. I work with
the Arizona Department of Education in the Special Education Sec-
tion. My address is 1535 West Jefferson, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007.
Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, there are many
times when I prefer to be brief, but today was not one.

Transition services is not new in Arizona. I am the Transition
Specialist for the State of Arizona, and I focus on the transition of
students with disabilities from school services into adult life. It is
an area that has much political impact these days, as in 1990 when
President Bush signed a law called the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act, which now mandates that by the time a special edu-
cation student turns 16, the need for transition services must be in
their IEP, their Individual Education Program, which means that

81
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now schools all over the country are looking at ways to better pre-
pare students with disabilities for life after high school.

One of the other mandates with this law is that, before a student
with a disability leaves the school services, that the IEP also ad-
dress what types of adult services that student will need in transi-
tion from school into the community. Many times that may be vo-
cational rehabilitation.

One of the things that I would like to say is that, as you look at
the reauthorization of the Rehabilitation Act, that education at
this point is the only entity federally mandated to provide transi-
tion services for students with disabilities leaving school. With the
Rehabilitation Services Administration addressing transition as a
priority, however, it is not a Federal mandate. Education cannot do
this alone. So I would urge you, as you lock at the reauthorization,
to ask that rehabilitation professionals now be mandated to work
with transition age students before they leave the school setting, to
start providing the appropriate transition services they need in
conjunction with the school.

Thank you.

[The document supplied by Ms. Love follows:]
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NATIONAL SIGNTFICANCE OF TRANSITION SERVICES

Within the past decade, concern regarding tue status Of youth with disabilities once they leave
>0l has placed the transition of youth in the forefront of issues paramount in the field of special
- cation today. In 1984, Madeleine Will, then the Assistant Secretary of the Office of Special Education
41 Rehabilitation Services (OSERS) at the U.S. Department of Education, anncunced a new federal
it ative called “transition.”  Will described transition in terms of the movement of youth with disabilities

=i school services 1o postschool employment opportunities: "The transition from school 1o working life
=0 outcome-oricnted process encompassing a broad array of services and experience that lead o
moloyment® (Figure 1).  Halpern (1985) broadened the definition of transition to ¢ncumpass not only

- dloyment, but all dimensions of adult adjusiment and community involvement, including residential

s-wonment. social and interpersonal networks. and personal satisfaction (Figure 2).

Since the transition status of youth with disabuliues was first called into question 1n the early 1980s,

»-~« 72l postschool follow-up studies were conducted, each detailing the grim status of vouth with disabilitics.
most fecent widely publicized study of the postschool outcomes of youth with disabilities is the “iational
‘.ngitudinal Transition Study (Wagner, 1989). The National Longitudinal Transition Study (NLTS)

+ .dfed datz on more than 8,000 vouth between the ages of 13 and 23 who were in special education

¢ grams an 1935-86. The NLTS suggests that after exiting sceondary school programs many youth with

-+ tihues expenence difficulues finding employment or other productive actmvitics. The study asserts that
"+ +atOTS and semice providers can assist youth in obtaining more positive postschool outcomes by helping

- osouth avord failure 1n school, thereby increasing the likelihood that they finish school. According 10

Y

- er "Graduanng from high schoal is associated wath better transition outcomes for youth when they

Ao schowl”

PHor toothe 8T e ran ieies coasiently dovumented that a disturbingly large portuon of

el cducation sudents icave school without the skills necessary to work of lise independently
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in their communities (Edgar & Levine, 1986; Wehman, Kregel & Seyfarth, 1985; Fardig, Algozzine,
Schwartz, Hensel & Westling, 1985; Mithaug, Horiuchi, & Fanning, 1985; Brodsky, 1983). One report in
Virginia indicated that only 41 percent of former special education students were employed (Wehman et
al, 1985). Dismal employment trends were also reported in other states including Colorado (Mithaug et

al., 1985), Florida (Fardig et al., 1985), M. husetts (M. husetts Department of Education, 1982),

Oregon (Brodsky, 1983), Vermont (Hasazi ¢: al, 1985), and Washington (Edgar & Lavine, 1986). These
studies also reported on the inability of former students to access postschool services which might enhance
their employment or independent living skills. Student follow-up studies also reveal that despite an
emphasis in special education on equality, integration, and independence, large numbers of students leave
public education and enter into segregated, dependent, non-productive lives. In addition, the vast majority

of students with disabilities leave school only 1o join lengthy waiting Lists for adulr service programs.

In a report to the President and the Congress of the United States entitled, entitled The Education

of Students wath Disabilities: Where Do We Stand?, the National Council on Disability (September, 1989,

concurred with results of postschool follow-up siudics, 'ﬁnding that upon leaving school students with

disabilities are not adequately prepared for employment, and are unable to access resources that enhance
their participation in community life. Without employment, many individuals wrn 1o community services
(i.e. public assistance}, with about eight percent of the Gross National Product being spent o provide such
services. In Arizona many of the services necessary 1o assist adults with disabilitice in the community are
not asailable at graduation due to long waiting li;ts for vocational and residential programs. One purposc

of wateragency collaboration in (ransition planning is 10 identify the necessary services for students with

disabilitics prior to graduation and connect students with these services.

The Counal also found that graduaies with disabilities are more likely 10 be employed following
sthool if comprehensive vocational training 1s 2 pnmary component of their high school program. Academic
Preparation continues to be the core of secondary programs for the majority of special education students

li Anzon: - As a resuit of the “Excelience in Education” movement, graduation requirements are increasing
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in the mainstream curriculum, and consequently, more time each day is devoted 10 acadermic skills. Since
the majority of special educaticn studezts are mainstreamed, this trend forces many students 1o spend less
time on career and vocational experiences (Edgar, 1987). Now is the time 1o focus on reforming edncation
programming, particularly as it relates 1o the acquisition of functiona! academic, vocational, and independent
tiving skills. Functional education and effective transition planning for high school students with disabilities

can facilitate their success in adult life.

Parent participation during high school also facilitates the “uccessful transition of students.
However, the Council found that parents are not actively involved in the transition of their son or daughter
from school to adult life, Business-school partnerships are also lacking in most seoondary school progran:s.
While relationships between schools and businesses are important, especially in sccondary education, schools
have not been involved actively in soliciting partnerships with the business community. If the school years
are 10 be successful, educators, adult service providers, employers and families must all work together toward

the development of optimally realistic transitions for all siudents with disabilities,

In response, the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) has estwblished a national priority for
improving the transition from school 10 work and adult life for all individuals with disabilities. The
Indwviduals with Disabilltles Education Act (IDEA) delincates new requirements and opportunities m the
area of wransition. This amendment o PL 94-142 includes ininatives to (1) improve 1ransition planning for
individual students through modifications of the [EP process, and (2) 1o imptove planning for program
Gapacity (0 support the service needs thar arc identified in individual plans. Over the past few years the
Arizona Department of Education has attempted 10 improve secondary transttion outcomes through
technical assistance, funding of model demonstration projects, and interagency collaboraton, Howcver, it
appears that with Arizona having approximaiely 4,500 students with disabilities leaving schoo! each YOO our

capacity to deliver effecuve programs and services needed 1o produce outcomes must be improved. A

statewide systeuns change approach is needed to effect interagency collaboration for the purpose of

denufying and addressing those services required for successful transiion,
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IDEA (P.L. 101-476) MANDATE FOR TRANSITION SERVICES

In October, 1990, President Bush signed into law the Education of the Handicapped Act
Amendments of 1990, known as the Individuals with Disabilities Educasion Act (IDEA), PL 101476, The
following pages will acquaint the reader with the sections of /DEA and proposed regulations pertaining to
transition services. Please note that at this time there only exists the Proposed Rules and Regulations ;o

IDEA. The final Rules and Regulations 1ill need to be consulted when they are available,

Also in October 1990, President Bush signed into law another Iegislative act which promotes the
successful transition of students with disabilities from school 1o adult fife: the Carl D. Perkins Vocational
and Applied Technology Education Act Amendments of 1990 (PL 101-392). While PL 101-392 requires
ihat local vocational program grant recipients (i.c., local school districts) provide assurances that eligible
students with disabilities will be provided transition services, only the IDEA mandates that transition services
will be included in the Individual Education Program (IEP) of all stwdents receiving special education

services by age 16.

The IDEA further requires that for swaenis leaving school services, the IEP must identify the
1ypes of adult services, such as Vocational Rehabilitation, the students need in their transition from school

to adult life. The IDEA regulations may also require that the IEP 1eam include representatives from the

identified adult service agencies, such as a Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor. These requirements will

be difficult for local scheol districts 1o comply with as the appropriate adult service agencies, such as

Rehabilitation Services Administration, are not under similar mandates 1o serve transition age students,

AL present, the hurden of providing transition services 1o transition-age students with disabilitics
lies soley on education.  However, education alone cannot provide for the successful transition of students

irom school into the community without the commitment and involvement of the appropriate community
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agencies. In other words, mandating one entity, namely cducation, with transition services will NOT be
successful unless there is also mandated collaboration and participation of those agencies students with

disabilities are transitioning into, such as Vocational Rehabilitation. Therefore, it is crucial that the

reauthorization of the Rehabilitation Act include similar requirements which mandate rehabilitation
professionals to provide services to students with disabilities in transition from school 10 adule life.
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TRANSITION
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

P.L. 101-476
Proposed Regulations August, 1991

Definition

“The term ‘transition services’ m.ans a coardinated set of activities for a student, designed
within an outcome oriented process, which promotes movement from school to post-school
activities, including post-secondary education, vocational training, integrated employment
(including supported employment), continuing and adult education, adult services,
independent living or community participation. The coordinated set of activities shall be
based upon the individual student’s needs, taking into account the student’s preferences
and interests, and shall include instruction, community experiences, the development of
employment and other post-school adult living objectives, and, when appropriate,
acquisition of daily living skills and functional vocational evatuation." (20 USC 1401 (a)

(19))

NOTE: .« In the comments sect’on, transition services may be special education if they are specially
designed instruction, or related services if they are required to assist a student wath a
disability 10 benefit from special education

The list of "activities® are not exhaustive but are only examples of different types of post-
school activities.

Definition of IEP

The IEP shall include a statement of needed transition services for students beginning no
later than age 16 and annually thereafter (and when determined appropriate for the
individual, beginning at 14 or younger), including when apr-upriate, a statement of the

interagency responsibilities or linkages (or both) before the student leaves the school
setting.

NOTE: - The optional statement of agency responsibilities or linkages should be included if a State
or local agency, other than the schools, is responsible for providing or paying for needed
transition services. The intent is 10 address shared financial responsibility for providing
transition services.
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Continued TRANSITION IDEA P.L. 101476 Proposed Regulations August, 1991

Related Services

Rehabilitatjon Counselin ices means services provided by a qualified rehabilitation
counseling professional, in individual or group sessions that focus specifically on career
development, ¢mployment preparation, achieving independence, and integration in the
workplace and community of a student with a disability. The term also includes vocational
rehabilitation services provided to students with disabilities by vocational rehabilitation
programs funded under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. (b) (10)

NOTE: « *Rehabilitation Counseling Services* are intended 10 address the effect of the student’s
disability on employment and other post-school activities. Congressional intent is that other
agencies funded under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 not be relieved of their responsibility
for providing rehabilitation services 10 cligible students.

Social Work Services include preparing a social or developmental history on a child with
a disability; group and individual counseling with the child ard family; working with those
problems in a child’s living situation (home, school, and community) that affect the child’s
adjustment in school; and mobilizing school and community resources to enable the child
to receive maximum benefit from his or her educational program. ®) (12)

NOTE: - “Social Work Services® are an eligible related service. The proposed regulations broaden
the scope of services beyond “in schools®.

Participants in Meetings

Transition services personnel. For students with disabilities aged 16 years and older, and

for stadents below age 16 whose need for transitior: services is being considered, the public*
agency shall ensure that any meeting to develop, review, or revise the student’s

individualized education program includes

(1) A representative of the public agency responsible for providing or supervising the
provision of transition services: and

(2)  If appropriate,” a representative of each other participating agencies providing the
transition services included in the studert’s individualized education prograrm.

NOTE: - Conuments 2 1o Section 300.344 clarifies that tie public agency resporsible for the student's
oducation must ensure that, if appropriate,* the student participates at the 1IEP meeting
regarding transition services.

* The term “if appropriate® may be eliminated in the final Rules and Regulations
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Continued TRANSITION IDEA P.L. 101476 Propased Regulations August, 1991

Agency Responsibilities for Transition Services

(@) Ifa participating agency, other than the public agency responsible for the student’s
education, fails to provide agreed upon tramsition services contained in the
individualized education

As used in this subpart, “participating agency" means a State or local agency, other
than the public agency responsible for the student’s education, that is financially and
legally responsible for providing transition services to the student.

Nothing in this part relieves any participating agency, including a state vocational
rehabilitation agency, of responsibility to provide or pay for any transition service
that the agency would otherwise provide to students wiiir disabilities who meet the
eligibility criteria of that agency.

. It is the intent that the public agency responsible for the student’s education, will take the
Necessary steps to ensure that each child with a disability receives neaded transition senices

gency has failed 1o provide the student with the agreed upon
transition se:vices in the student’s IEP.
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THE NEED FOR SYSTEMS CHANGE IN TRANSITION SERVICES IN ARIZONA

Arizona presents unique needs 10 the delivery of transition services to youth with disabilities.
Arizona is the sixth largest state in total territory, encompassing nearly 114,000 square miles. Additionally,
it is one of the fastest growing states, with a current population in excess of 3.7 million citizens. Over 75%
of this population is concentrated in the two metropolitan areas of Phoenix and Tucson. Another 3 percent
of the population lives in the cities of Yuma, Flagstaff, and Prescott. Over 20% of the state population is
scattered among small rural communlities and the 20 Native American reservations which are located within
the state. Berween 1990 and 2000, the largest scgment of growth within Arizona's population is expected
10 continue to be among Hispanics and individuals over the age of 65. Arizona has been and will continue
1o be the fastest growing state in the nation, at least into the onset of the twentieth century (O'Connell and
Schacht, 1989). It is cxpected to grow from 3.36 million in 1986 10 5.34 million by the year 2000 (Arizona
Department of Economic Security, 1988). Arizona is one of the few statcs to show growth in the 18-24 year
old range between 1980 and 1987, and was onc of the highest ranked states with respect 1o net migration
(O'Connell and Schacht, 1989). As such, the state of Arizona is unique in terms of its cultural and
geographic diversity and its implications for the deliery of effective and efficient support services to persons

with disabilities.

There are 227 school districts in Arizona, ranging in size from the two largest districts with over
50.000 students each, to ten one-teacher districts having fewer than ten students. Nearly 25 of the districts
in the state have fewcer than 100 students. The cthnic breakdown of Arizona’s school age populaiion o~
approximately 23% Spanish surname, 6.5% Native American, 4% black, 1% Oricntal and other n.n.white.
and 65% white. Compounding the challenge (0 Jelivering transition services are :nique language and
dialectical differences within Arizona. This includes several languages which have only an aueal troaslorm:
these languages have no written form. Recruiing and mamtainiag & e jo's an’s and providing adult

services and employment opportunitics are critical conce:ns 1 Anzona's Tural end reraete afeas.
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The state of Arizona has approximately 59,000 special education students receiving public
educztional services from approximately 125 high school and unified school districts. Of this population,
approximately 31% are between the ages of 14 and 21, As such, between now and 1997, in excess of 22,500
students receiving special education services will be exiting school Systems {0 an uncertain future. Very little
is known about the transition needs of these students as there have been no follow-up/foliow-along studies
conducted on a statewide basis. Based upon data submitted to the Office of Special Education Programs
at the US. Depantment of Education (Arizona State Plan Under Part B of the Education of the
Handicapped Act, February, 1989), the Arizona Department of Education identified the need for iransition

planning and transition programs as one of the top priority areas for program improvement.

The need for systems change in the delivery of transition services is consistent among the state
agencics serving youth with disabilities in Arizona. A comprehensive needs assessment was conducted by
the Arizona Department of Education (ADE-SES, 1988) to determine perceived training needs of
professionals in the field. Local education agencies (LEAs), private schools, and agencies that were surveyed
(i64) indicated their program training needs as including transition, inter- and intra-departmental
coordination, and individual plan development. A report issued by the Arizona Governor's Council on
Developmental Disabilities (GCDD, 1990) states that one of the significant jssues that must be addressed
by the state of Arizonx in order 10 assure that all Arizona citizens with developmental disabihiies can
experience integrated, independent, and productive lives in the community is the issue of interagency
program planning and coordination. Arizona Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) identified the
transition of youth with disabilities from school to employment as a top priority in program planning

(Strategic Plan for Rehabilitation Services, May 1990-April 1991).

Perhaps the most convincing need for this project is a recent survey of special education directors
across Arizona. This statewide survey was specifically designed by the Arizona Department of Education,

Special Education Section (ADE-SES) and the University of Arizona, Special Education and Rehabilitation

(UA-SER) 10 asscss the current level of transition planning within local school districts, and to identify
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specific areas in  nced of technical assistance and training. Of approximately 80 schooi distric*s who
responded 10 the survey, nearly 65% responded that no school official was specifically responsidle for

assuring that students with disabilities transitioned to postschool services. Equally alarming, less than 10

of respondents indicated that their school districts had conducted needs assessments or follow-up surveys.

while over 95% indicated that they would be willing to participate in such projects in their locality. Among
the most frequently identified barriers to transition planning, school districts identified their rural location,
lack of locally available adult services, and a lack of interagency coordination. Clearly these resuits indicatce
not only a critical need for implementing statewide changes in transition services, but also a willingness uf

school districts 10 participate in the implementation and utilization of such programs.
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CURRENT STATUS OF TRANSITION SERVICES IN ARIZONA

Several strong transition initiatives are occuring in Arizona. This section will provide a description

of the current availability, access, and quality of transition services for youth with disabilities in Arizona.

Arizona Department of Education-Special Education Section (ADE-SES)

The Special Education Section of the Arizona Department of Education exists to assist and assure
that Arizona school districts provide all childrez with disabilities in Arizona an appropriate, quality
education 10 enable them to live in their zommunity with the maximum possible independence as adults.
This is accomplished by providing information and technical assistance to local and private cducation
agencies, other state agencics, parents and the community; distributing and utilizing state and federal funds;
developing and supporting innovative projects; assuring appropriate training is available t0 those concerned
with the education of children with disabilities; reviewing programs to enhance their effectiveness and
determine their compliance with the provisions of swatc and federal laws, rules, and regulations; and
establishing networks of interagency collaboration in support of children with special needs. The ADE-
SES supports the establishment and operation of innovative and cffective approaches to meet the needs of
youth with disabilities. Sincc 1979, the ADE-SES has provided funding for the development of several

model transition projects in communities throughout the state,

When IDEA was signed into law, the ADE-SES proactively assistied local school districts by
prowviding information on the Jaw and suggested procedures for implementation of the transition services

requirements (Sce Appendix A).

The ADE-SES poblishes a quarterly newsletier highlighting special education issues and initiatives.
This newsletter, the SPECIAL EDition, features a continuing column on transition services. Copies of this

column arc contained in this packet in Appendix B.

37
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Special Education/Vocational Education Speciallst Profect.

Since 1987, the ADE-SES has provided technical assistance and training to public and private
agencies in areas related 10 tramsition planning for youth with disabilities tkrough the Special
Education/Vocational Education Specialist Project. Technical assistance and training is provided in several
areas related 10 trapsition planning including vocational assessment, work experience, vocational education,
career development, and other related transiiion service areas. Many local education agencies in Arizona
have atiempted 10 provide these services and have met with varying levels of success. During the period
from November 1987 10 May 1992, the ADE-SES Special Education/Vocational Educatlon Specialist Project
has received over 500 requests from LEAs, private schools, and agencics for technical assistance and training

in the above areas. The project sponsors an annual statewide transition conference attended by over 300

persons yearly. The project also sponsors institutes on topics such as vocational cvaluation several times

throughout the school year.  These institutes draw nearly 250 participants. This Special
Education/Vocational Education Specialist Project employs 1 full-time equivalent (FTE) professional staff

and .5 FTE support staff and estimates that over 800 SEA and LEA staff directly benefit from *hese efforts

yearly.

In addiuon to the Special Education/Vocational Education Specialist Project, the foundation for

creating systems change for transition services is being initiated in Arizona through two federally-funded

{ransuion projects.

Arizona Follow-Along Project.

Ir order 10 understan the 1mpact of education and transition services on the posischool outcomes
of youth with disabilities in Arizona, a carefully designed follow-along strategy is being implemented. In
November 1991, the ADE-SES was awarded a 1wo-year federallv-funded State Agency/Federal Evaluation
Studies project, known as the Arizona Follow-Along Project. The Arizona Follow-Along ™ viect utilizes a follow-

along strategy 10 assess the postschnol outcomes of students with disabilities 10 influence statewide systems

605686 O ~ 92 - 4
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change on educational programs and transition services. This project has three primary goals: (1) to
implement a system for collecting rouow-along information that has the capacity to describe the posischool

comimunity adjustment of school 1&avers with disabilities; (2) 10 implement a system for utilizing follow-

along information at state and local levels 10 achieve imbrovcmcn!s in programs and policies serving

students and young adults with disabilities; and (3) to provide technical assistance 1o state and local staff
as they use the follow-along information 10 examine policies and programs. The ADE-SES is subcontracting
10 Arizona State University - West Campus (o provide the day-to-day coordiration of this project. Project
staff include a .25 FTE project director and .5 FTE project administrative assistant from the ADE-SES; .25

FTE project coordinator, .5 FTE project research assistant, and project interviewers at ASU-West.

Project ACTT: Arizona Community Transition Teams.

To create successful and lasting systems change, the Arizona Follow-Along Project is being
accompanied by an intervention strategy, whose purpose is 10 use the follow-along data to improve
educational programs and transition services. In October, 1991, the ADE-SES was awarded a three-year
federally funded multi-district outrcach project, known as Projecs ACTT: Arizona Community Transition Teams.
Project ACTT utilizes an intervention strategy, Local Community Transition Teams (LCTTs) for effecting
systems change on entitics that have the greatest impact on the transition outcomes ex;erienced by youth
with disabilitics: the school; the community; and the adult service systems. Project ACTT will develop 1S5
10 18 LCTTs in targeted communities throughout Arizona in three years. At least one-half of these 1argeted
communities will be rurally based and/or located on Native American reservations. These LCTTs, comprised
of parents, educators, and adult agency representatives, develop and implement community action plans

designed 10 amelicrate locally identified barriers 10 effective transition planning,

The general purpose of transition teams is 1o identify local needs and gaps in services, programs,
policics, and procedures which impede youth with disabilitics from achieving locally vatued outcomes and
opportumities. Once these needs have been identified, the function of the transition teams is to develop

and implement locally-based systems change strategics for ameliorating the identified needs. The Community
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Transition Team Model consists of five basic phases: (1) Team Building, (2) Needs Assessment, (3)

Program Planning, (4) Program Implementation, and (5) Program Evaluation. Each phase of this model
is highly structured and supported with both matedals (including a procedural manual) and technical
assistance (See Table 1). Although this intervention model provides state support for local control, the

common procedures used by the Local Community Transition Teams and the accomplishments of each team
are 10 be aggregated at the state lczel 1o assist the Arizona Department of Education to identify and address

transition barriers at the state icvel.

Project ACTT will also assist local communities in the implementation of an Individualized Transition
Planning process for all special education youth within their communities. This project will also develop
a variety of technical assistance resources for local communities to draw upon as they implement transition
planning. A “train-the-trainer” mndel will be developed using LCTT leaders to facilitase the development
of LCTTs in other localities. Project ACTT will sponsor semi-annual leadership institutes for LCTT leaders,
assist in conducting the annual statewide transition conference, and develop a resource library. The ADE-
SES is subcontracting 10 the University of Arizona to provide coordination of daily activities. Project staff
include a .25 FTE project director, 1.0 FTE local community transition team facilitazor, and .5 administrative

assistant at ADE-SES; .5 FTE project coordinator and .5 clerk typist at UA-SER.

This intervertion model will provide a systematic means of using follow-along information from the
Arizona Follow-Along Project 10 effect systems change in local communities, and at the state level. The
follow-along information generated by the Arizona Follow-Along Project will feed into the needs assessment

and planning process of the Local Community Transition Teams being implemented in Arizona. The

interchange of Information and the transition team intervention models provide u powerful new level of

impact for guiding statewide systems change in Arizona.
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Table 1

Phases of the Trunsition Team Model

TEAM BUILDING: Tho pufpose of this phase 1s to establish a strong, cohesivo team that
P the p of the tosal Y.

NEELS ASSESSMENT In this phase. toams & naeds t instrument
{Halpern. tindstrom. Bonz. & Rothstrom, 1990} that evelualos tha
ty on 38 dards ropi g s di : (o) f
and instruction, {b) d and i g. (c) transt.on. ()
doct {0) ad support. and (f) adult sarvices and
communtty fes.urces.

PROGRAM PLANNING Based upon resufts of the needs assessment. the transmon team moves
threugh a sernas of g steps, bling them to d p broad goris
statements into & working annual plan. This plan delinootes the spocific
objectives. lasks. umeiines. perscns responsible, and budget trat reiate
to the priority standards the team identrfies 0 aacress.

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION Dunng this phase the toams are involved in i ing the act
they dentrfioc in Program Planning to create changos in the locai sorv.ze
dehvery systems.

PROGRAM EVALUATION- In trus phase. teams follow a structured proceduro to raview the work they
havo comp.eted. and beg~ te process of planning tor tho subseQuent
yoar.

Arizona Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA)

Approximatcly 10 years ago, the Arizons Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA). in
conjunction with the Anzona Department of Education, Special Education and Vocational Education
seclions, established the VESPERS agreement. This agreement outlined the various responsibilities and
commitments of each of these agencies n providing school 10 work services 10 youth with disabilities. That
agreement, however, was only a first step which, since that time, has sccn RSA establish itself in a position

af state leadership 1n an effort to provide more cffective transition services 10 youth with disabilitics.

Beginning 1n 1936 with the ist of a senes of intergovernmental agreements between RSA aad
tocal educational agencies (LEAs), RSA has proceeded to place substanual personnel and case service

Joliar resources nto collaborative transiion programs. In the process, RSA and LEAs have established

4 level ot trust. cooperation. and close working relationships which are unprecedented 1n Anvzona lustory,

In 1990, RSA estab'shed o five vear strofegic plan m which the P pnorty gosl was o expand the
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accessibility of RSA services 10 transition age youth. During the past 18 riouchs, this goal has been

effectively implemented, resulting in excess of 2,400 special education youth accessing services from RSA

RSA initiated a Task Force on Transition in 1989 which discussed inter- and intragency transition
issues. R3A is promoung liaitons with Arizona school districts through intergovernmental agreements for
the purpose of providing secondary special education students with approoriate employment preparation.
Statewide, there are now intergovernmental agreements (IGAs) established between RSA and four of the
ten county sehool superintendents offices, including Pima and Maricopa counties. Collectively. these IGAs
have generated $1.2 million in Title | case service dollars, the majority of which is expended upon direct
services to youth.  Additionally, RSA has targeted over $750,000 for personnel to serve transition age
vouth. To date, 21 of RSAs vocational rehabilitation counselors maintain transition designated caseloads.
Many of these counselors are physically housed on high school campuscs, providing the (ull range of
vocational rehabilitative services 10 eligible youth with disambilities. With these agreements, barners 1o
service delivery still exist, aithough coordination and communication is enhanced between school personnel,
families. and vocational rehabilitation counselors.  Without these agreements, the coordination between
LEAs and local vocational rehabilitaton offices allows only for referral (or services 2s the student leaves

school services. Referral for services at this point in the transttion process typically results i wait listing,

Arizona Division of Devetopmental Disabilities (DDD)

The Division of Developmental Disabilities within the Arizona Department of Emplovment security
(DES), provides comprehensive services to individuals with disabilities in any of four diagnostic categories’
autism, cerebral palsy, mental retardation or epilepsy. Vocational training and employment services are
among the programs currently offered hy the Division, for vouth with D.D. who are transition age. Duc
to the combination of an increase n Title X1X funded services and shrinking state appropnations, current

funding is not available from the division 10 provide fong term support (or those students who would be

appropriaie for supported employment. In the ahsence of this funding. another approach being explored 1




the use of natural supports in the workplace.

Through a joint effort of the Governor’s Planning Council on Developmental Disabilities and the
(DES) Rehabilitation Services Administration, two projects have been developed to pilot the patural
supports option. One of these pilots focuses on marketing strategies and labor market analysis; the second
on interpersonal and environmental dynamics at the job site and the extent to which supervisors and
co-workers might provide individual supports. [he outcome of these pilots will impact the further

development of  natural Supports approach as a contracted service that presents a viable alternative given

the funding impasse for long term supports.

The 1990 report issued by the Arizona GCDD highlights the fact that the program planning process
in Arizona's service systems occurs at the regional, county, and local levels. The report charges that these
varying strata of service delivery increases the difficulty of coordinating planning efforts across programs.
An additional concern expressed by this report includes the lack of adequate program planning on the part

of cducation to address the transition from school to work.

Arizona Employment and Training Administration

The Employment and Training Administration, also within DES, provides placement services
through its Job Service program at 26 offices throughout the state. Since 1988, Job Service has had a
cooperative agreement with.the Rehabilitation Services Administration that provides for specialized job
development and placement services for individuals with disabilities, and a close working relationshiy
between the VR Counselor and Job Service Specialist. To maximize the use of this resource and avoid
duplicative services, RSA has developed cross-training workshops for staffs of both agencies. Through this
agreement, RSA also offers a financial incentive to the Job Service for each placement that has been

successful for the VR client,

g
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Traint hip Act

The Job Training Partnership Act, JTPA, has as its mission the establishment of "programs o
prepare youth and unskilied adults for entry into the labor force and to offer job training to those
cconomically disadvantaged individuals and other individuals facing serious barriers to employment and who
are in special need of such training to obtain productive employment.* In the first half of state fiscal 1992,
the Arizona JTPA program, administered under the DES, served 2,322 youth. Of that number, 867
completed services, either entering employment or attaining a level of competency in specific skill areas
recognized by local Industry Councils. Approximately 109% of those successfully exiting JTPA were youth
with disabilities. In order (o naximize the above resources and avoid duplication of services to transitioning
youth, some concepts outlined in Job Training 2000, a White House position paper issued in Janeary 1992,
can be implemented.  Greater involvement of the Private Industry Couacil in each local community, new
approaches to the development of apprenticeships, on-the-job trainiag and mentoring programs znd the
creation of centers for specific skills training in the community will streamline access to jobs for all

transitioning youth, including those who have identified disabilities.
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ARIZONA UNMET NEEDS IN TRANSITION SERVICES

In 2 recent funding proposal submitted to the U.S. Department of Education, the Arizona
Deparument of Education delineated the uamet needs in Arizona in delivering appropriate transition services

to students with disabilities (See Tadle 2).
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Arizona
Department of Education

C. DIANE BISHOP
Superintendent MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 19, 1991

TO: Superintendents
Directors of Special Education
Kathryn A Lund, Ph.D. +\j‘
Deputy Associate Superimendent
Special Education Section

SUBJECT: fDEA Transinoa Mandate

Recently, we received information from the U. S. Department of Education regarding the implementanion
of transition services as required by the Ind «‘duals with Disabilities Educatn Act (IDEA). Tie Office of
Special Educstion Programs bas deter~uned that transition services must be included in the 1EPs of
students age 16 years an< older, and if appropriate, for students age 14 years or younger. by the 1991-
1992 school year. We realize that the end of the school year is rapudly approaching with numerous
obligations. You may fec! that it is impossible to meet all of the requirements for transition. Pleasce be
advised that you will need to determine whether your stefT will include transition services in the IED either
by the end of this year, or amend the IEP at the beginning of the school year 1991-92,

The Individuals With Disabiities Education Act (IDEA) includes new statutory provisions on “runsiion
services.”" The term “mansinion senices® is defined as "o coordinated set of actities for a student. Jesignea

within on outcome-oriented process. which p-omotes movement from school 1o post-school ucinies, incluing
post-secondary educouon, vocononal rrowning, integroted employment lincluding supported employment . continung
and edult education, adult services, independent hiving, or ity participation. The courdinaid et of
actviries sholl be based upon the individual student’s reeds, taking into account the student’s preferences und
wterests, and sholl include instruction. community experiences, the development of emplayment and other post-
school adult living objectives. and, when appropriate, acquisition of datly living skills ond funcuonal vocationai
evaluonon.”

Bv Fall, 1991, the Individual Education Plan (IEP) must include:

B A statement of the needed trunsition services for students beginning no fater than ase 16 and
anpually thereafter (and, when appropriate for the individual, beginning at age 14 or younaery:

2) When appropriate, a statement of the Interagency responsibilities or linkages (or hoth) hefore the
student leaves the school st tting;

31 In the case where a participating agency, other than the educational sgency, fails to provide agreed
upon services, the educational agency shall reconvene the (EP team to identify alternative strutegies
to meet the transition objectives.

Laura Love and Lillic Sly, of the Special Education Secuion, are available to assivt districts with curficulum
arcas 1 be covered when developing transiuon plans. development of goals and objectives, and suggested
procedures for -developing the tiansition components of the 1EP.  Additonal informanon will he
disseminated to LEAs when the federal regulations on IDEA are avaiable.

o IR e e Phoceny Anzoqg S e
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Areas To Be Considered When Developing Transition Plans

FINANCIAL & INCOME

Eamed Income

Ui Income (gl

Isurance Qife/anauitics)

General Public Assiatance

Food Stampe

Supplemeatal Secunty Income (SSI)

With Family

Adult Foster Care

Intermediate Care Facility for Mentally Retarded
Group Home

Semi-Independent Living (supervised)

Share Living (roommate)

Independeat Living (own housc/apaniment)
Otber Living Armangerent

LEISURE & RECREATION

R ot/S "

pec (Speaal Otympres)
Spoits or Social Clubs (YMCA. Scouts, bealth clubs)
Community Center Programs
Community Colleges (craft classcs, art, music)
Parks and Recreauon Programs
Hobby Clube
Independent Activities (bowling. tennis)

MEDICAL SERVICES & RESOURCES

Medical Carex Intermittent Care, Daily (long-term) Care

Medical Servicex: General Medical Services (check-ups),
Medication Services, Dental Care

Medical/Accident [nsurance

Financal Resourees Group Policy Avadable, Indmidual Policy.
Medicad. Other

POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION &
VYOCATIONAL TRAINING

On-The-Job Training (OJT)
Job Training Parinership Act (JTPA)
C i nr i

Y gy
Vocational Techaical Ceaters
Community Based Education & Training
Competitive Employmient
Supported Work Models
Volunteer Wock
Rehabilitation Facitities

PERSONAL MANAGEMENT &
FAMILY RELATIONSHIP

Houschold Management
Moacy Management

Social Skills

Hygiene Skilla

Personal Counscling/Therapy
Safety

Parenting Skilla

Health AidefHome Attendant
Suppoct Group

Respite Care

Visiting Arrangements
Churches

TRANSPORTATION

Independent (own ar, bicycle)

Public Transportation (bus. tax, train)
Speculized Transporiation (wheeicharr, van)
Specialized Equi (elecine }

P quip

ADVOCACY & LEGAL SERVICES

Guardianship/Conservatorship
Wills/Trusts, Other

ADE-SES TRN 491




8 skills,

OBJECTIVES
1. Given a2 monthly budget form, a list of daily needs
and a weekly income of $30, the student will complets
the budget form correctly,

2. Given an opportunity to view four different sets of
dlothing, the student will identify the set appropfiate
for working, swimming, sleeping and playing with 80%
accuracy.

LIVING +RRANGEMENTS

GOAL
The studeat will develop an awareness of various living
arrangements.

ORJECTIVES
1. After discussion and visits to five different living
arrangements, the student will identify four out of five
living arrangements correctly.

2. After selecting a semi-super ised aparime..., the
student will live in the apariment and will be
responsible for cleaning and self-care for two b

Im 'Ierm Objecuves

BT it & -

FINANCIAL & INCOME
GOAL
The student will explore various sources of income.

OBJECTIVES
1. After a visit to the Sodal Security Administration
office, the student will complete an application for
soclal security benefits, provide necessary documents,
and submit application and d¢ within three
months.

2. After participation in classroom activities on
varicus sources of income, thie student will identify six
out of eight sources of income correctly.

MEDICAI SERVICES & RESOURCES
GOAL

The student will increase kmowledge of medical
services and resources.

OBJECTIVES
1. After panicipation in classroom activities and
visitations to medical facilities, the student will idenuify
six out of eight medical agencies that will assist in
maintining good health.

2. Upon request, the student will select three

TRANSPORTATION
GOAL
The swdent will explore various types of
transportation.

OBJECTIVES
1. Given a bus schedule, the student will identify the
bus route from home 10 the vocational center and will
ride the bus to and from the vocational center for nine
weeks.

2. After participation in a driver’s cducation program.
the student will obtain a passing sctre on the writisn
test, road test and vision test within a six-month
perod.

make telephone contact with the personnel
managers, inquire as o the types of medical coverage
provided to employees, and record benefit types by
business.

LEISURE & RECREATION
GoAl.
The studert will explore interests and preferences in
the use of leisure and recreational activities.

OBJECTIVES
1. Upon request, the student will idenufy six
recreational/leisure activities and select [irst and second
preferences.

2. After completing pool safety training, upon request
the student will enty at least five pool sifety rules
correctly.

ADE-SES TRN 491
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ATLY ONSHIP
GOAL
The stud will develop an of various

agencies available to asslst in building personal and
family relationships.

OBJECTIVES
1. Upon request, the student will identify at least one
agency 1o assist individuals and families in each ot the
[ollowing arcas: marriage problems, drug abuse,
disability income, money management, and social and
emotional problems,

2. After moving into a semi-supervised apartment, the
student will arrange 2 date for his/her family to visit
the aparument and record the date, time and activity in
an appointment book correctly.

VOCATIONAL TRAINING & PLACEMENT
GOAL
The student will explore interests and preferences in
vocational training

OBJECTIVES
1. Given an imierest inventory, the student will
complete the inventory by selecting his/er preferences
by age 16.

2. Given an aptitude test, the student will complete
the test witbin the test-prescribed time frame.

3. After performing four different types of jobs, the
student will select his/her preferences.

ADVOCACY & LEGA!‘ SERVICES

The student will mcrease knowlcdgc of advocacy and
legal services available in local o

ORJECTIVE
L After participating in self-advocacy training, the
student will identify hisher rights to public
transportation.

2. After panticipating in self-advocacy training, the
student will identify his/her rights to employment.
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. LEAs shall ensure that IEPs which are developed or revised in Spring 1991, for

implementation in Fall 1991, include transition components, as appropriate.

. IEPs which do not include transition components by the end of FY 1991 shall be

amended at the beginning of the school year 1991.

. Transition services shal! be included in the IEP by the time a student is 16.

. LEAs shall develop procedures to determine when it is appropriate to inciude

transition services in an |EP prior to age 16.

. LEAs shall design a coordinated set of activities for each student, which premotes

movement from school to post-school activities/services. These are
e post-secondary education,
vocational training,
integrated employment (including supported employment).
continuing and adult education,
adult services,
independent living, and
community participation.

. Annual goals included in the IEP shall be outcome-oriented.

. When determining needed transition services,the |EP team shall include the stucdent

in goal setting and taks into account the individual student's needs, preferences, and
interests.

. LEAs shall provide a coordinated set of activities which include

e instruction,
community experiences,
development of employment and other post-school adult living cbjectives,
acquisition of daily living skills, and
functional vocational evaluation.

. When appropriats, the IEP shall include a statement of the interagency responsibiities

or linkages, or both, before the student leaves the school setring.

. The |EP team shall include representative(s) from appropriate adult service agenc:es

ADE-SES TRN 491
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Perspactive

‘Bven if you're on the right track. you'll get run over #
ycu just st there.
-~ Will Rogers

Transition Mizsion

AcCross the Unmed States, the National Council on
Disability in a companson of the general population to
people with special needs found:

® 15% of all adults have less than a high school
diploma; 40% of all parsons with disabilities did not
finish high school. (Harris and Associates, 1986)
8 25% of all students drop out of school; 36% of the
students with disabilities drop out. (Wagner, 1988)
® 56% of all students go on to postsecondary
education; 15% of all students with disabilities go on.
(Wagner,1889)

® 5% of all adults are unemployed; 67% of alt
Amencans with disabilities are not working.
(U.S. Census Bureau, 1989)

A recent study” shows canclusively that even the most
severely chalienged studerts, whan provided weh a
comprehensive transition program preparing themto go
out into the world of work, make money and save the
social system dollars and cents. Obwiously thosa
students with less challenging crcumstances should
enjoy an even higher leve! of success in the worlc of
werk and adutt life. We in education have the excring
oppoftunity to make this happen in Anzona. Thal's
your mussion, .

Something to Write Home About

e The Education of the tHanoi-ipped Act Discretionary
Programs, which inciude Secondary and Transttional
Services, are uncergoing reauthorzation. Of particular
nterest 1s the new subsection of discretonary funding
which provides a defintion of “ransmion® and requires
student IEPs reflect transtion services by age 16.
t'ause Rule 1013 proposes $25 milion of the $318.6
million allocated for discretionary programs be macde
avalatle for the Federal Education Departra.nt to
award one-time. comgettive, five-year grants to help
states wnprove ther transtion services for 14.22 year
olds. Pnorties will be gven to project$ which 1arget
fesources to schoo. settings; provide for cooperative
arangements for interagency funding of services: and
that encourage public and private investment in such
services and provide lor early nformaiion and training
for ndmiduals nvolved in ransinon services.

Transition

by Laura L. Love

The House and Senate versions of this bill differ in thexr
defintion of transtion services, HR 1013 cetines
transttion services as *a coordinated set of activities for
a student, designed within an outcome onented
process, which prcmotes movement from school to
integrated  employment  (including  supported
employment), postsecondary education. vocational
traming, continuing and adult education, adult services.
and independernt living and community participation.*

HR 1013 further defines that these activities are *based
on the individual student's needs’ and can include
instruction, community expenances, development of
employment and other postschool adutt fiving
objectives, acquistion of daly living skills, and
functional - acaticnal evajuaton.  Senate Bill 1824
broadens this defintion to include ‘..the vanous
transiions that a chid with a oisability may face
throughout the child's years in school..' Write your
congressman and let him know which defintion is n
keeping to the goals of aducation. We will keep you
posted on the final ruling of this reauthorization.

® As a resuft of the 1988 revised Depantment of Labor
Regulations, the United States Department of Education
inuated discussions with the Untted States Department
of Labor with the intent of developing a cooperatve
agreement for the placement of students with disabilities
into vocational training and communnty-Dased worksies.
We would like the Office of Special Education Programs
of the U.S. Depantment of Education 1o continue these
discussions untl an agreement has been reached with
the U.S. Depantment of Labor. Write your congressman
and ask him to apply pressure to the Department of
Education to continue these talks unt! a cooperative
agreement has been reached.

® Also undergoing reauthonzation: PL 98-524 Carl D.
Perkins Vocational Education Act; Jabs Training
Pannership Act (JTPA); Rehabiltauon Act of 1973.

Yahoo!!

Congratulatlones to the reclplents of the 1990-91 Title
VI-B Discretionary Funde Under Goal 3.0 Transltlon:

Fiowing wWells Unified School District

Anzona State School for the Deaf and Blind

Prescott Unified School District

Decartment of Economic Security - Services fuf the
8ind and Visually impaired

Fiorence Uned School District

Transition. continueg
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Love Affairs

During the 1890-81 school year we hope to intiate
transmion teams in selected special education programs
in Anzona There will be two levels of transition teams
in these prcgrams. One level called a Cemmunity
Transtion Team, is a county, district, or school level
team which focuses on program improvement. A
sacond level, calted the Individual Transition Team, 1s a
student-centereC team which focuses on graduation or
transition planning for individual students. ARlhough
teams are sugported with both funds and techrucal
assistance from he Arizona Department of Education -
Special Education Section, the focus of the teams is at
the local level, assessing their own needs and working
to solve common problems.

We are also planning to inttiate Folow-Along Studies in
selected special educaton programs. The goais of
these studies will be to 1) gescnbe the status of school
leavers with disabilties beginning with therr last year in
schoal and continuing annually duiing the early
transition years, and to compare the findings to a
sample of nondisabled peers; and 2) develop and
evaluate a management information system that will
aliow the follow-along information to ba used at both
state and local levels to make changes in seccndary
special education programs and transition services

Planning has started for revision of Work Experience .
A Resource Manual. A Transttion Manua is also in the
works 10 ba published in the near future.

New Kid on the Block

Dr Michael Shafer, Unwersity of Anzona. College of
Education, Dwision of Specil Education and
Rehabiltation, (602) 621-3214, 621-3248. or 621-7822.
Dr. Shafer 1s assisting in the development of a teacher
preparation program in transtion.

Garags Sale

‘Benefits and Costs of Integrating Students with
Sevsre Dissbliities into Regulsr Public school
Progrsms: A Study Summary of Monay Well Spent.
October, 1888. Contact Laura Love - 5423184 for a
copy of this study. Limned copies available

Work Experlence - A Resource Manusl, 1985. Cost.
$5.10. Contact the Central Distrbution Services, 542.
3088. Limned copies available

Help Inttiste Needed Trsnaitlon Services (HINTS),
1985. A Guige to Transtion Planning I Anzona.
Contact Laura Love. 542.3184 Lymned copies avaiabye

ACCESS-Ability

The Amerlcsns with Dissbliitles Act (ADA}, which
extends the protection of cwil nghits laws 10 persons
with disabiliies, was signed into law by President Bush
m late July, 1890. This legistation will require public
facilities, transportaton and communication services 1o
be accessible t0 person with disabities. 1t will aiso
outlaw job discrimination against an estimated 43 million
Americans. The ADA expands the defintion of
‘disability® as a ccndition that impairs *a major Ife
activity, such as walking, hearing, seeing, or working.
{While defintion encompasses some S00 disabilties, the
bl does not classify alconolism, drug abuse,
kleptomania, pyromania, and several sexual disorders
as disabilnties.)

The Act addresses four main areas:

Employment

s Employers may not discniminate against persons
with disabilities m hinng or promotion f the
ndividuar & atherwise qualdfied fcr the job:
Employers must make ‘reasonable
accommodations*® for workers with disabilities.
including making the workplace accessible or
providing readers or interpreters, unless this woutd
impose *signficant difficulty or expense:
The law would be effective in two years for
emplayers of 25 or more people. and in four years
for amployers of 15 or more,

Public facuities

s Public facilties such as restaurants. hotels. theatres
and stores must serve persons with dicabilties;

s New buildings or renovated facilities that will be
open to the public or are potentai employment
sites and are intended for occupancy 30 months
after the bill goes into effect must be accessible to
people in wheelcharrs;

s Existing buildings must be made accessible it tris
1s ‘easily accomphshable and able to be carred
cut without difficulty or expense®.

Trannportation

8 New public buses and -al cars bought 30 days
after the bul goes into effect must be accessible 1o
perstas In wheelchairs.

8 At least one rail car per tran must be accessible 1o
wheeichairs within five years;

s Pavate bus companies have seve _ears 10 mahe
their buses accessible (Greyhound has six years)

Communication

& Taiephone comparmes have unti 1993 1o provide a
relay operator 10 help customers with speech or
heanng mipairments 10 CommunicJte vwia typed 1ext
devices such as TOD's ftelepnone device for the
aeaf)

Transdion ccntnuco to Page 8




Transttion {con’t) Let’s Make A Date...

Cctober 16-17, 1930. Work snd Empioyment for
Persons with Developmental Diaabllities Conference -
Phoenix, AZ. Second annual employment conference
sponsored by the Governor's Council on Developmental
Disabilities. Co-sponsored by the Arizona Department
of Education - Special Education Secticn, Departme it
of Economic Security - Division on Developrrent.
Disabilites and Rehabiltation Services Administra-ion.

January 17, 1991. Arizons Transltion Conference -
Phoenix, AZ. Currently in the planning stages, this
conference will be a one-day ‘drive-in® sponsored by
the Arnzona Department of Education Special
Education Section,

October 3-5, 1990. Minority and Speclal Populations
of Visually impaired Persons: Strateglc Management
for Enhsncing Employment - Ramada Pima GoY
Resort, Scottsdale, AZ

October_4, 1990. Arlzcna Vocational Speclal Needs
SET FOR SUCCESS Fall Conference - Phoenx, AZ.

Mamn Theme: Curriculum Based Vocational Assessment.
Limited enroliment.

November 30 Decemoer 4, _1990. American
Vocational Assoclation Conferance - Cincinnati. GH.

This section of the SPECIAL EDITION will be an on-
going column. Please contact Laura Love at 542-3184
to share your school's transdion actvities.

Phoenix Children’s Hospital
Project

Phoenwx Children’s Hosprtal 1s a non-prolit, independent,
full service hosptal dedicated exctuswvely to canng for
children of Anzona. They prowde a full range of
Specialized pediatric services.

Parents and staff of Phoenix Children's Hospnal are
holding an annual fundraiser which consists of a three
day yard sale held in Tempe, Arizona. ITe proceeds
are restncted for family centered care. The proceeds
will help to purchase ftems which help to make the
hosgital stay easier on the children and their families.

This year the hosprtal has decided to expand their
fundraise- and along with th2 yard sale. have an
auction.  These events will be held the weekend of
October 12-14, 1990 at 1005 E. Carver, Tempe.

It would be very heipful 4 you would ike to donate
ttems for the yard sale such as children s toys, clothes.
tumiture, kitchen appliances, television sets. books.
sports equipment. etc.

If you are interesied in parucipaung, please contact Suz:
Usdane at 239-5681. Phoenix Children's Hospral
Development Cffice.

SEARCH
to

SERVE
\ et
Rita Kenison d 9,\
Child Find Cocrdinator =

Advocacy Training

The ADE/Child Find Advocacy Services waiil provide
advocacy tramings for volunteers to assist parents of
special educaton students n obtaning appropnate
services for their child. The role of advocates s to
clardy requirements, review documents with parents,
and attend meetings with school staff to represent the
needs of the chid.  Tentatve scheduled dates for
trainngs in Phoenix are: September 22; October 13:
November 10; and December t. To register for
tramings, call Sefina Salazar at 542-3852

Child Find Conference
October 19, 1990

Second Annual Child Find Conference at Mesa Holiday
Inn. fealunng strategies targeted to practrioners;
showcase extibits of screening practices and parent
support groups; and keynotes on effective parental

nvolvement in the eligibifity process. Call Rita Kenison
at 542-3852 for more information.

Publications

1 ADE/Special Education has a new version ol the
parenial nghts handbook enttled *Learning Your
Rights and Rofe In Speclal Education Servicea*
Copies may be ordered by caling Selina Saiazar at
542-3852. Distncts have permission to reprint the
handbook locally.

2. ADE.Special Education Section has reprinted the
tormer devzlopmental guidelines for chidren ages birth
through six entitled *Up | Grow* with a new cover.
“Every Step Counts’. Copies may be ordered by
caling Deanna Bigar at 542.3852

EVERY2o @,
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CrRANSITION,

Perspective

‘The closest to parfection & person ever comes is when
thay fil out 8 job application.*
- Stanley J. Randall

———— Love Affairs ——
ADEISES Firet Annual Conference on Transition
From School Servicas to Adutt Uving

Event: Transition Drive-In Conference

Daie: January 24, 1991

Lecatlor: Grace Inn - Ahwatukee, Phoenix
(Elliot & 1-10)

Time: 8.00a.m.-9:00a.m, Registraton

9.00a.m.-S:00p.m. Sessions
Festured Speakers: Dr. Andrew Halpern and
Dr. Miches! Benz
Secondary Special Education
and Transttion Programs
University of Oregon - Eugene
Also Presenting: Dr. Michasl Shafer
Special Education and
Rehabilitation
Unewversity of Anzona

Dr. Carotyn Hughua
Special Education Programs
Anzona State Unwersity

Diane Reese
Wage and Hour Division -
Department of Labor

Toplea:issues in Transmon: Past, Present and Future
Transtion Planning: A Good 1.D.E.A.
Student-Centered Transition Planning
Next Steps for Arizona Secondary Transition
Community Transtion Teams
Foliow-Along Studies
Supporting Student Success With Adult Services
Labor Regulations for Beginners and Beyond
1990-81 Anzona Secondary Trans# n Projects

Trs 15 the Arizona Department of Education, Special
£ducanon Sectior's first statewide conference on
school-to-adult life transmon.  We are encecuraging
cistnets 10 come as a team.  Teams should include
district personnel involved i preparing special needs
siudets for schoolto-adult lfe transition (Special
Education Teachers, Vocatonal Evaluators, Transtion
Specabsts, High School Department Charrs,
Puychologsis. Vocational/Regular Educators, Related

by Laura Love

Service Providers, Vocational Rehabilitation Ccunselors,
Developmental Disabiliies Case Managers, Special
E2ucation Jirectors, Principals, School Board Members,
Superintendents).  Registration is limted to 300
participants. Registration forms are available and must
be retumed by Janusry 16, 1891, No phone
registrations or on-site registrations will be taken! For
more information contact Laura Love, ADE/SES, (602)
542-3184.

Something to Write Home About
In late October, Arizona superintendents and special
eduration directors mnvolved in secondary programs
were mailed a survey titled, *Survey of Transiton
Planning and Technical Assistance Needs." This survey
was developed by ADE/SES and the University of
Arizona, Special Education and Rehabiltation
Department. To provide transition techrical assistance
to meet each district's unique needs, please complete
this survey and retum in the enclosed envelope as
quickly as possible. To receive first-hand resufts of this
first-ever transition planning survey, ATTEND THE
JANUARY 24, 1991, TRANSITION CONFERENCE!
Resutts will also be published for dissemination. i you
are interested in receiving a copy of the survey results,
please contact Laura Love, (602) 542-3184. or Dr.
Michael Shafer (Tucson), (602) 621-7822.

The Department of Labor (DOL) will nvestigate work
experience, community based instruction and vocational
programs in two Arizona school districts this year. DOL
will check these programs for compliance with fedsral
and state labor laws with respect to appropriate
placement and payment of students in community work
sites, 1f you are operating these typas of vocational
preparation programs and have questions or concems
about placement or payment of your students, piease
contact Laura Love, ADE/SES, (602) 542-3184 or Diane
Reese, Compliance Officer for the Wage and Hour
Division of DOL, in Tucson. {602) 670-6772. Diane is
avaiable t0 answer your questions and to make
presentations to your school district about the
Department of Labor regulations. If you are concemed
about contacing Ms. Reese and identifying which
distnct you represent, you can call anonymously.

On January 12, 1990, we held a special conference on
the topic, ‘Department of Labor Regulations Related to
Community-Based Training and Employment of Workers
with Disabilities.” If you would Iike a videotape copy of
this conference, contact Laura Love, (602) 542-3184.
Otherwise. for niva information, ATTEND _THE
JANUARY 24, 1991, TRANSITION CONFERENCEI
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Speaking of DOL: The Fali 1990 Joumal of The
Association for Persons with Severe Handicaps features an
article entitied *School-Based Vocational Programs and
Labor Laws: A 1990 Update.* This appears to be the
first publication which addresses the impact of the Fair
Labor Standards Act on school-based vocational
preparation programs since the DOL regulations wers
revised in 1989. This article was authored by William
Halloran of the U.S. Department of Education, Office of
Special Education, and M. Shemil Moor and Wiliam
Kieman of the Training and Research Institute for
People with Disabilities at the Children's Hospital of
Boston.

Yahoo!!
The new Individuels with Disabilities Ecucetion Act
(IDEA) adds a new definitlon of “transition services,’
adds transition services to students’ IEPs, and makes
changes in transition programs authorized under Part C
of the law.

The fcliowing is the new definition of transition services:
*Transition services means & coordineted set of ectivities
for a student, designed within an outcoma-oriented
process, which promotes movament from school (o
postschool ecavities Including postsecondary education,
vocational training, integrated amployment (including
Suppr ~2d employmant), continuing and adult education,
adult sarvices, independent Iiving, or community
participation.*

‘The coordinated set of ectivities shall be based upon
the indwidual student's needs, taking into account tha
student's preferences and interests, and shali include
instruction, community experiences, the development of
empioyment and other postschool adutt living objectives,
and whan appropriata, acquisition of daily Iiving skilis
and functional vocational evajuation.

The new law also adds a specific reference to transition
services to the overall definition of an “individuatized
education program.®

IEPS must now include ‘a statement of the naeded
transition services for students beginning no later than
age 16 and annually thereatiar (and when determined
8appropriate for the individual, beginning at age 14 or
younger), including, when appropriate, a stetamant of
the interagency responsibilities or linkagas (or both}
before the student leaves the school setting.

In the case where a participating agency, other than the
educational agency, fails to provide agreed upon
services, the educational egency shall reconvena the
IEP team to identify alternativa strategies (0 meet the
transition objectives.*

115

For more information on how 1o include transiton
activities and services on the IEP, ATTEND THE

JANUARY 24, 1991, TRANSITION COMFERENCE!

~——— Transition Mission

YOUR MISSION: Pick Up That Telephone! Vocational
Rehabilitation (VR) is a program of the federal
government and the Arizona Department of Economic
Security (DES) that provides services 10 individuals with
physical and/or mental disabilities to help them prepare
for or maintain employment. While not every indwidual
with a disability may be eligible to receive VK senvices,
no disabled person will be denied the right to apply for
vocational rehabilitation services.

WHO IS ELIGIBLE FOR SERVICES? To be eligible for
VR services, a VR counselor must determine that the
individual has a physical or mental disability which
results in functional limitations setious enough to cause
a substantial handicap to employment and VR services
may reasonably be expected to help the individual gain
or kzep employment.

After an individual has been determined eligible for VR
services, the client and VR counselor will jointly develop
an Individualzed Written Rehabilitation Plan (IWRP).
This doct'ment spelis out the responsibilities of hoth the
state agency and the client to assure successiul
rehabilitation.

WHAT VR SERVICES MAY BE PROVIDED? Services
are provided on an individual basis, and clients receive
those services that they may need to become
empioyed. Examples are evaluation of aptitudes ana
abilities to determine a vocational goal, counseling and
guidance, work adjustment, training, orientation/mobiltty,
rehabilitation teaching, physicalmental restoration®,
tool/equipmentficenses required for employment®, and
job placement.

Once clients are involved in a VR program, other
services may 2Iso be available, as needed, to support
etforts to complete their rehabilitation program. These
may include interpreter services for the deal,

reader services for the blind, attendant care,
booksftraining  supplies*, transportation allowance®,
financial assistance*, and management support for bind
individuals engaged in vending stand operations.

*These services are based on a defermination
of client financral nead.

HOW TO APPLY FOR SERVICES? Contact the nearest
Vocational Rehabiltation office or the DES disinct cHice
serving your county.

(The above information is contained 1 the September
1988 DES-RSA: VR Brochure.)




SPRANSYE o continued

Intergovemmental Agreement: Over the past few
years some Arizona school districts have been
participating in intergovernmental service agreements
with Vocational Rehabiltation. These agreements can
provide special education students with additional
vocational services to cover the cost the districts are
incurning or to provide programs the district cannot
provide. In addition to the above-mentioned services,
this agreement has, in some districts, provided a VR
Counselor directly on the high school campus. These
assigned counselors can attend special education
students’ IEP meetings starting at age 16 to participate
in present and future vocational planning. If your
school district is interested in entering into an
intergovernmental service agreement with VR, contact
Skip Bingham or Wendell Akers of Rehabilitation
Services Adminustration at (602) 255-5641. They are
available to make presentations to schools on this topic.

For schools who are not pancipating in these
mntergovemmental agreements, VR counselors are stiff
being assigned to high schools to handle student
referrals being made dunng the student's last year in
high school. Contact the VR office closest to your high
school focation ana ask about the types of senvices
they can provide for your students.

To meet Vocational Rehabilitation Counselors and leam
more abaut VR services, ATTEND THE JANUARY 24,
1991, TRANSITION CONFERENCE!

New Kid on the Black
Or. Carolyn Hugnes, Anzona State Unwversity, Special
Education Programs, Farmer Building 305, (602) 965-
1454, Dr. Hughes will develop a teacher preparation
program in transition. To meet Or. Hughes, ATTEND
THE JANUARY 24, 1991, TRANSITION CONFERENCE!

SpeciaiNet News

The Foundation for Exceptional Children 1s seeking
communnties that would like to initiate a Team Work
program. Team Work assists youths (18-25) with
disabilities who wish to find a job  Volunteers who are
retired, oldel. or employed by corporations are
recrunted, traineo and matched one on one with youths
in the program. The mentor and youth work together
to prepare the youth for employment, find a job. and
follow-up after the youth s employed. Team Work has
been tested as a model for three vears by the
Foundation for Exceptional Chicren. Contact the
Foundation ff you wish to replicate Team Work in your
Community. Foundation for Exceptional Children, 1920
Association Drve, Reston, VA 22091, (703} 620-1054.
This topic will not be addressed specifically; however,
ATTEND THE JANUARY 24, 1991 TRANSITION
CONFERENCE!

"Bestseller” List

The Fall 1990 Council For Exceptional Children Journal,
Teaching Exceptional Children, features a *Special Focus:
Transitions.' This section of the journal hightights four
arucles on successtul transition programs. These
anticles are: *School-to-Work: Elements of Successtul
Programs®, ‘A Local Team Approach', ‘An Outcome-
Oriented Vocational Process for Students with Severe
Handicaps®, and ‘Entenng Postsecondary Programs:
Early Individualized Planning.'

SEARCH
to Serve

Rira Kenison,
Child Find Coordinator
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Video Tape Available

The ‘Child Find: We Can Make it Happen' plenary
conference session was videotape recorded. This video
features keynote presentations from Or. Raun Melmed.
Or. Gloria Harbin and Meave Stephens-Dominguez. If
you would like a copy. free of charge, mail in or drop
off a VHS videotape and your copy will be mailed to
you. For more information. call Selina Salazar at 542-
3184 or 1-800-352-4558 (ask for Chid Find and vour
call will be returned).

Public Awareness Campaign
State agencies involved in early identficaton of
delays/disabilites have launched a joint campaign tor
informing the public. The campaign slogan s *Every
Step Counts.® The following products can be ordered:

Devefopmentaf Guidelnes

English or Spanish 42 each

Poster re: Screening
English or Spanish 07 each
8rochure for Parents
English or Spanish .07 each
Brochure for Educators

Engush or Spanish 07 each

For information about ordenng, call Jill Stephrens.
Anzona Depariment of Education. (602)542-3088.
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Kathryn Kilroy, Technology Services Administrator,
Communications Services, has provided the Arzona
Department of Education with the tools necessary for
electronic communications. AZEdLink has been initiated
and is operational. *That's nice, but what is AZEdUnk?

ARIZONA
EdLink

by Norm Zimmerman

‘It is a bulietin board service tnat inciudes electronic
mail and numerous news and information boaras, from
both inside and outside of Arzona ‘It* includes a
Special Education area for conference announcements,
general (Sped) announcements, and Special Education
News.

Utilizing hardware provided tnrough an agreement with
NCR Corp.. and software provided by Leds
Communications Lid., the system is accessed, through
a modem and personal computer. Twenty-four-hour-a-
day access is provided via local (Phoenix) and
slatewide (800 number) telephone lines. Note' there
are no ine charges 10 you

what equipment is required?

1. any make personal computer with at
least one disk drive.

2 a modem, {connects the computer 10
the phone line), any baud rate between
300 and 9600.
a telepnone line.
an 380 fee. paid directly to Leids
Communications Ltd. This fee includes
your first year “Logon® prvitege.

Users receive a customized disk configured for ther
system, the required communications software, a users
manual, and their own unique Logon. Telephone
assistance for instaliation and operation of the system
s avalable from Leids Communications and the Anzona
Depantment of Education.

want to know more? Advertising information and
subscnber forms are available by contacting:

John Cikalo, EdLink Sysop
Arizona Department of Education
1900 West Thomas. Room 2213
Phoenix, AZ 85015

Phone: (602) 255-5061

Cooperative Learning
Wins Some, Loses Some

Before you jump on the cooperauve learming
bandwagon, you may want 10 think about whether 10
inciude students with disabilities.

A recent review of the research suggests that
cooperative learning 1s a mxed bag for special
educaton students. Such activities do seem 1o help
interactions between disabled and non-disabled
students, but they are of no guarantee of academic
improvement for disabled students.

Some studies reported that special education students
didn't suffer trom working in small groups. but they
didn't outperform those working indwidually. Other
studies reported significant increases n disabled
students; achievement after teachers brought
cooperative learning tactics into class.

The varied task structures and methods of prize-giving
n these studies made a difference in achievement,
making it dificult 10 find factors leading to success.

The review did conclude, however, that in cases in
which students rely solely on each other for practice,
feedback and instructicn. they need a high-abiity
student in thewr group to facilitate learning.

(For more information, see 'Cooperative Learming: Does
it Improve the Acagermic Achievement of Students With
Handicaps?* Exceptional Chuidren, Lol 54, N6.5. February
1990

Health Education
Training Offered

by Bobbie Stepherson

On May 1-2. 1991, the Comprehenswe Health and
Special Education Units of the Anzona Depanment of
Educaton are offering a two-day training for school or
distnct teams compnsed of a special educator and a
health educator on HIV/AIDS prevention education for
children and youth with special educauon needs. The
training and all materials will be provided free of charge
The training is designed as a train-the-rainer model
and participants will be expected to return to therr
distnctsite and assist in training and to take the fead in
educating both staff and special needs students. The
tra:ning is imited 10 25 teams so be 1ooking for more
nformation in the near future  We are 10oking forward
10 seeing you there.

BEST COPY AVAILABLE ’




The Arizona
Collaboration

Network
by David Lutkemneier

What Is It?

The collaboration network is an attempt by educators
imerested ~  collaborative sarvice delivery models to
establish & «a9 network in order 10 leam more about
collaboration and share their axperiences with the
coitaborative/consultation service defivery model. The
network s a non-profit collaborative volunteer effort and
does not receive material support from a scheol district.

What Will It Look Like?

Initially, the collaboration network will consist of a three-
time-per-year newsletter containing adicles, program
descriptions, and current information on books, articles
and journals related 10 collaboratioryconsuttation. in
addition, we are planning one or two informal round-

table meetings to discuss general 10pics and problem
solving related to the implementation of collaborative
approachas.

Who Should Join?

Any educator who is interested in learning more about,
or sharing information concering, the pruvision of
services 10 special education and at risk students using
colfaborative and/or consultative approaches is invited.

To join, send a check for $5 (10 help produce and
distribute the newsletters and conduct other network
services) along with your name, schoot district, address
and telephone numter 10:

Kyrene Schoot District
Attn: David Lutkemeier
8700 S. Kyrene Road

Tempe, AZ 85284

SEARCH
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Rita Kenison,
Child Find Coordinator
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Speakers

it your school or class is looking for speakers 10
address disabilty awareness, there are two °*handi-
capable® young women willing to do just that. Brenda
Rogers and Barbara Bell have been visiting Valiey
classrooms to promote disability awareness. They
explain how their canine companiorn: dogs have literally
opened new doorways for their independence. They
aiso happen 10 be recent housemates. One is totally
blind yet ambulatory, and the other is partially sighted
and uses a motorized chair. They have been an
nspiration 10 those they have visited.

If you would like 10 arrange an insightful vist 16 your
ciass, call RAita Kenlaon at 5423852 for more
information.

Spring Advocacy Trainings

The ADE/Special Education Advocacy Services will be
providing advocacy trainings 1o persons wiling 10
volunteer one advocate assignmemt per year.
Advocates receive training to assist parems of special

education students in obtaining appropriate special
education services. They aiso refer parents to family
support  services. Trainings are scheduled jor:
February 9, March 9, Aprl 13 and May 11.

It you wartt 10 register for a training, call Selina Salazar
at 5423852 or 1-800-352-4558 (your call will be
retumad).

Upcoming Events

On April 24-25, a novel training seminar will be held at
Round Valley Elementary in Springerville for service
providers in Apache and Navajo Counties interested in
leaming how 10 screen young children through a
community effort. They will be exposed to hands-on
experience during the second annual community-based
screoning of local children ages birh - 5.

For more information, call Rita Kenison at 542-385Z or
1.800-352-4558 (your call will be retumned).

Update on Requests for Products

Printed by ADE/SES

We apologize for the delay in filling orders for the new
parents’ rights handbook and 'Every Step Counts'
products. Reprints are pending federal approval of the
parent’s rights handbook and completion of Spanish
translations.

We also chose 10 fill the entire purchasa orders with
onc mailing rather than track partial orders for English
versions. They should be in the mail in March 1991.

Vz(L)sed1




119

CErRONSITION,

by Laura L. Love
Transition Services Specialist

Perspeciiva

*When you have got an elephant by the hind legs
and he is trying 10 run awey,
it is best to fet him run.*

— Abreham Lincoin

- — Love Affain —MM
. Planning has started for a late spring-eary
summer conference on "Vocational Evaluetion of
Students with Speclel Needs.” This conference will
provide information on the various models of vocational
evaluation from curriculum-based assessment to center-
based assessment. While focus will be on identifying
those components now prasent in school districts which
can be utitized in vocational evaluation, this conference
will also address the types of vocational assessment
hardware and software available for ordering and/or
purchasing. FReport writing techniques will also be
presented. Evaluation instruments and tools will be
available for participarts to “try-our during the
conference.  Additional information and registration
forms will be available around mid-March. Contact
Laura Love, 542-3184, for more information on this
conference.

. The Tranaltion Subcommittee of the Statewide
Coordination Council foc Systems Change (SCCSC) has
been reinstated. This committee is currently developing
a multi-media technical assistance package on the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (DEA)
transition mandate with a target audience of special
education professionals. We expect this package to be
piloted for use by schools during the opening of school
year 1991-92.

Something to Write Home About

[} ACTUALLY, we would lke to call this
*Something to Write or Call Laurs or Lillle About.®
Hey, folks, we really want to hear from you!! Please
write of call to tefl us about all of the great happenings
in your programs. We want you to brag to us about
your transition programs, vocational assessment
programs, special education Sstudents in vocational
education programs, work experience programs, you
name it!!! Call Laura Love or Lillie Sy at 542-3184, or
write to us af the Arzona Department of Education-
Special Education Section, 1535 W. Jefferson, Phoenix,
AZ, 85007.

. The Natlonal Assoclation of Vocatlonal
Assessment In Education (NAVAE) was officially
formed as a special interest group of the Special Needs
Division of the American Vocational Association (AVA-
SND) in December, 1985, As an emerging organization,
NAVAE's primary goal is to enhance the professional
positions of personnel working in vocational assessment
programs in education. The organization is committed
to improving the delivery of vocational assessment
sewvices for individuals with special needs in education.

NAVAEs organizational goals and objectives are:
Develop and maintain a systematic
communication network  among
members on issues affecting vocational
assessment in education
Disseminate information

programs, research, and model

development relative 10 vocationat
assessment in education

relatve 10

Serve as a suppont group for school-
based assessment personnéel

Establish and maintain cooperative
relations with the Special Needs Division
of the American Vocational Association
and other professional oOrganizations
concerned with vocatinnal assessment
in education

Provide input to relevant certifying and
licensing agencies and oOrganizations

Promote relevant research concerned
with vocational assessment in education

Advocate ethical and effective practices
in vocational assessment.

Membership is open to all individuals interested in or
involved with vocational assessment in school settings.
Dues are $10.00 annually and you do not need to be
a member of AVA to join. For membership information
contact Richard Lombard, Ph.D., NAVAE Membership
Chair, Department of Special Education, University of
Wisconsin-Whitewater, Whitewater, Wi, 53190.

(Transition - continued on Next Page)
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Meanwhile, in The Labor Depacument
The WAGE & HOUR UPDATE 1991 1S now available
from the U.S. Department of Labor. This update covers
applicable federal and state wage taws, basic concepts
of the Fair Labor Standards Act, employment of workers
under special minimum wage certificates, Wage & Hour
audit information, and general nformation on
regulations. Copies are available from Diane Reese,
Comptiance Officer, Federal Wage/Hour Division, U.S.
Department of Labor, 300 W. Congress, FB-41, Tucson,
AZ, 85701-1390, (602) 670-6772.

THE SCHOOL-TO-WORK CONNECTIO:{, a report on
school-to-work transttion issued jontly by the U.S.
Departments of Education and Labor. charges that, ‘the
U.S. system for transitioning from school to work is the
worst in the industnalized world." The Labor
Department has also issued a fact sheet of information
about demonstration programs funded by the
department in September 1990, to redesign school
curricula to allow students to learn job-related subjects
n a practical context. Among the projects is a
$203,787 grant to the Electronics Industry Foundation
that stresses recruitment from groups traditionally
under-represented in technical tramitg programs.
including persons with disabiliies. Copies of the report.
“The School-To-Work Connection.* and u separate fact
sheet describing the sux demonsranon programs are avatiable
free from the Assistant Secretary for Employment and
Traming  U.S. Deparrment of Labor, Room  §-2320.
Waskingron, D.C., 20210.

—————— Yanoo!! rrrer—
TRANSITION DRIVE-IN CONFERENCE. A big round
of applause to ail of you for your trem” <ous support
for the Anzona Department of -.uucaton/Special
Education Section's first statewide conference on
school-to-adult Iife transtion. This drive-in conterence
was held January 24. 1991, at the Grace Inn-
Ahwatukee. Over 300 persons attended, including
special educaton teachers, parents, administrators.
vocational evaluators, work experience coordinators.
psychologists, vocational rehabilitation  counselors.
advocates, developmental disabilttes case managers.
and university personnel.

Planning 1S ungerway tfor a TRANSITION ‘92
CONFERENCE, where we will provide specific
infermation cn strategies for compliance with the IDEA
transtion mandate /f you have specilic topics you want
covered, presenters you want us lo fealure, or general
recommendations for the ‘92 CONFERENCE, piease
contacr Laura Love or Lite Sty at 542:3184

“PUANDIID NS

Transttion Mission ——~————
Call your local office of the Job
Training Partnership Act (JTPA)} for information on
the services they can provide to students in work
experience programs!

Your Mission:

The Job Training Partnership Act has as s nuss:on 0
estabhsh programs to prepare yo:ith and unskied
adults for entry into the labor force and to afford ;0b
traiming to those economically disadvantaged individua's
and oth~r ndwiduals facing serious barriers to
employment, who are in special need of such traming
to obtain productive employm?2nt.

Employment training 1s orie of the many areas in which
JTPA provides services. JTPA can provide job training.
basic ecucation, and work expernence to in-school and
out-of-school youth ages 14-21. Program incluoes
some transportation. job orientation, social senvices
referrals, counseling, summer employment, and
assistance with secuning employment 1N unsubs:dized
positions.

For more information, please contact the Anizona State
Departmen: of Econormic  Secunty's Job  ITraming
Paninership Act, 1300 W. \vastungton, Phoenw, AZ.
85005, 6§02/542-3957 for a refer:al (0 your focai otfice

————SpeciaiNet News ——————————
[ Tne vocational Evaluation and Wo.k Adustment
Asscciation is pleased to announce the Fifth Natienal
Forum on Issues In Vocational Assessment. This toru™m
*Synergism - The Time is Now!. will be held Maich 7-
9, 1991, at the Hyatt Regency Hotel. Denver, Coloraca
For more mnformation contact Deborah Noite, Program
Chair, Mennonde Rcad, \vadswonh, OH. 1216) 336.7049

[ A new training manual 1s avaiable lor tramag
educators/paraprofessionais  in special vocational
educaunoniwork expenence on skiis of supenasion.
nstruction, and evaluation of students and ‘or
introducing paraprofessionals to activities of vocauona;
work  experience. The manual features rit.
competency training areas: mare han 3J f.eid 1c
actwities: pages for making ranrsnareni.es. wid .
tiblography of related sSenices ang  m ot
Expanged Tradwicna! Roles 1 _VoCo!
Expenience Programs A Course 1 Prenara
Educators s avadable for $2500 frox
Publcatons, PO Box 5§73, Pertiang, O
i502)494-8313 {Pat Haiey)}

—————— *Bestseller List -~— -
Ready, Willing. and Avadable A i -

Hiing Peonie win Disabuities  Fuoi oo wiiv 1@
Presicent’s Comrmutiee on Lo,
Cisadiiies. 1111 20t St Nve 8
DC, 20036-3470. c¢r 3
(voice),/202)653 5050 T
i2021653-7386 'FAX)

reue.e ¥
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Horizon Elementary School

‘Necessity is the mother of invention® 1s the phrase
which comes immediateiy to mind when talking to Merrl
Hariasi, Prncipal, about a program begun this year at
Horizon School in Glendale Elementary School District.
The sixth grade classes were overcrowded and there
ware no facilities available 0 create a new class. Since
Horizon teachers had been involved for the last several
years in exploring integrated settings for the
handicapped students in the building, it was decided to
combine a Muttiple Handicapped class of eight students
with 20 sixth graders.

School personnel met with the parents of all sixth
graders to expfan the program and ask for volunteers.
The MDC teams were reconvened for the Special
Education students to talk wih the parents and to
assure them that all of the {EP goals would be met
under the new structure. Roger Baker, the special
educat:on teacher and Debbre Cole, a newly hired sixth
grade teacher, team teach the class. Roger's specialty
1s science and Debbie is strong in the language ans.
which makes a great combination. Specialists provide
related services to the handicapped students in the
classroom.

Is it successtul? Parents of the special education
students are ecstalic about the concept since thair
children are with non-handicapped peers all of the turi..
Parenis of the other students say that an appreciation
has develnped with their children tocusing on strengths.
as opposad 1o alleged handicaps. The students don't
realize that they are breaking barriers--they say *it's no
big deal'

The concept fits 0 to the overall theme of Horzon.
which is that everybody Is special and unique. Some
people have advantages that we all don't possess. so
we emphasize strengths.

Congratutations 10 the students and staffl 3t Heneon
School, and especially to Roger Baker and Dcto.e
Cole. If you have quesuions, contact Merrll Harlan,
Honzon Elementary School, 8520 N. 47th Avenue.
Glendale AZ 85302, {602)842-8200.

LATCH School
Special events at LATCh School, a private schoot for
handicapped students, are always festve thanks to the
talents of the physically and mentally disabled young
adults who run the on-campus Print Shop.

Says Nancy Bucek, teacher at LATCH School, ‘U's a
popular component ¢f the classroom program as well
as a way of meeting IEP goals in the areas of functional
academics, vocational training, soctal and motor skills.*

With the help of a spécially adapted computer and
firmware card, the students desgn and produce a
vaniety of preducts including cards, statonery. banners,
and signs. Students also manage all aspects o ine
business, including orders, advertising and banking

For more information, feel free to contact Nancy
Bucekor at LAYCH Schoot, 8135 N. 27th Ave.. Phoen:ix
AZ 83051, (602)995-7366.

New From NICHCY

The National Information Center for Children and Youth
with Handicaps NICHCY) has the following new
publications

A Parents Guide to Doctors, Disability and the
Family. Thuis parent's guide answers questions about
selection of a primary care physician and about the
process of organzing and working wth a childs
medical team. A Iist of questions to ask the doctor is
included in this publication.

News Digest 14: EQUITY This news digest explores
the issues c’ equdy and the education of gils and
young women with disabilnties.

A Parent’s Guide: Planning A Move: Mapping Your
Strategy. This i1s a new parent's guide to help families
who are moving to another state. or another schoot
distnct wahin their state. Included is a section for
military families. This is a practical guide to help
famvies plan ther move and establish suppons and
services for their children with disabilties. Infant
programs through secondary schoo! are covered.

Transition Summary 6: Vocauonal Assessment. This
is a broad subject with many ideas, policies and
programs vying for our attention. This transtion
summary looks at many of the theories and offers an
overview of current practices.

Single copies of the publications descrihed above aie
available free trom:

NICHCY

P O. Box 1492

Washington. D.C. 20013

Phone: (800)999-5599 or (703)893-6061

TOD:  (703)893-8614
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“ERANTILION,

by Laura L. Love

Tr

! Services Sp

Perspective

‘We can't all be heroes because somebody has to sit
on the curb and clap as they go by.*

— Will Rogers

Lovs Affairs

PROJECT ACTT  The ADE-SES. in conjunction with
the Universty of Anzona, Special Education andg
Rehabiltation, has submitted a funding proposal to the
Office of Special Education Programs of the U.S.
Department of Education, 1o enhance the capaciy of
selected communties in  Arizona to provide a
comprehensive transtion planning process for all
secondary special education: students. PROJECT ACTT
(Arizona Community Transition Teams) proposes to
develop fifteen Local Community Transition Teams in
targeted communities throughout the state. Prionty will
be gwven to the selection of rural communities,
communities containing an extremely high proportion of
minorty or traditionally unserved/underserved youth,
and communities located on Native Amencan
reservations.  These teams, comprised of parents,
educators, and adult agency representatives, would
develop and implement community action plans
designed to ameliorate locally identified bamers to
effective transition planning. The project also proposes
to develop and assist local communities in the
implementation of an Individualized Transttion Plarning
process for all secondary special education youth within
their communtties. The project also proposes to
develop a variety of technical assistance resources for
local communities to draw upon as they implement
transition planning.

1s expected that, as a resut of the efforts of this
project, a number of significant improvements In
transition services in Arzona will occur.  First, the
capacity of locat communities to respond to the recent
federal mandate for transtion planning will be
signficantly enhanced. Second. young aduits with
disabilties will experience greater success in accessing
services and reahzing socially relevant post-school
opportunities. Addtionally, state agencies. local
education agencies, and private service providers will
experience greater cooperation and coordination
through therr participation in communtty transtion
teams.

Awardees of these federal grants will be notified around
June, 1991. Should the ADE receive this 3-year grant
award, an immediate priority will be hiring of project
staff and identification and selection of participating
communities. If your community is interasted in being
considered as a pilot site for this project, please contact
the ADESES Transition project when calls for
participation are publicized.

Something to write Home About ——

The 16th Annual Arizona Vocational Technical
Education Leadership Conference, LINKING FOR
SUCCESS, is scheduled for August 5-8, 1991 at the
Waestin La Paloma in Tucson. The Vocational Specls!
Needs area will feature Dr. Robaert Schalock, Professor
and Chair of the Department of Psychology at Hastings
College in Haslings, Nebraska. Dr. Schalock wilt
present °*Trends In Transiion®, Dr. Schalock's
publication, Economics, Industry, and Disability, won the
Book of the Year Award from the President’'s Commattee
on Employment of Persons with Disabilitiss. Contact
the ADE- Vocational Education Division at 542-3821 for
more information on this conference.

Many of you have inquired about the conference on
VOCATIONAL EVALUATION OF SPEC!AL NEEDS
STUDENTS. It has been postponed indefinitely.

Transition Mission

DETACH AND RETAIN! This volume of the Special
Edition features a special segment ttied,
*Implementation of the Transiion Services Mandate,”
which immediately follows this column. This segment
contalna important information on the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act mandate for transition
planning for secondary special education students.
Also, this segment was designed to be detached and
retained for use by those professionals invotved with
transition planning for special education students
Please ensure that you detach thia asticle, copy sa
needed, and distribute to the appropriate persons.
THANK YOU!

vz (3)509L
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IMPLEMENTATION OF THE TRANSITION SERVICES MANDATE

Individuals with Disabitities Education Act (IDEA) mandates transition services for individuals with disabilities
efective in Fall 1991. This article is devoted to assisting district and agency personnel with the IEP
requirements. Additionally, this article has been cesigned t0 be used as a future resource tO assist districts
with the foliowing:

[ Selection of transition areas
[} Procedures for including goals and objectives in the IEP
. Sampie goals and objectives

Detach and retain for future use.

Definition of Transition

A coordinated set of activities for a student, designed within an outcome-onented process. which promotes
movement from school to post-school activities, including post-secondary education, vocauonal training.
integrated employment (including supported employment), continuing and adutt education, adult services.
independent living, or community participation.

The coordinated set of activities shall be based upon the individual student’s needs, taking into account
the student's preferences and interests, and shall include instruction. community experience, the development
of employment and other post-school adult living objectives. and, when appropriate, acquisttion of daily living
skills and tunctional vocational evaluation.

IEP Requirements

The Otfice of Special Education Programs (OSEP) has determined that transition services must be included
in the IEPs of students age 16 years and older and, i appropnate, for students age 14 years or younger. by
the 1991-1992 school year. District personnel will determine whether special education teachers will include
transttion services in the IEP, either by the end of this year, or amend the IEP at the beginning of the school
year 1991-1992 in an IEP conference.

By Fall 1991 the Individual Education Plan (IEP) must include
1) a statement of the needed transition services for students beginning no later than age 16 and
annually thereafter (and, when appropriate for the individual. beginning at age 14 or younger), and
2) when appropriate, a statement of the interagency responsibilities or linkages (or both) betore the
student leaves the school setting.
In the case where a participating agency, other than the educationa! agency, fals to provide agreed-upon
services, the educational agency shall reconvene the IEP team 10 idently alternative strategies 10 meet the
transition objectives.
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Arcas To Be Considered When Developing Traumsition Plans

FINANCIAL & INCOME POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION &
VOCATIONAL TRAINING

Eamed Income

Uncamed Income (giftsidmidends)
Insurance (hfe‘annuies)

General Pubhie Assisiance

Food Samps

Supplzmental Secunty Income (SS1)
Soctal Sccunty Benelits

Trust Will or Simitar Income

“)ther Suppont

On-The-Job Traiming (OJT)

Job Traming Pannesship Act (JTPA)
Community ColtegesUniversines
Vocationat Technical Centers
Community Based Education & Traiming
Competuve Employment

Supporied Work Models

Volunteer Work

Rehabilauen Facilines

LIVING ARRANGEMENTS

PERSONAL MANAGEMENT &
FAMILY RELATIONSHIP

With Family
Adult T'oster Care
Interir *ate Care Faally for Menulhy Retarded tousenold Management
Group Home Money Management
S Lrang (supe: ) Socual Slulls
Share Lmng (roommate) Hygiene Skills
independent Laang (own nousc/apantment) Personal Counsching Therapy
ther Liang Amangement Safety
Parenting Skilts
Health AudeHome Attendant
Support Group

- N . Respite Care
LEISURE & RECREATION Vising Arrangements
Churehes

Specialucd Recreation Social Actnities (Special Olvmpics)
Sports or Sociat Clubs {YMCA, Seouts. health clubs)
Commumty Center Programs
Community Colleges (cralt classes art. music)

Parks and Recreation Programs

Hobby Clubs

independent Actrinies (€ g. bowling. tennw. e1¢) Independent town car. bicycle. ete.)

Public Transpartation (bus. tan. tran}

P Transp W van)
Specualued Equipment (electne wheelch. r)

TRANSPORTATION

MEDICAL SERVICES & RESOURCES

Medicst Care Intermatent Care Daily tlong termi Care ADVOCACY & LEGAL SERVICES
Medisal Scnices Uenenal Medical Senices teheck ups ete i
Medication Senviees, Dental Care
Medical. Accident Insurance Guardanship Conservatarship
Financial Rescurees Group Policy Avadlable. indaidual Policy Wilis'Trusts, Orher
Medicad, Other

BEST ECFY AVAILABLE
132
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SAMPLE

Transition Annual Goals and Short-Term Objectives

Transpectaiion Flnancial & Inceme
The swudeat will oxplore vazious types of Getk  The student will expiore various sowrces of income.
tramsportation.
Objectives: 1. Alter 3 viait 10 the Soclal Security
1. Given 2 bus schedule, the student will Administration  office, the student  wall
identify the bus route from home 10 the complete an application foc social security
vocational cenler and will ride the bus tc benefits, provide necessary documents, and
and from the vocational center (o€ nine submit application and documseats within three
weeks. monthe.
After pacticipstion iz a driver’s educauon Alter participation in classroom aclivities on
peograe, the student will obtain a passing various sources of income, the student will
acoce oa the written teat, road test and the Wently ax out of ¢ight sources of income
vision tcst within a sx-moath period correctly

Suggested Procedures for Implementing
Transition Components of the 'SP

LEAs shall ensure that |EPs which are developed o¢ revised 1n the Spang of 1991, for implemaentauon
in the Fall, include as app i

IEPs which do not inclode tranution components by the end of FY 1991 shall be amended 2t the
beginning of the school year 1991.

Toansition services shall be included in the IEP by the ume a student is 16

LEAs shall develop pe 10 when 1t 18 Spprop 10 include sevices 1n the
IEP poor 10 age 16.

LEAs shall dcagn a coordinated ¢t of activities foc cach studenl, which pr ~motes movement from

schoo! 10 the (o g post-school A
» posi-sccondary educaton,

voatonal tning,

T 13
continuing and adult education, and
commumnity Perticipaton.

PP

Annual goak included in the TEP shall be outcome-oncnted.

When determining nceded lransition seraces, the iEP team shall include the student in goals scwung
and ke into sccount the ndmdual student’s needs, preferenees. and Intercsts

LEAs shall provide a coordinated set of actrvities which include
* Instrucuon,
community expericnees,
development of employment and oiber post.echoot adult Imng obectrves,
scquinition of daily Imng skills, and
functional vocational evalustion.

When appropnate. the IEP shall include 2 of the or hnkages. o¢
both, before the student teaves the school sciting .

The IEP team shall include represenictae(s) (rom appropnate adult serice agencies.

10

60646 0 - 92 - 5 133
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Dual Sensory Impairments
Interactive Satellite

Teleconference

sation A end instruction end the
Tuntdlsclpllnnry Teem Process, an interactive satellite
teleconference for the Planning and Implementation of
Communication Programs for Students with Duaj
Sensory Impairments, is scheduled for September 26,
1991, from 1-3 p.m. and November 7, 1991, from 24
p.m.

This teleconference, featuring Dr. June Downing from
the University of Arizona and Kathieen Stremel from the
University of Southem Mississippi, will provide
information and training for parerts, teachers, and
specialists regarding strategies to foster the
development of communication skills for students with
dual senscry impairments through the use of
transdisciplinary teams.

For more information, contact Emme Wiseley, Arizona
Deat-Blind Project, Arizona State School for the Deaf
and the Blind, 1200 W. Speedway/P.0. Box 5545,
Tucson AZ 85703-0545 or call (602)628-5698 collect.

ducatlonal Rights of
Handlcapped Students

i

Arizona Center for Law in the Public Interest
Training

Tuesday, Sept. 17, 1991
Friday, Sept. 27, 1991
Wednesday, Oct. 16, 1994
Wednesday, Nov. 6, 1991

9:00 am. - 2:30 p.m.
9:00 am. - 2:30 p.m.
9:00 am. - 2:30 p.m.
9:00 am. - 2:30 p.m.

The Anzona Center tor Law in the Public Interest offers
in-depth training classes on the (ollowing areas: the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (L.D.EA)
(formerty the Education for the Handicapped Act or
EHA); Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and
Sell-Advocacy.

The class is offered free to prcvide parents and
professionals with an opportunity to examine many of
the current issues facing special education today.

The training classes will be held at the Center's office
focated at 3724 North 3rd Street, Sutte 300, Phoenwx.
Please contagt Judith Hale at 274-6287 to reserve
space in one of the trainings. Space is very imited $O
only 20 people can be accommodated at each training.

Pilot Parent Partnerships

Pilot Parent Partnerships is an active network of families
whose children have disabilties or special needs.
Developed in Arizona in 1979, this partnership is based
on the beliet that parents of children with disabilities
beneft from sharing experiences and information with
other families. Programs are guided by a Board of
Directors composed of parents and professionals from
around the state.

Through parent staff and volunteers in chapters
throughout Arizona, Pilot Partner Partnerships. offers:

« practical information and emotional support Dy
connecting parents with other parents, by phone
and in person.

« referral to other services, ‘ncluding programs for
children, parent groups, and community resources.

« printed resource materials on disabilities and related
topics.

» a bi-moanthly nes 'sletter.

« a lending library f books and tapes.

» assistance in devaloping and coordinating support
groups.

Pilot Parent Partnerships provides this help to parents
of infants, toddlers, preschoolers, elementary, high
school and transition age youngsters. This is done by
parents who staff the program as well as experienced
and trained parent volunteers.

Judie Walker - Educational Director
Trini Ferra - Education Coordinator
Joanne Olivas - Education Coordinator
{Spanish Outreach)
Gloria Zimmer - Education Coordinator
(Preschool Transition}

There are also regional parent consuttants in many rural
areas of Arizona.

Pilot Parent Pastnerships try to help parents to become
more knowledgeable in their children's educationat
process and more confident in their role, thus enabling
them to maxe informed decisions. Building partnerships
between parents and school professionals is stressed.

A workshop for parents of children who are new to the
school system is scheduled in September. There will
be a workshop on IEPs in October. The Parent-to-
Parent Conference is scheduled for April 24-27, 1992,
For more information on Pilot Parent Partnerships or
any of the activities, contact:

Pliot Perent Parinerships

150 E. Highland Ave., #105
Phoenix, AZ 85016
(602)468-3001

1-800-237-3007 (within Anzona)
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“{RANSIFON,

by Laura L. Love
Transition Services Specialist

Perspective

“When opportunity knocks, some peopla are In
the backyard looking for four-leal clovers.’

Transition Mission

YOUR MISSION: 1.D.EA. Transition Planning!
Beginning this Fall, and annually thereafter, the
{EP must include a statement of the needed
transttion services for students beginning no
later than age 16, including, when appropriate,
a statement of the interagency responsibilities
or linkages before the student leaves the school
sefting. The following is a sample list of
possible participants in transition planning for
students.

Transition Planning Participants

Cconsumer
» Student
» Parent(s)/Guardian

School Personnel
» Special Education Teacher/Admin.
» Regular Education Teacher/Admin.
» Vocational Ed. Teacher/Admin.
Transition Specialist
Vocational Evaluator
Voc. Special Needs Coordinator
Psychologist
Social Worker
Guidance Counselor
Related Sefvices Personnel

Adult Services Personnel H
» Vocational Rehabiltation Counselor
» Developmental Disabilities Case :
Manager :
JTPA Representative .
Behavioral Heatth Services Rep.
Employment Services Representative  :
Residential Services Provider Rep.
Commurity College Representative

Something to Write Home Abo“it

In October 1990, the ADE-SES in conjunction
with the Department of Special Education/
Rehabiltation at the University | of Arizona
administored a statewide survey to district
directors of special education titied, Survey of
Transition Planning and Technical Assistance
Needs. Included within this population, sefving
secondary special education students, were
public schools, state approved private schools,
and juvenile corrections facilities.

Survey respondents were asked to indicate the
current level of transition planning taking place
in their setting. Respondems were also
requested to identify technical assistance needs
as related to transition planning. Also solicited
were issues/barriers encountered in daveloping
transition sefvices.

To those of you who completed and returned
SUIVeYS ...

Thank You!

We had a temendous retum of survey
responses. Your feedback will be instrumental
in helping us to determine the curent status of
transition planning in Arzona schools. The
information you provided will also guide our
efforts to provide technical assistance in
meeting your needs.

The results of this transition planning survey are

depicted on the following pages of this volume
of the SPECIAL EDition,

=
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SITTON,

Survey of Transition Plauning an Technical Assistance Needs
In Arizona Local Education Agencies (LEAs)

What is the current status of transision planning?

LEAs belonging o a local agency transition task
force

LEAs belonging to 2 local interagency trsnsition task
force In which there Is a formal written agreement
between the task force agency members

LEAs reporting the existence of & formal process by
which confidential student Information can be shared
with adult service agencies

LEAs reporting a school district employee with specific
1> oasibilities associated with transition planning

S0 75
Percent of Respondents

What is the status of individualized transition planning? .

LEAs reporting that they conduct individualized
transition planning for special education students

Specific strategies identified by LEAs in conduciing
individualized transition planni
« Refer student to adul agencies
< Refer o Division on Developmental Disabilities
< Refer to Rehabilitation Services Administration
4 Refer to Jobs Training Partnership Act

« Conduct site visits to adult agencies

- Condudt individualized 4 "

« Provide students with information about vocational-

73 ity colleges, uni and
78 other post dury educational instinusi

Percent of Respondents
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local needs assessments?

What is the status of and perceived need for conducting

LEAs that have conducted a comprehensive local
needs assessment Of school programs and adult
services to identify needs/gaps 'in the current
service delivery system

LEAs that expressed an Interest in participating
n conducting a local needs assessment

50 75
Percentage of Respondents

NPRANSYIE

N

What is the status of and perceived need for conducting
follow-up surveys of former special education students?

s 50 k=3
Petcentage of Respondents

What are the most pressing needs
for technical assistance and training
among LEAs?

¢ Developing linkages with employers
and businesses for community-based
training

¢ Accessing services from adult service
agencies

+ Training school personnel on transition
planning

+ Conducting vocational assessments

4 Conducting follow-up surveys to asscss
the post-school adjustment of former
students

¢ Developing work experience programs

¢ Integrating special education into
vocational education programs

¢ Providing parenis with information on
transition planning

+ Developing and providing community-
based instruction

4 Training adult service agency personnel
on transition planning

LEAs that have conducted a follow-up study to
assess the post.school adjustment and service
dellvery needs of special education students

LEAs that expressed an Interest in conducting
follow.up studies of former special education
students

What are the predominant issues or

barriers that LEAs identify in

developing transition services in their
communities?

< Rural location

< Minimal adult services available
focally

< High unemployment/poor local
cconomy

« Lack of support, funds. or
personnel from schoo!

« Lack of interagency coordination

« Lack of transportation options

< Lack of community-based training sites

« Lack of adult residential options

(Continued on next page)

60-646 O - 22 - 6
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(Transition, continued)

Selecting Teachars for SELECT Courses
Starting in Spring 1892 the ADE-SES's SELECT
Program (Special Education Learning Experiencas for
Competency in Teaching) will offer coursework in the
area of Secondery Treneitlon. Since university credit
will be given to. participants, qualified instructors will
need to meet university requirements for adjunct faculty.
Persons interested in teaching one of these courses will
be required to have a masters degree and experience
in secondary special education, transition preparation of
students with disabilities, adult service linkages, and
teaching adult leamers.

Interested persons need to send a vitae, a letter of
introduction, three letters of recommendation and
transcripts by October 4, 1991, to Laura Love, Special
Education Section., Arizona Department of Education,
1535 W. Jefferson, Phoenix, AZ 85007,

Requesting Proposals for Prasentations ef the

2nd Annua! Transition Conferance
The 2nd annual stetewidae Secondary Transition
Conference requests proposals for presentations at
the January 1992 conference in Phoenix. Deedline for
propoeale s October 18, 1991. Call for Papers
appiication forms can be obtaned by contacting Laura
Love or Lillie Sly at (602) 542-3184.

Compiling Promising Practicas In Transition
The ADE-SES is in the process of developing a
compendium of successfur transition programs in
Anzona. Arizona’s Promising Practices in Transition will
be a compendium highlighting successful transition
practices and programs in Arizona schools. Deadline
for epplicetions {e October 11, 1991. Contact Laura
Love or Lillie Sly at 542-3184 for an application form.

What do I say? What do I do?

Tips for times with children
who have disabilities
by Dave Taylor

Act naturally. Be you. There often is a tendercy to
ether ignore a disabled child, or over-attend. ULike
Goldilocks, pick the amount of attention that is ‘just
right.*

Assuma tha child i1s bnght. Talk as you would to any
child unul you are told to do otherwise. It 1s better to
talk up 10 someone than talk down.

Talk to tha chid, not to the attendat. parent. or
teacher.

Estadlish eye contact. This may mean sitting down,
comfortably half kneeling, or moving to one side {if the
child cannot look straight ahead). Avoid standing
behind the wheelchair and talking. Many children rely
on facial cues, gestures, and clear hearing to
understand all that you are saying.

Wart for replies.....patiently. Repeating a questior too
soon may intefrupt a child who is attempting to
formulate an answer.

Keep conversation about a child's wheelcheir to a
minimum, not because # is insulting (it isnt), but
because often it is all people find to talk about (e.g., 'l
bet you can zoom around in that thing! 1 wish | had
one. How fast does it go? Can | ride? How long do
the batteries 1ast?). A little wheelchair talk is okay, but
move to other topics that are more interesting to the
child.

It is fina to use phrases Iike, *| have to run now* to a
child in a wheelchair.

Many children cannot help drooling. Salva won't kill
you. Don't be hesitant to wipe someone’s mouth (with
their permission) or hold @ hand that is wet.

vas, touching is okay. Holding hands, hugging or a pat
on the back are appropriate # they are something you
would do with any child. A pat on the head is not
okay. Typically it is a condescending gesture.
Appropriatensss is the key. Keep in mind that some
children are too affectionate and need to learn proper
social interaction.

Ask permission befora you help a child. Ask the
parents, 100, if they are present-but ask the child first.

When lifting children, first show them and then tell them
where they will be set down.

A child with a disability can misbehave just like any
othar child: to not mince words, they can be snolty or
they can be nice. Don't It yourself become $0 tolerant
that you allow clearly unacceptable behavior.

Don't feel as if everything you have 10 say needs 1o be
funny or light. Serious topics are weicomed. Some
children appreciate a break from laughing because they
cannot control that response very well.

(Repninted from Project ACTIVE (All Chidren Totally
Involved Exercising). a Nanonal Diffusion Network project
sponsored by the U.S, Department of Educanon. For more
information, contact Joe Karp, Director, Northshore School
Dusmect, 18315 Bothell Way N.E., Bothell, $A 98011.




Funding
Issues
by Shirley Bowman

13

Remember that FY91 Completion Reports are dus no
later than September 15, 1991, The sooner you submit,
the sooner we can get your camyover amendment
approved.

Speaking of camyover amendmants, the amendment
instructions and forms were disseminated in August. I
you have noX received your packet, please let us know.
We have included some notes and hints in the packet
to assist you in expediting your amendments.

And, of course, we mustn't forget about CASH
MANAGEMENT REPORTS. Those instructions and
forms are going out to you the first week in September.
Be sure to look for this most important packet. Those
of you with applications amounting to $50,000 or more
MUST submit your first report by OCTOBER 15, 1991.

Pleasa feel free to call me at 542-3850 if you have ANY
questions regarding 6B Entitlement funding.

Best wishes as we embark on another exciting school
year!

Indian Children’s Program

The Indian Health Service (IHS) and Bureau of indian
Aftairs (BIA) announce the re-establishment of the
Indian Children’s program. This program will provide
diagnostic and treatment consultation to children with
suspected disabiities from the Navajo and Hopi
Reservations and the multiple Pueblo tribes in Arizona,
New Mexico, and Southermn Colorado.

The forms needed to refer students for services are
available from BIA and IHS coordinators, mental health
centers, public schools, and Head Start Programs.
Parents are encouraged 10 contact the teachers or
directors in these agencies to refer their children for
services.

Every effort will be made to match children with
appropriate Services; 10 enhance the number and
quality of servicas available; and, where necessary, 10
provide additional services, training, and consuttation 10
better meet the needs of children and their families.

For additional information and reterral forms, contact Ela
Yazzie-King, P.O. Box 920. Ft. Defiance, AZ 86504, of
call (602)729-5986.

" Teacher Perceptions of Disabled

Students’ Behavior

Disabled students may exhibt no more problem
behaviors in mainstream classrooms than do their
nonhandicapped peers—even though their teachers may
judge them differently.

That conclusion is suggested in a new study by
researchers at the University of Minnesota. The
researchers sent observers into classrooms in suburban
Minneapolis-area elementary schools to watch students
for about an hour and note the number of times they
displayed behaviors their teachers considered
bothersome. The behaviors, numbering 60 in all
ranged from lying down to looking out the window 10
rolling pencils.

Observers were also asked to rate the students’
behavior separately to determine whether their
perceptions of the studants were related to the actual
data they collected.

The pupils observed included 35 atrisk, 30
handicapped, and 35 nonhandicapped students.

In both observational data and on behavior ratings. the
observers saw no differences in the frequency of
bothersoma behaviors exhibited by all three groups.
They did find, however, that boys tended to be more
disruptive than giris in the classes.

There were clear difterences, however, between the
groups in the teachers’ ratings of students. The
teachers said, for example, that the nonhandicapped
students spent significantly less time than both at-risk
students and disabled students staring out the window,
daydreaming, of engaging in other behaviors the
researchers classifiad as "passive withdrawal.”

The teachers also reposted more problem behavior in
boys than in girls.

“what we found seems t0 support the model that the
children are not viewed as disturbed, but as disturbing
to those who work with them,” said Karen J. Roschelle,
the doctoral student who presented the study this
month 2t a meeting of the American Educational
Research Association in Chicago.

She noted that the issue was important because
teacher perceptions help determine whether students
are classified as handicapped.

*Clearty,” she stated, “further research is needed to
explore the complex relationship between teacher
tolerance, teacher-identified bothersome behaviors, and
spacial-education referral.®

(Ref. Education Week, April 24, 1991}
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CPRANSITION,

by Laura L. Love
Transition Services Specialist

This edition of the Special Edition is devoted to Art

s newest @

Project ACTT:

The Arizona Depanment of Education/Special
Education Section (ADE-SES) was recently awarded
a three-year federally funded project from the U.S.
Department of Education, Office of Special Education
and Rehabilitative Services. Project ACTT: Arlzona
Community Transition Teama Is a collaborative
¢ Yort between the ADE-SES and the University of
Arizona/ Division of Special Education and
Rehabilitation. The purpose of Project ACTT is to
provide technical and financial assistance to local
communities in order 1o enhance the transition of
youth with disabilities from schoal to adutt lving.

Project ACTT wil assist a total of 15 communities
(five each year of the project) to develop and
sustain a Local Community Transition Team.

You may be asking, *what is & Local Community
Transition Team?*

A Local Community Transition Team may best be
defined as a small group of students, parents,
educators, service providers and cmployers who
share a common concem for the adutt adjustment of
the young aduts with disabilties in their
communtties. It is especially important that the team
includes reprasentation from the local educational
agency as well as the various adult service provider
and funding agencies since one of the major
functions of the team is to evaluate how services
currently are structured for youth with disabilities and
to identify and implemen* changes to improve these
services.

Project ACTT will provide ongoing. onsite technical
assistance to each Local Community Transition
Team in identifying th~ transition needs of its
community, and devel~pig and implementing a
strategic plan in order 10 _ddress these identifiad
needs. Project ACTT will provide each Local
Community Transition Team with financial *seed

Arizona Community Transition Teams

grants® in order to faciltate the implementation of its
strategic plan.

Project ACTT also will provide communities
throughowt Arizona with technical assistance,
information, and training regarding Individualized
Transition Planning, as currently mandated by the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

Five communities will be selected by an advisory
council for participation in the project each year.
The selected communitios will receive intensive and
ongoing assistance from the project personnel in
developing and sustaining a Local Community
Transition Team.

Attached you will find a one-page abstract of the
project, with a Community Profile on the back side.
We urge you to complete and return the Community
Profile it you are ir d in a Local C ity
Transition Teem in your community. The five teams
selected for participation in the first year of the
project will be natified by Dec. 20, 1991, with initial
meetings scheduled during January 1992. Selection
priority will be given to rural communities, to Native
Amarican communities, and t0 communities
demonstrating a large number of minority or
ethnically diverse studerts.

Community Profiles were mailed to all Special
Education programs in Arizona. Stould you have
any questions regarding the proect, or nsged
additional information in completing your Community
Profile, pleasa contact Laura Love, Project Director
at (602) 542-3184, or Dr. Michael Shafer, Project
Coordinator at (602) 621-1132

All profiles must be received by Dec. II,. 1991,
in order 10 be considered.

140
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The Arizona Department of Education
Special Education Section

is pleased to announce

Project ACTT: Arizona Community Transition Teams

a three-year Multi-Districs Qumeach Project #H158010026
funde : by the U.S. Department of Education

Project ACTT will provide technical and financaal assi 1o local communities in order to ¢nhance the
transition of youth with disabilities from school to adult living. Project ACTT represents a collaborative
effort between the Arizona Department of Education/Special Education Section and the University of
Arizona/Department of Special Education and Rehabilitation.  Using these combined resources, Project
ACTT is structured around the following goals:

. Project ACTT will assist 2 total of 15 communities (five each year ot the project) to develop and
sustain a Local Community Transition Team. These teams will be comprised of educators, parents,
adult agency represcatatives, and community representatives.

Project ACTT will provide ongoing, onsite technical asststance to cach Local Community Trausition
Team in identifying the transition needs of its commurity, and developing and implementing a
strategic plan in order to address these identified needs.

Project ACTT will provide participating communitics with financial *sced grants® in nrder t©
facilitate the imp} jon of their gic plans.

Project ACTT will provide communities throughout Arizona with technical assistance, information,
and training regarding Individualized Transition Planning, as currently mandated by the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

Arizona communitics interested in developing a Local Community Transition Team through Project ACTT
are required to complete a2 & ity Profile and retum to Project ACTT IMMEDIATELY. Community
Profiles have been mailed to all Special Education programs in Arizona. Intercsted communities needing
a Community Profile, ot for additional information on Project ACTT, please contact:

Laura Love, M.Ed., Project Director Michael Shater, Ph.D., Project Coordinator
Project ACTT Project ACTT

Anzona Department of Education University of Anzona/College of Education
Special Education Section Special Education and Rehabilitation
1535 West Jefferson, Phoenix, AZ 85007 Tucson, AZ 85721

(602) 542-3184 (602) 621-1132

Deadiine for receipt of Community Profile is Dec. 11, 1991.
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Perspective

*Challenges are simply Opportunities with the
wrapping still on.*

Projact ACTT
Arizona Community Transition Teams

The ADE-SES is extremely proud to announce the
six communities saelected to develop Locat
Community Trensition Teems in our new federally-
funded transition program, Project ACTT. The
communities for the first year of the project are:

» Buckeye » Kingman » Pinetop-Lakeside

» Flagstatf » Cochise County » Amphitheater

The ADE-SES thanks all of the communities who
applied for participation ir: the first year of Project
ACTT. The selection process was exiremely difficutt
as we wanted to be able to involve each applicant
in this exciting transition initiatve. Initally, only five
communities were 1o be selected to participate in
the tirst year of Project ACTT, however, due 10 the
overwhelming response from the fifty communities
who applied. we selected six communities. For
those communities not selected to participate in this
ficst year, the ADE-SES encourages you to apply for
partiCipation next year.

Arizona Follow-Along Project

The ADE-SES received funding from the US.
Department of Education for a twc-year study of the
postschool outcomes of students receiving special
education sesvices in Arzona. The Arizone Follow-
Along Profect is a collaborative effort between the
ADE-SES and Arizona State University-West.
Approximately 300 special education students who
successfully teft schoot during the 1891-1992 school
year (by graduating or aging-out) and 150 speciat
education students who dropped out of school
during the 1991-1992 school year will participate in
the follow-along study, along with their
parents/guardians and pnmary teacher. For more
information on the Arizone Follow.Aleng Project
please refer to the full-page announcement
contained in this secton or contact Laura Love,
Project Director. Arlzone Follow-Along Project, ADE-
SES. (602) 542-3184.

1992 Transition Conference

On February 27 and 28, 1992 the ADE-SES
sponsored /nvent the Future, the second annual
transition conference on students with disabilities.
The conferance was held at the Safari Resort and
Conterence Center in Scottsdale and was attended
by over 325 persons.

The featured keynote speaker for ihe first day of the
conference was Dr. Paul Wehman of Virginia
Commonwealth University. The luncheon keynote
was presented by Sherri Roberts of The ARC.
Seminar sessions included transition topics on
supported employment, Carl Perkins legisiation, IDEA
transition sefvices legislation, fabor laws, traumatic
brain injury, parent and student perspectives,
independent  living,  vocational  rehabilitation,
therapeutic recreation, middia school transition,
positive  affirmations in the classroom, and
intergovernmental agreements. A southwestern
social hour, sponsored by the Arizona Federation.
Councit for Exceptional Children, was held at the
end of the first day of the conference.

The second day of the conference featured a
training on developing and writing transtion sefvices
in the [EP. Participants worked in small groups to
develop long-range plans. present levels of
performance, statement of needed transiion
services, annual goals, short-term instructional
objectives, and statements of interagency linkages
for a variety of student scenarics. This day-long
working session produced a compendium of long-
range transtion plans and IEPs with transition
services for students with disabdities. This
compendium wilt be printed and distributed in Spring
1992 as a transition sesvices resource document.

The ADE-SES extends a sincere thank you to the
following organizations for their assistance wih the
conference: University of Arizona-Special Education
and Rehabititation;  Rehabilitation  Services
Administration;  Arizona  Federation-Councit  for
Exceptional Children; and Pilot Parent Partnerships,
Inc. If you were unable to attend the transition
conference this year and would like a copy of the
conference packet. please contact Faye Horne, ADE-
SES, Transtion Program, (602) 542-3184. Limited
copies are available.
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The Arizona Department of Education
Special Education Section

is pleased to announce the

Arizona Follow-Along Project

a two-year State AgencyiFederal Evaluation Study #H159410008
funded by the U.S. Department of Education

The Arizona Follow-Along Project will establish a system for collecting and using student follow-along information
at state and local levels 10 assess educational services and post-school outcomes for students who have received
special education services. The Arizona Follow-Along Project represents 2 collzborative cffort between the
Arizona Depariment of Education, Special Education Section and Arizona State University-¥lest, Department
of Special Education, Division of Curriculum and Instruction. Using these combined resources, the Arizona
Follow-Along Project is structured around the following goals:

a The Arizona Follow-Along Project will implement a system for collecting follow-along information
that has the capacity 10 describe the post-school community adjustment of students who have
received special education services. The sample of special education students will include school
completers and drop-0*'s of all disability groups. Data will be collected during the student’s Jast
year in high school, and again during their first year out of school. Information will be collected
from students and their parents in the areas of student and family characieristics, school services
needed and received, schooi achievement, quatity of life while in school, post-school scrvices needed
and received, and quality of lifc out of school. A computer-assisted telephone interview will be used
to collect this information. The student’s primary special education teacher will provide information
through a self-administered questionnaire.

The Arizona Follow-Along Project will implement a sysicm for using follow-along information at
state and local levels to achieve improvements in programs and policies serving students and young
adults with disabilities. The Arizona Follow-Along Project will also provide technical assistance to
state and local staff as they usc the follow-along information 0 examine policics and programs.
Included in this goal will be the identification of the neccssary resources to maintain follow-along
studies in Arizona once federal funds arc withdrawn.

As a result of the Arizona Follow-Along Project, state agencics, local education agencies, and praate service
providers will be able to examine the impact and effectiveness of transition services, and implement spproprate
action 10 achicve improvements in education 2nd transition programs for youth with disabilities. In turn, young
adults with disabilities will experience an enhanced preparation for post-schocl opportunities and greater success
1n accessing needed transition services.

The ADE-SES and ASU-West needs your assistance in conducting this mutually important study of
the post-schocl outcomes of Arizona youth with disabilities. Please assist us when you are contacted
by project staff to locate prospective students, parents, or teacher participants.

Laura Love, M.Ed., Project Director Ida Malian, Ph.D., Project Coordinator
Arlzona Follow-Along Profect Arizona Follow-Along Project

Arizona Department of Educanon Anzona State Unwversity-West

Special Education Section Depantment of Special Education

1535 Waest Jeffarson, Phoenix. AZ 850074701 West Thunderbird, Phoenx, AZ 85069
{602) 542-3184 (602) 543-6300

10
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CERANSILION,

Vocational Evaluation Institute

The ADE-SES conducted its first institute on
vocational evaluation of students with disabilities.
The institute was heild on February 6, 1892 at the
Airport East Holiday Inn. The featured trainer for
this institute was Karen Peil of Aubum University.
Ms. Pell provided bachground information on the
histoncal development of vocational assessment,
including the provisions for vocational evaluation in
the IDEA. Common elements and differences
between curiculum-based assessment, situation
assessment, and center-based assessment were
discussed. Methods for collecting and interprating
vocationally relevant data were presented. The
focus of the training was on identifying student
needs based on functioning, and going beyond
“labels® to ife goals. The ADE is planning to
conduct a second institute in May, 1992, and a third
institute in Fall, 1992.

Love Affairs

On March 13, 1992 the ADE-SES submutted a
pro:. usal to the U.S. Deparntment of Education, Office
of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services for
tunding for a five-year transition systems change
project. The ADULTS Program (Arizona
Developing and Using Leadership for Transitlon
Services) is a coilaboratve effort between the
Anzona Department of Education-Special Education
Section, Arizona  Rehabilitation  Services
Admnistraiion, and the University of Arizona-Special
Education and Rehabilitation. It funded. the intent of
the ADULTS Program is to create and sustain the
momentum t0 improve the cument structure and
process by which youth with disabilities expenence
the transition from school to adulthood. The
ADULTS Program proposes 1o provide technical
SuUppOrt in transtion services 10 local communmies;
to enhance the capacity of local communtties to
identdy and respond to the transtion needs of youth
with  disabilties; to suppcrt demonstrations of
innovatve and best practices in secondary and
transttion services for youth with disabilities: and to
create the capacity for sustained statewide changes
n polcies, procedures. and funding mechanisms
affecting transtion age youth with disabities. The
ADE-SES will receive funding notfication in Summer.
Fall 1991

Update on Vocational Rehabllitation

Just a reminder that referrals to the Division on
Vocational Rehabilitation for vocational rehabilitation
services should also be considered for students with
visual impairments, physical impairments, and mental
retardation. For more information contact your lccal
vocational rehabilitation office.

“Bestseller” List

The September 1991 edition of TRANSITION
SUMMARY features *Options After High School for
Youth with Disabilities." This issue includes
information on  sefft-determination, emgloyment
options, adult systems, reascnable accommodation,
the importance of keeping records, SSI/SSDI work
ncentives. and postsecondary education and
training opportunities. TRANSITION SUMMARY is
published once each year. Individual subscriptions
in the United States are FREE! For further
information please contact NICHCY, P O. Box 1492
Washington, DC, 20013, or call 1 {800) 999.6599. or
(703) 893-8614 (TDD). If you would lke a
photocopy of this Issue, contact Faye Horne, ADE-
SES. Transition Program, (602) 542-3184.

A Gentle Reminder

In developing IEPs for school year 1992-1993, we
remind you that the IEP team MUST consider the
student’s need for transition services. If the student
1S age 16 or older. transition services MUST be
included in the IEP. In other words, a statement of
needed transtion services with accompanying
annual goals and short-term instructional objectives
MUST be in the IEP for all students from age 16 on.

Also, # the student IS leaving schoo! services
(graduating, aging out, or dropping out), the IEP
team MUST discuss the student's need for services
offered by other agencies such as vocational
rehabiltation, ccmmunity colleges, developmental
disabilties. etc. If a need is identffied, then the 1EP
team MUST include a statement in the IEP which
entities the agency and service which could meet
the student's needs. Contact Laura Love or Lillie
Sly. ADE-SES. (602) 542-3184 for more information.




Transition Information Resources and
Clearinghouses*

Amociation om Hasdicappod Stademt Service  Frogams
Postsecondary Education (AHSSPPE) - P.O. Bax 21192, Columbs,
OH 43221. Telephone: (614) 483-4972 (Voice/TDD).

CGannghousc oa  Disability - Office of Specul
Educauon and Rehabilitalve Servioes (OSERS), Room 3132, Swizer
Bigg. 330 C Surcet SW, Washingioa, DC 20202-2524. Telepboae:
(202) 732-1723.

mcmmmm&w,-dvmc_ﬁu-
Ohio Sute University, Center on Educauon and Traming (or
Employment, 1900 Kenny Rd. Columbus, OH 43210-1909.
Telcphone: (614) 2924353 1 (570) 848-4815.

mcmmiwmcmm-ml
for Pt Chikdren, 1920 Dnive, Restos, VA 22091-
1589 Teicphone (703) 620-3660.

Materials Center (MDC) - Stout Vocatonal
R i Insutute, L of Stout, A

W1 54751. Telephone: (715) 232:1342

Other National Information Resources™

Natoual Center for Research is Voaational Educatios (NCRVE) -
NCRVE, Unsversity of Californu at Berkeicy, 2150 Shattuck Avenue.
Berkeley, CA 94704-1306. Telephone: (415) 642.5004.

Natiomal Conter for Youth with Disabilitics (NYCD) - NYCD
University of Minnaota, Box 721. UMHC, Minreapolu. MN 55455
Telephone: 1 (800) 3336293 (Voice). (612) 626-2858: (012) 024
3939 (TDD).

Nationat Cu om P for Indivi
with Disabilitics (HEATH Rosurce Cester) - One Dupont Ciscle.
Suite 800, Washington, D¢ 20036-1193. Telephone: 1 (800) 544-3284
(Voioe/TDD).

Natiomal Rehahilitarion lalormation Center (NARIC) - NARIC, 8455
Colesille Road. Suite 938, Sitver Spang, MD 20910, Telephone:

1 (800) 3457742 (Voice/TDD).

Amcricar Vocitional Amocistion (AVA) - AVA, 1410 King St.
‘Atoandna, VA 22314, Telephone: (103) 683-3111: 1 (800) 826-9972

The following orgs are wth the AVA:

. Nauoaal of m
(NAVAE)

. Natonat Association of Speaal Needs Stae Ad@inuirators
(NASNSA)

. Nauonal ol E Spectal Neods
Personnsi{NAVESNP)

. Special Needs Dvasion (SND)

Boach Ceatar om Familice and Dimability, Bureau of Child Rescarch.
Unrmersity of Kansas, 4133 Haworth Hall, Lawrence. KS 66045,
Telephone® (913) 864-7600.

National Restaurant Amociation - 7~ Philip Netan, Director of
of Handicapped, National R A 1200
17th Street NW. Washington. DC 20036. Telephone. {202) 3315988

Parents Advocating Vocational Educaton (PAVE) - PAVE. 6316 S
12th Street, Tacoma, WA 98465 Teicphone: (206)565-2266. 1 1800)
572-7308 (in WA).

Parcats Education Advoccy Training Ceater (PEATC)- PEATC, 2238
S. Pig Steeet, Room 300, Alcxandna, VA 22314, Telepaone (703)
836-2953.

People First - P.O Bax 12642 Salem. OR 9730%
Telephone: (S03) 362033 or (503) 588-5288.

C = o C of Work Adj and s
valuation Specialists (CCWAVES) -CCWAVES, 1835 Rohtwing
Rd. Rolling Meadows, 1L 60008.

Divmioa of Career Developmost (DCD) - Counal for Exocptional
Cuildren, 1920 Asocaton Drve, Roston. VA 22091-1589
Telephone: (303} 6203660,

Dole Foundation for the Employment of Porsoss with Disablitics -
1819 H Street N.W, Suite 850, Washington. DC 20006. Contact
person Randy Davis, Program Astomate, Telephone: (202) 4570318,
Helen Keller Natomat Conter - Tochnical Amiatance Center (TAC)
111 Middle Neck Road. Sands Powl. NY 110%0-1299 Telephoac
{510) 9448900

Nauoeal Iodustrics (or 1be Bund - 524 Hamburg Tumptke. CNGG9.
Wayne. NJ 074740969 Telephone. (201) 959200

Nauonal [ndustrics for the Severcly Handicapped - 2235 Cedar Lanc.
Vienna, VA 22180 Telephone (703) 560-6800 or (703) S606512

v

BEST COPY AVAILABLE

Prosident’s Comaittee ow Employ of Persons with Disabaditees
(PCEPD) - PCEPD. 1111 20th Sureet NW, Washingion. DC 20030~
3470 Teleohone: (202) 653-5044

Scooadary Tranitoa latarvention Loatitute (Transition Inatitute at
Thaois) - Tranuuon Insulute at (lhnoss. College of Educaucn.
Unwversity of (linou at Urbana-Champargn. 110 Educaton Building.
1310 S. 6th Siczer. Champaign.iL. 61820. Telephone. (217) 333-2325

Tochnical Amistance for Parent Progmams (TAPP) - TAPP.
Federation of Chukdren with Special Needs, 95 Berleley Strect
Boston, MA 02116. Telephone: (617) 482:2915 (Voice/TDD): t (800)
331-0688 (1n MA).

Techeacal Amistasce for Special Populaoas Programs (TASPPY -
TASPP, Unwversity of [llinos at Urbana-Champaign. M5 Educanon
Aldg. 1310 S 6th Strect. Champagn. (L 61820 Telcpnone (217}
333.0807

Vip & h U ity il R and
Center om Supparted Employment (RRTC)  RRTC.
Virgnia Commonwealth Umversity. 1314 W Main Stecct. Richmond.
VA 23284.2011 -

* lndormaton (rom KICHCY Tramion Summany Septembet 1991 So T
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Chairman OwgNs. Thank you.
Mr. Normal L. Tayle-.

STATEMENT OF NORMAL L. TAYLOR, JR.

Mr. Tayror. I am Norm Taylor, 4229 North 19th Drive, Phoenix,
85015. I am a vocational rehabilitation services specialist with GES.
My thoughts and statements here are my own, not the agency’s.

I take great offense in the notion that vocational rehabilitation
does not address the needs of minorities. In my particular office we
have an 88 to 92 percent minority caseload at all times. We have
seven counselors. Three of those are Hispanic, one is black, that
being myself. We have two females in the office, including our
office manager. We have paraplegic and quadriplegic counselors in
our office. We have a Native American specialist in our office.

I currently have 52 active clients. I have 12 more who are sched-
uled to be interviewed and brought on board within the next 2%
weeks.

I was listening to Mr. Gutierrez and the problem he expressed.
What I heard was someone who either did not assert himself or
someone who had a lack of self-esteem. In my office, we address
thosle, so that that individual does not encounter that further down
the line.

The CAP brochure, the plan assistance program, is given to each
individual who comes into our office at the end of the initial inter-
view. There is a document that is signed at that time so that there
is a record that they’re fully aware of CAP in case they have to use
that organization.

Basically, we have a blue collar office. We're in South Phoenix,
the most economically deprived area in Phoenix. We like to think
we do a very good job.

The question came out abrut outreach. I personally make home
visits. I personally make outreach trips to the schools, to various
agencies within the neighborhood, and other counselors in my
office do the same. At-risk clients have 24-hour access tc me. It
isn’t something that’s usually done, but 'm not going to lose any of
my clients, and my fellow counselors feel the same.

I may not look as though I have anything going on with me as
far as disabilities. I suffer from the residuals of a left leg injury I
sustained in the Marine Corps in 1968. I'm diabetic. I suffer from
hypertension. I have pulmonary illness. I suffer from deep venus
thrombosis. I have a total right hip replacement.

What do we do for our clients in this heavily minority area?
Emergency services, food services, emergency funds, if necessary,
crisis intervention, financial planning, how to obtain benefits. I
have even intervened with families with title companies to make
sure that those families do not have homes which they have sweat-
ed for yanked out from under them. Medical services, audiology,
cardiology, dentistry, dermatology, ear, nose and throat specialist,
endocrinology, gynecology, hand specialists, neurology, optometry,
ophthalmology, orthopaedics, thoracic specialists, pediatrics, ne-
phrology, prosthetics, psychology, psychotherapy, psychiatry, rheu-
matology, learning disabilities, vascular and pulmonary services—
we provide all these to our clients, and we do so gladly.
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There are also discount programs to help poverty-stricken fami-
lies: electricity, gas services, phone services, free home repair,
home counseling, home weatherizing, day care; again, these are
things that we attend to on behalf of our clients.

I can’t even go into the number of agencies which we work with,
some of whom are represented here. I would just like to say that
what really disturbs me is that every year there's an attempt that
the private sector will be able to privatize and take over what voca-
tional rehabilitation specialists do. That will only serve to ensure
that those individuals who most desperately need the services will
not be provided those services, as opposed to the individuals who do
want to do that.

The individual counselors in my office are in South Phoenix be-
cause they want to be. I live 8 minutes from this location. I wanted
to be in South Phoenix, as does every counselor in my office. We're
dedicated and no one can say we are not. We back up everything
we say. You do a poll of our clients and you will find out that we
are doing a good job. We are underfunded—and that is not a reflec-
tion on our leadership because they are hamstrung. So let the legis-
lature give us more money to do our job. We want to do our job.
We appreciate everyone who appreciates us, and we want to contin-
ue to do as great a job as we possibly can.

Thank you.

Chairman Owens. Thank you, Mr. Taylor. That’s a good, upbeat
note to end on.

I want to thank you and all of the persons who were not sched-
uled to testify. Your testimony will be quite useful as we go for-
ward to reauthorize the Act, which will be accomplished in time for
funding October 1st We hope that we'll have a much improved Act
and that we'll get tnose additional resources that we need to make
some of these new innovations.

The subcommittee hearing is now adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12:40 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned.]

[A tape containing statements from the following members and
former members of the Tucson Chapter for the Blind is available at
the subcommittee office:]

Lee Kerr, Tucson, Arizor-.

Cindy Hughen, Tucson, Arizona

John W. Piet, Tucson, Arizona

Geraldine Piet, Tucson, Arizona

Kenneth Hughen, Tucson, Arizona
Dennis Sheppard, Tucson, Arizcna

Jean Chancellor, Tucson, Arizona
Jennifer Feingold, Englewood, Celorado
Darryl Sandrow, Sun City, Arizona
Karen Ortego, President, Tucson, Arizona

[Additional material submitted for the record follows:]
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STATEMENT OF ELAINE REILLY, TUCSON, AZ

Due to the opportunities that have been opened to the blind and visually im-
paired, I feel that the individual’s ambitions, goals, and long-range anticipations de-
serve to be exercised through the Freedom of Choice Act now being discussed by
Congress. This ability to choose what skills would best benefit them in their endeav-
ors would not only be psychological, but also sociological in the active participation
with their counselors, enabling better understanding of their condition as they
handle their role in society,

Not only have the blind and visually impaired advanced from manual labor, such
as brooms, mats, et cetera, but to all positions and confidence in making decisions,
which such a transaction will benefit the many handicapped people in living a fuller
and richer life.

This will also let many of the people come off the welfare rolls and give more
meaning to their lives by feeling like a productive and responsible taxpayer.

Thank you.
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STaTEMENT oF DoucLas M. ReiLLy, TucsoN, AZ

To whom it may concern:

I feel that the freedom of choice now before Congress will be a great help for a
number of reasons:

1. It will let the counselors in the various States do a better job of training the
people by letting the person get what they feel is the best training.

2. It will enable more of the handicapped people to come off the social welfare
rolls by providing better training.

3. It will make it so a handicapped person no longer needs to take up residency in
another State just to get the training needed.

4. It will improve the quality of training for the disabled by having national com-
petition between the various training centers and not just local and State competi-
tion.

5. It should give national standards to the training of the handicapped person.

6. It will let the individual improve the training centers by the inflow of money
from the training and shut down the bad training centers by not having the enroll-
ment money.

Now all the money goes into the general funds of this State and gets dished out
according to the political influence of a few. With this bill that kind of spending
waste will be stopped and the money will be better used, and the handicapped indi-
viduals can have a better chance of success in their lives.

Don't get me wrong, I am sure that there will be some places open up just to get
the money, but word of mouth will close these places down in a short time.

Thank you for your support of this bill.




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

144

StaTEMENT OF JAMES H. OMvIG, TucsoN, AZ

I am writing you this letter for the record, since I did not have the opportunity to
attend your May 11 hearing on the Reauthorization of the Vocational Rehabilitation
Act. I very much appreciate the fact that those of us who had not been notified of
the hearing may still present comments which will be considered as a part of the
official record.

I am blind and have been for more than 40 years. I have been involved in reha-
bilitation of persons who are blind for 30 years. Although I have worked profession-
ally in several States and have visited programs in most of the others, I have recent-
ly retired to Arizona because of ill health.

Based upon my 30 years of experience, I submit that there is a fundamental flaw
in the Rehabilitation Act as it is presently written; namely, that the client is re-
stricted to service in the State where he or she happens to reside at the time of
onset of blindness or other disability. Since most rehabilitation money is Federal, it
should make no difference to the “system” where the client gets his or her help.
The sole consideration should be, “What is best for the client?”

The problem is this: The quality and usefulness of programs varies greatly from
State to State. This necessarily means that it is pure luck as to whether the dis-
abled person will or will not have a meaningful chance for a decent life after the
onset of disability.

If a person is lucky, he or she will live in a State with a good program. If not (and
this is more often the case), then life will be bleak and barren indeed upon becom-
ing disabled.

The Congress can do much to fix this tragic situation with a single stroke. You
can enact the amendment submitted by the National Federation of the Blind whic..
would permit the potential client to pick the agency from which he or she would
like to receive service. This would potentially do two things; it would enable the
person with the disability to go to a State program which could truly benefit him or
her, and it would force the States with the bad programs to improve them so that
they could get a piece of the rehabilitation action. This would result in a great bene-
fit to everyone involved.

Blind people in this State need your help, Congressman Pastor, and need it badly.
While it is truly unfortunate, you should know that Arizona’s Services for the Blind
and Visually Impaired is one of the worst State rehabilitation agencies in this coun-
try. The best thing that a newly blinded person can do here is to pack up and move

to some cther State where help is of much better quality. This is tragic, but it is a
fact.

Congressman, you can help blind people not only here in Arizona, but those from
all across the country. Please do everything within your power to enact the client’s
“right of choice” proposal.

Remember, the fundamental question must be, “What is best for the client?”
Please help!
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May 16, 1992

P. O. Box 36032
Tucson, Arizona 85740

Honorable Ed Pastore

Menber of Congress

2675 East Broadway

Suite 105

Tucson, Arizona 85716
attention: Linda Lethermen

Dear Congressman Pastore:

I am a 62-year-old blind resident of Tucson. I am writing this
letter to you to give you my ideas about the Rehabilitation Act,

since I was not able to attend and participate in your recent hearing
in Phoenix.

With one exception, I support the Rehabilitation Act just as it is.
The good rehabilitation agency can do exactly what is needed under
the current law.

However, one very important change "must® be made. The o
rehabilitation client should be able to CHOOSE wh' re he or she would
1ike to receive service. Right now, this is not gossible.

My case is the perfect example of why this change in the federal law
is needed. When I first went blind, I sought out Arizona’s Services
for the Blind and Visually Impaired (SBVI) for help. Although I did
not know it then, SBVI is one of the worst agencies for the blind in
this Country. I shculd have had the opportunity to get help from

someplace else where the service would have been of a higher quality.

Rather than repeat my long and sad story here, I am going to provide
you with a copy of a letter which I wrote to Ne.l Carney, the federal
Commissioner of the Rehabilitation services Admir.istration about my
situation. I request that you make this letter a part of your
official record. This letter shows vividly why a client "must" have
the right to choose the agency which can best serve him or her.

Please do all that you can to pass this critical piece of
legislation.

Respectfully,

Cen T Mk
J?mes M. Matise

N
~
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James M. Matisc

P.O. Box 36032

Tucson, Arizona 85740
Telephone: 602/742-0772

August 7, 1991

Mrs. Nell Camcy, Commissioner
Rehabilitation Services Administration
U.S. Department of Education

Room 3028 Mary E. Switzer Building
330 C Strect, SW

Washington D.C. 20207

Dear Commissioner Carney:

1 am writing to you to let you know of very scrious problems which blind people are
experiencing here in Arizona and to ask for help in finding some solutions. Our state
agency for the blind, Services for the Blind and Visually Impaired (SBVI). is totally
ineffective, and services for most who need them don't exist at all. Also, we have a
Govemor's Council on Blindness and Visual Impairment which should be working to
help blind people get beiter services but which, in fact, only works to cover up the
problems and to try to protect SBVI and other poor service providers from justifiable
criticism by the blind.

A scries of cvents this summer have led to my writing directly to you for help. First,
my wifc and I had the good fortune of attending the National Federation of the Blind
(NFB) convention in New Orleans in July. We were present when President Maurer
gave his banquet address, and we heard, with great sorrow, about the terrible things
which the New Jersey agency for the blind did to "Bill"~-with only a few changes,
this could have been my story. And finally, 1 heard you address the convention. | was
struck by your knowledge and your experience but, most of all. by your obvious
interest in making certain that rehabilitation agencies really help those for whom their
services are intended.

1 believe that a detailed accounting of what has happened to me the past 19 months is
the best way to make you aware of conditions for the blind here. I realize that this
will be somewhat lengthy, but I want to give you a truc and complete picture of our
problems. Please bear with me.

1 am 61 years old. For more than 40 ycars I have worked 1 property management of
one kind or another. The last job which 1 held before becoming blind was that of
general manager for a major hotel chain.
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The week of January 15, 1990 was 2 traumatic onc for me. 1 became 60 years of age;
1 was declared legally hlind due to macular degencration; and 1 was fired from my
position as general manager. Needless 10 say, | was devastated. My wite and I simply
didn't know what we would or could do.

We knew, of course, that we needed money, and 1 had paid taxes into the system for
more than 40 years. So, on January 23, 1990, | went to the Department of Econoniic
Sccurity's Job Service program to apply for unemployment cash benefits. We began
the application process on that date.

On January 26, I returncd t0 Job Services to complete the application process. At that
time the interviewer realized that T am blind, so he sent me to Services for the Blind
and Visually Impaired (SBVI) for help in finding employment. SBVI is also part of
the Department of Economic Security.

1 went immediately to the Tucson SBVI office and spoke with the office supervisor,
George Mayo, because I wanted to get right back to work and wanted to take
advantage of any help which might be available to me. Instead, I got the shock of my
jife. Mayo told me that I should just forget work and consider myself retired. In
essence, he said that 1 am too old and too blind to make any help worthwhile. He said,
"We can't even get johs for people who are 2] years old. We certainly cant help
someone like you "

My wife and [ were dumfounded at this attitude. We thought that this agency was
supposed to help blind people. In spite of the supervisor's attitude, 1 told him i wanted
to apply for help anyway since 1 needed to get hack to work. He said that he didnt
have time to take the application that day, hut if 1 would come back on January 31, he
would help me.

On January 30, 1 went hack to Job Services to complete my application there. [ also
signed a release of information form so that Joh Services could find out about my eye
condition from my eye doctor.

I did return to SBVI on January 31 to complete my application for help. Again, Mayo
was not encouraging at all, but I told him 1 needed to work and wanted his help.

Then, since 1 had completed both applications, 1 began looking for employment on my
own. | was quitc certain that it was the knowledge about property management that |
had as a commodity to offer to prospective employers. I could handle my visual loss
by having some sccretarial and reader help. And, of course, 1 also hegan to wait for
help from SBVIL 1 really helieved that they would help me since | had insisted on
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applying for their service and since Job Services had sent me there.

My next contact from Arizona state government was another shocking one. Under date
of February 8, 1990, I received a Determination of Deputy from Job Services
informing me that I was NOT eligible for unemployment cash benefits. Under Arizona
law an applicant must be available for and able to work to receive unemployment cash
benefits. My eye doctor had informed Job Services that I was not able to work
because of my blindness, and the Job Services Deputy simply accepied this erroncous
statement and declared me ineligible.

(Just as an aside, in early February 1 filed a discrimination complaint against my
former employer with the Civil Rights Division of the Office of the Arizona Attorney
General. T am confident that I had been discriminated against both because of
blindness and age.)

Then began what was for both my wife and me a long and depressing wait. 1 assumed
that since Job Services and SBVI are in the same department of state government, that
SBVI would take care of the ridiculous ruling that I am unable to work because of my
blindness. 1 was wrong 1 heard nothing from anyone! 1 still just can't believe that
SBVI would want to let a ruling stand that a blind person is not able to work.

Also, when 1 had first gone to Job Services and SBVI for help. my spirits were high
and I was cager, ready, willing, able to work and available for work. But, after being
told both by SBVI and Job Services that I couldn't work at all, T must confess that I
began to have doubts myself.

Even so, 1 waited, and waited, and waited, and waited! Through it all, 1 kept a glimmer
of hope alive. 1 guess that down deep 1 really knew I could still work if T could just
get the chance. Finally, on April 24, almost three months after I had asked for SBV1
help, I received a letter from George Mayo, the office supervisor, who had interviewed
me and taken my application (this was his first contact with me since the day 1
applied). When the letter arrived, I was ecstatic because I thought that help had come
at last. Instead, 1 was bewildered 10 read that my case was being closed because I am
too blind and t00 old to be given any help. I simply couldn't believe it, and I didn't
know what 10 do. So that you can see it for your self 1 am attaching a copy of the
letter. Even though this was the same man who had first said that he couldn't even got
jobs for 21 year-olds $o he sure couldn’t help someone as old as me, I had still thought
when 1 insisted on completing the application that he would at least try to help me.

For the next several months I looked for jobs on my own, talked to other blind people
and discussed my SBVI problems with several attorneys. Finally, in the late summer, |
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spoke with an attorney who told me that I should write a letter directly to Mr. Ed
House, the Director of SBVI in Phoenix. It was assumed that Mr. House would want
to help me when he learned what happened at the Tucson office. Therefore, some time
in September I wrote Mr. House. A week later he called me and 1 explained the entire
story to him. He said that he would check it out and get back to me.

When he called back, instead of offering to help me, House told me that I should go
down to the Tucson SBVI office and apologize to George Mayo for spreading lies
about him. (Apparently Mayo had denied telling me that 1 should just consider myself
retired and that, since he couldn't even get jobs for 21-year-old kids, he sure couldn't
help someone like me.) 1 told House that "it would be a cold day in hell" when 1
would apologize since Mayo had said exactly what 1 had repeated. I also pointed out
to House that I had the statement in writing that Mayo wouldn't help me because of the
combination of my blindness and age. However, this didn't do any good. and House
did nothing to help me and never responded in writing to my letter.

Again months passed. In early December of 1990, I was introduced to a blind man in

Tucson who is a member of the National Federation of the Blind. He told me that he

is a member of the Arizona Governor's Council ofsBlindness and Visual Impairment. 1
told him my whole story, and he said that he would help me.

He asked whether 1 had appealed the adverse decision of SBVI when it closed my
case. 1 told him that 1 had net. that I didn't know I had any appeal rights. He asked if
SBVI had not informed me of such rights, and 1 told him that they had not. He looked
at the April 24 letter from Mayo closing my case and was astonished to sce that my
appeal rights had not been spelled out in detail.

This gentleman, Mr. James Omvig, told me that there was a regular mecting of the
Governor's Council coming up on December 14, and that he would present my case to
that body for action if 1 wanted him to do so. Idid ask him to take that action, so he
prepared a resolution to present to the Council setting forth the facts in my case and
requesting that SBVI take immediate action to give me meaningful services.

The National Federation of the Blind (NFB) had publicly criticized SBVI at it's
October 1990 convention and there had been a newspaper articie and radio talk show
about the poor SBVI services. The Governor's Council Chairman, Dr. David Wayne
Smith, had written to the NFB and directed that if there were complaints about SBVI,
they should be brought to the Governor's Council rather than taken to the media or the
public.

When Mr. Omvig tricd to discuss my casc and to present his resolution at the
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December 14 council meeting, he was abruptly cut off by the Council Chairman Dr.
Smith. He was told that this issuc was out of order since it had not been placed on the
agenda when he (Smith) had prepared it a few weceks ecarlier. A lengthy discussion
followed but, ultimately, Mr. Omvig was not permitted to present his resolution.

It was finally decided that the Council would hold a “special meeting” on January 25,
1991, to hear my case. Everyone present agreed to this date. You can imagine my
surprise, therefore, as well as that of Mr. Omvig when, a few days later, the Chairman
of the Council sent out a letter stating that the press of Christmas would make it
impossible for the Council to meet on January 25. Without consulting with Council
members, the Chairman arbitrarily rescheduled the special meeting for February 28.

The day after the Council meeting, Dr. Smith called and asked to meet with me. He
said that he would help to try to get my unemployment insurance benefits and to move
the Attorney General's office along with my discrimination complaint, but nothing ever
came of it.

The SBVI Director, Ed House, was present at the December 14 meeting where my case
had been discussed and, therefore, had been made public. A few days later I received
a call from Ed House asking me to reapply for services. 1 agreed to do so, and a
mecting was sct for late December with a new rehabilitation counselor, Frank Johnson.
However, before the late December meeting could take place, Johnson called to cancel
the meeting. He rescheduled it for January 8, 1991.

My wife and I did atend the January 8 meeting, and Mr. Omvig went with us. This
time I assumed that SBVI would really want to do something positive to help. Again,

however, 1 was wrong. The very first thing that the counselor wanted to do was to
conduct a vocational evaluation so that we could, learn "where my interests are” and
"what 1 am able to do." I wanted to hit the roof, but I kept my cool. I reminded the
counscior (he already knew it) that 1 had been a property manager for more than 40
years and that that was what I wanted to continue to do. After a lengthy discussion, he
agreed to skip the testing and try to help me find a job.

Nothing clse happened until the special February 28 Council meeting. Mr. Omvig did
discuss my case and present his resolution—-he presented this as a member of the
Council and 1 also told my story. In the discussion which followed, 1 was attacked,
called "bitter” and told I should have appealed through the regular appeals process. It
didn't scem to make any difference when Council members learned that SBVI had not
informed me of the existence of appeal rights.

The Council has 15 voting members, only three of whom are blind persons from the
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National Federation of the Blind. When Mr. Omvig insisted that his resolution be
voted upon, I received three votes. These were the three members of the National
Federation of the Blind. All others present voted against me. The general consensus
now was that individual complaints should rot be brought to the Council.

Since February, I have had countless meetings with my rehabilitation counselor and a
job placement specialist. I have received no training or equipment from >3Vv1 1have
never been sent on a job interview and, as far as I know, the Counselor has never gone
out looking for work for me. Because I am a veteran, 1 did have the good fortune of
going to Palo Alto for some V.A. training for two months this spring. But, of course.
the V.A. is not in the business of finding jobs. The V.A. expects the state agency to
do that.

It is now more than 19 months since I first asked SBVI for help  While 1 remain
hopeful, none of this hope can be attributed to SBVI or the Arizona Governor's
Council. Both of these agencies have served only to destroy hope and to bring despatr.

I am hopeful because of the blind persons 1 have met. They continually provide me
with reassurance and real encouragement. They are also using all of their contacts to
try to help me find a job.

I said when 1 began that SBVI and the Governor's Council are not of help to blind
persons in this State. I believe that my story speaks for itself. 1 wish that 1 could tell
you that my situation is an isolated instance and that what happened to me is just some
kind of fluke. However, 1 assure you that what has happened to me is the norm. not
the exception.

Commissioner Carney, afl I have ever wanted from Services for the Blind or the
Governor's Council in the past 19 months is some help so that 1 can go back to work
and support my wife and me, and these people have denied me that right. The awful
truth which I have come to realize is that the staff, from Ed House right on down, has
no faith in blind people and has no knowledge as to what blind people can do or how
to do it. 1f SBVI can't place you in a sheltered workshop or in the vendor's program.
they don't have any idea as to how to help or what to do. And, one thing more: It is
bad enough for these people not to know about blindness or about rehabilitation, but
the fact that they don't carc about what happens to blind people is even worse.

The time has come when there must be some kind of a big shakeup here in Arizona.
Perhaps, after these 19 months of waiting there is really nothing which can be done to
help me, but what about ail those who will go blind in the future? Can't something be
done to get a qualified staff to help them? Can't something be done to get SBVI out of

16}

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

the giant Department of Economic Security into some kind of agency where final
responsibility can be tracked down? Can't something be done here to get an agency
which is responsive to the needs of blind people and which has faith in the blind?
Can't some.hing be done to get an agency in which the staff members truly care about
what happens to blind people in this State? In other words, can't something be done to
get a decent rehabilitation program for the blind in Arizona?

And then there is the Governor's Council. Can you imagine the outrage if we had a
Governor's Council on Women's Issues and if it were chaired by a man and had a
majority of men on its board who argued against what the women had to say? Can't
something be done to establish a Governor's Council which has the interests of the
blind at heart and which functions democratically and is interested in improving
conditions for all of the blind people in Arizona?

I know that I am presenting you with a number of problems, Commissioner, but there
must be someone or some place where we here in Arizona can get help. I hope that
you are that someone. As I said, when 1 heard you speak in New Orleans, I was struck

by your sincerity and your obvious interest in making certain that rehabilitation really
works.

Thank you for your attention to this letter.

Sincerely,

L g

MA WSS

James M. Matise
Enclosures

cc:  The Honorable Fife Symington
Mr. Marc Maurer, President, National Federation of the Blind
Ms. Ruth Swenson, President. National Federation of the Blind of Arizona
The Honorable Dennis DeConcini
The Honorable John McCain
The Honorable Jim Kolbe
Mr. Jim Omvig

Since George Mayo is the key SBVI staff person who was unwilling to help me
because of my blindness and age, I thought you might find the attached
newspaper article interesting,




ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY
Services £or the 8lind and Visually mpaired
Rose Mofford 10 Zast Broadway - Suite 400
Governor Tucson, Arizona 85701
Telepncne 629-0228
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GOVERNOR'S COUNCIL ON BLINDNESS AND VISUAL IMPAIRMENT

Resolution 91-01
SBVI Ferfcormance

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the arizona Services
for the Blind and Visually Impaired (SBVI) to provide meaningful,
guality rehakilitation services to blind or visually impairec
Arizonans who need and can benefit from them; and

WHEREAS, the rurpose of the Arizona Governcr's Council
cn Blindness ané Visual Impairment is "to provide a mechanism
tc insure that the specialized needs of kling and visually impaired
Arizonans are adéressed effactively"; and

WEEREAS, the "specialized needs" of Mr. Sim Matise of
Tucson, Arizona were not "addressed effectively" by SBVI whern. on
April 24, 199C, Mr. Matise was summarily refused SBVI services
altogether "due to the combination of loss of vision ané age"; and

WHEEREAS, the "specialized needs" cf Mr. Matise were further
unmet bty SBVI when Mr. Matise was denied Department of Economic
Security (DES) unemployment insurance benefits and SBVI dig
rnothing to bring about a reversal of this adverse DES cdecision;
and

WHEREAS, while SBVI did, in fact, reopen Mr. Matise's rekakili-
taticn case file in January of this year alter its improper
refical of service had been brought to public attenticn by the
Naticnal Federation of the Blind, the very first offered "service"
was tc administer psychological and vocational evaluations to
Mr. Matise so that SBVI would "know what you can do": and

WHEREAS, meaningful rehabilitaticn services have not vet been
crovided by SBVI to Mr. Matigse even though it is now more than a
year since he first needed and requested SBVI help; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Matise is eager to return to work ané can ¢o SO
1€ SBVI can provide him immediately with quality rehatilitation
services:

NOw, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governor's Council on
iindness and Visual Impairment in special meeting assembled this
gth day of Fekruary, 1991, that this founcil dc everything that it
car "tc insure that the specialized needs of klind and visuvally
1mgaired Arizonans are addressed effectively" by directing that SBVI
immediately take the following three actions:
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1) That SBVI provicde quality rehabilitation services to
Mr. Jim Matise., including low visicn aids if they are effective;
orientation and adjustment services if low vision aids are not
effective; training and/or occupaticnal tools and equipment; and
job placement services;

2) That SBvI develop and promulgate a written policy that
bliné or visually impaired Arizonans who are in need of “pre-
vocational" training services will be sent out of state by SBVI
to orientation and adjustment centers selected by the clients
themselves: and

1) That SBVI take all possible steps to halt the practice
of developing adversarial relationships with those blind indi-
viduals whom they have been hired to serve; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution be
sent officially by this Council to the DES Director and SBVI
Program Manager for action,.
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Anzona Department ¢f Economic Secunty

Rehabrdahon Services Admimstrahon

Services for the Bund ana Visually Impaired

D.

GEORGE MAYO, Ph

Supervisor, Vocational Rehabilitation

10 E. Broaaway, Ste. 400

Tucson, AZ 85701

(602) 629-0225
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Mayo was arrested after threatening an officer Mayo assumed was a cruising gay man

RIC
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Mayo -

Contlnued from Page One
clothes — and Instantly assumed
that he was a cruising gay man.

“He was just standing on the path
1n his tank top, fiexing his muscles,
asif tosay, 'Here 1 am, come and get
me.’ | saw him and walked away
{rom him, hoping he wouldn't bother
me,"” Mayo recalls, . .

when Kublk followed him down a
path, Mayo celied him a *faggot”
and told him to “get the hell away.”

Kubik informed Maye that he had
a night to walk anywhere he wanted
in a public park. He did nol teil him
that he was police officer.

When Kubik took a few more
steps down the embankment, Mayo
mcked up a football-size rock.

Says Mayo, 1 called him a faggot
and warned him that if he came one
step closer, I would bash his head
m

“1 saw a shadow of a second per-
son, who I later learned was also a
police officer. I was frightened. 1
thought it was going to be a murder
or a gang rape.

“My first thought was that these
faggots knew that I had been rals-
ing hell ahout them, and that they

BEST COPY AvAILABLE ' ©°

wanted to shut me up.

“Then I remembered that the po-
lice had told me there were under-
cover cops In the parks. I sald, 'Ex-
cuse me, but if you are a police
officer, you need to ldentify your-
self.’ He kept on wit.. kis little spiel
about how he could go anywhere he
wanted to.”

Just as Mayo was about to throw
the rock, Kubik flashed his badge
and arrested him.

“it's a nlghtmare,” says Mayo,
who treats people with anxiety dis-
orders. “The trauma of me, a 50-
year-old grandfather, belng ar-
rested for the (irst time In my ilfe for
somethlsg so ridlculous.™

In his report, Kublk wrote:

“I handcuffed subject without In-
cident and walked tum to his car to
oblain identification he had hid In -
his car,” which is consistent with
other person(s) arrested for sexual
misconduct.”

Says Mayo: “The pollce officer
was there as a decoy. But he must
have assumed that if 1 was in the
park, alone at nigbt, that I had to be
8ay.

“He approached me, thinking he
had Number 128 or whatever, and .
maybe he can't admit to making that
mistake. | was way off the beaten
path, and I did everythlng not to give

.

any signals that I was interested.
Maybe they will claim that I was
masturhating or soliclung.

“Kubik was so detexmlned to
make an arrest.... He could have
identifled himsell Immediately, and
nothing would have happened.”

Mayo says that’s precisely what
hundreds of arresied gay men must
have thought.

“The sad thing is this: What If 1
had thrown the rock and got lucky
and hurt the man, and ran for It, and
the other officer had shot me. Then
we'd have a dead man.”

Mayo has not changed his oplalon
about homosexuals in the park.

“They have a right to congregate,
hut they should do it In designaled
places, like gay bars. If It's a public
park, 1 don't think that can be al-
lowed.

“'But as much as [ want gay people
out of the parks, I think the police
need some new guidetines so that
they can make the parks safe, but
not Interfere with people's civll
rights,” Mayo says.

“If 1 had heard that gays were
belng arrested. my first thougbl
would be a cheer. But now I think
that If the police behave toward gay
men the way they behaved toward
me, there must be some entrapment
going on.”
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